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Purgation prescription is one
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PRESCRIPTION

of ten doses. A prescription
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with the effect of activating
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STAGNATION S i and opening. Occlusion
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Dredging prescription is one 4%k s blocka}ge, such as the
’ use of venting products to

of ten doses. A prescription bt o

X . treat constipation due to
with the effect of promoting . 3
viscera, and dyspnea due to
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circulation of blood and qi.

excess lung.

Dredging can remove

o B Y B BRI E E
o I VEL o BHRBREY - 2F

stagnation. Dredging means
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promoting flow and

ﬁWQQE

stagnation is the proof of
obstruction.
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Dispersal prescription is

being weak, such as the use prescription with the effect 4 F

of removing pathogens on

one of ten doses. A B
prescription with the %k 7§

effect of relieving
depression and %: 4
_ . removing blockage. It is g:' ﬁ]
V' ‘ £ mainly composed of % % o
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of tonic products to treat

physical fatigue, mental the skin surface. Stagnant
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prescription with tonic effect. ﬁ,] Light dose prescription is }lé(‘ e
g Weakness means the state of ﬁ@ one of ten doses. A ﬁ
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fatigue, righteousness

means that the
subcutaneous tissue is

TEN-DOSE
PRESCRIPTION
THEORY .

deficiency and other
symptoms.

obscured, such as the use of
frivolous products to treat
external pathogens, tissue
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occlusion and no sweating.
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SLIPPAGE ¥ f1 & °
Obscure prescription is —F U:F ﬂfu ‘ﬁ‘ ¢
one of ten doses. Slippage k H Z: gfﬂ o
means slipping and [;‘;] _t:/m‘ g; ‘%‘1

DRYNESS #.

Moist prescription is one of

Heavy dose prescription is

¥

one of ten doses. A
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prescription with the
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effect of calming and ten doses. Dryness means

tranquilize the nerve. being dry and dull, such as
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inability to control, such « ﬁ' Ux;r_ 5 lg
Fearfulness means as the use of astringent v ety the use of moisturizing
weakness of fortitude, o‘é PN products to treat (;"'!' X 7‘%:;: gé] products to treat dry cough
frightened and restless, ap spontancous sweating, .2 vk without phlegm, dry tongue

such as the use of heavy and other symptoms of body

dose to calm the mind and
sooth the anxiety.

urine, diarrhea, and fluid deficiency.
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night sweating, leakage of S )f]’(
o >

uterine bleeding.
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Smooth prescription is one
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/ = < of ten doses. Where Torridity prescription is h
> sickness settles on certain one of ten doses. W | VeSS
= part of the body, such as Dampness means ﬁ‘(‘ «%‘
the digestive system and accumulation of damp - z
22 . . . . "
P 5 causes indigestion, and pathogenic factors, such Jetiag

cannot be dismissed. Such as the use of dampness- & 5;]

e e as the use of slippery drying products to treat ,

edema, abdominal

ol

products to treat physical
obstruction in the bladder
or urinary tract.
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distension, dysuria and
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internal dampness.
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TEN YEARS MILESTONES
10438 f LR A%

€ Opened the first Chinese
medicine health and wellness
centre in the Netherlands,
the first retail outlets in each
of Sweden and Czech, three
retail outlet in New Zealand,
and one retail outlets in each
of the United Arab Emirates

of the Stock Exchange on 7 R RIFERERFTRER
May 2013 ZELG  RIAWER=R

20135 5A7H
RISRAR PR 2 £

Successfully listed on GEM

" OB B P TEL - UARRABHERE

and Hong Kong
REABMTRERTEELERRE

BEAER-—FREELR

Commenced business in New l Completed the
Zealand acquisition of Honour
AT R RS Essence Trading Limited

TREBAREZBRAE

Completed acquisition of Beijing Tong

Ren Tang Fook Ming Tong Chinese € Formally launched the

Medical Centre cross-border e-commerce

TERKBILRE{—ERAE REZEF L platform
ETHERERFEAER L

Opened the first retail outlet in the
United Kingdom, the flagship (e S
Chinese medicine health and : ;
wellness centre in Hong Kong,
and retail outlet in each of
Macao, Poland, Melbourne,
Toronto and Vancouver
REBEFRRERZTER W - RE
B P EEE R OEMEE - XU
RAEM K BEA - ZR
ZRATERZAERTERR

ERECEAEARAT | —B-FFR
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TEN YEARS MILESTONES

Successfully transferred of

on 29 May 2018
20185 29A » RIHEH
R FAIERE T ERES

The Shares of the Company
were included in Hang Seng
Family of Indexes

€ Awarded “The Best Listed FDEARBMAEERHRS
Company Award” in China l
Securities Golden Bauhinia Became eligible for trading
Award 2016 through Shenzhen-Hong
FE T8 2016 F B E 5 & = 2R Kong Connect
[miEEm AR % RAFRBBEERRE

l Officially entered the
United States market
with the opening of three
Chinese medical clinics
and retail outlets, opened
the Chinese medical
healthcare and wellness
centre in Vancouver and
three retail outlets in

Hong Kong
REBFHR=KHPELFT
REERE  EXNEESR @ Opened a Chinese medical

5 MBFERRT
BELERETOLURRE

clinic in San Francisco, the
United States, two retail
outlets in Hong Kong and
one retail outlet in each of
Singapore, Melbourne,
Vancouver, Toronto and
Switzerland
REBE=EFEmHRPEDE
R AEBERMREE
B ARAFIINE - B
K RIFE - ZRERHLR
BE—REERK

BIER=REBERIR

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2022

listing from GEM to the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange

l Awarded “The Best

Listed Company Y

Award” in China ) . O ez
W t

mraansa$,000
CLtrp U

Opened the first retail outlet in
Italy, and one retail outlet in
each of Hong Kong and San
Gabiriel, the United States
RERAFRERBER R
URREBREBIEZERER
BHE-—RTBELW

= /=

© Opened one retail
outlet in each of
Macao and Sydney
RRFAREEE B E
R—REBERE

Securities Golden

Bauhinia Award 2018

KFE2018 FHEIR S dnr
elv

exnnrRE 5 00
NS HE ‘;‘;%;-‘

Launched the “online
shop”, the online
product sales platform
on our official website
RADNTE R HFuh R
YR EEMBEEFS
[#8 Ers |

104F- 5% f LR

Opened three retalil
outlets in Hong Kong and
one retail outlet in Dubai
REBRBEFEDHIER=

Award” in China
Securities Golden
Bauhinia Award 2022
EHE2022 EHEF S
SEMB[HELTA
CINE:

€ Opened Tong Ren
Tang brand store at
Haikou International
Duty-Free City

A8 O Bl R 5 B 45 BA 5%
B-Z @mEMHE

€ Opened two retail outlets in
Hong Kong, and one retail
outlet in each of Melbourne
and Sydney
REBEZIMREBER R
URAREEAREREBE
R —REER IR

tRACERAEARAT | —B-—FFR
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TONG REN TANG AT A GLANCE IN 2022
202244 — %8

JANUARY —H

e Opened one retail outlet in Tsim Sha
Tsui, Hong Kong

REBRDEER—

MARCH =H

* To actively support the prevention and
control of the COVID-19 epidemic and
the treatment of patients as well as to
fulfill corporate social responsibility, the
Company donated 100,000 boxes of
Huoxiang Zhenggqi Pian (BE& ER5)
worth equivalent to approximately
HK$6.0 million to the Government of
the HKSAR to assist in the fight against
the COVID-19 epidemic.

ABBIEHFTHRBEERE - mEXK
B URBTEEMEER AAAE
o & B4 Bl 1T BN E BUT 18 88 100,000 &
EEERFA ZEP600EET AU
BT A EAE o

APRIL PYH

e Opened one retail outlet in Melbourne,
Australia

FORARIEE B AER —

SEPTEMBER JuH

e Opened one retail outlet in Sheung
Wan, Hong Kong

IERECZFEHNTE

REER

TERR

|

WE® LRER - RTERR - @ g : J P

OCTOBER 1 H

e Launched “Show Love and Care to
Stroke Prevention 2022”, including live
online lectures on stroke prevention
and visits to stroke survivors, etc.

EpTEM-BEER P E2022]  BIEFER P
B EEFRBEERRFHREEALS

Ll

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited

Annual Report 2022

»
¥

OCTOBER 1 H

Launched the “Care for Stroke
Prevention” Tram Day, which is the first
free tram day for all in Hong Kong with
the theme of “Concern about Stroke”,
calling on the public to participate in
the awareness of Stroke

ERECEZERTRRIEEREY T
EEBEEUIREETRRE]BEENER
GEREEH WETRESEEIHER
Opened one retail outlet in Kowloon
Bay, Hong Kong

REBNEEBER —RBERIK
Opened Tong Ren Tang brand store at
Haikou International Duty-Free City

T O B P 5 450 B 2R (B4 . MR P U

NOVEMBER +—H

Participated in the International Summit
Forum on Developing Integrative
Strategies for Stroke Treatment held by
the LKS Faculty of Medicine School of
Chinese Medicine, The University of
Hong Kong

SHEMBEBABREBEBRIHHA
BEAHAKE PERSE®RE
Opened one retail outlet in Sydney,
Australia

RBEAFEEBIER - REELR

DECEMBER = H

Awarded “The Best Listed Company
Award” and awarded Ding Yong Ling,
our Chairman, “Outstanding
Entrepreneur of the Year 2022” in the
12th China Securities Golden Bauhinia
Award

REFNR2ETHEIFERMR(HREL
AR R\ MERFT KIRRE 2022
FEaMMESR | RE

tRACERAEARAT | —B=—FFR
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DISTRIBUTION NETWORKS

o B AR A

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited

Annual Report 2022
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
A AN

Revenue
HK$’000

+11.29

1,800,000 1,731,095

1,600,000 1'513’87:1;’432’6321 ,556,158
1,400,000
1,200,000
1,000,000
800,000
600,000
400,000
200,000
0 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Gross Profit

B
2 O
I ° : (0]
HK$’000
FHBT
1,200,000 1119623 1,150,140

1,078,421

1,000,000

800,000

600,000

400,000

200,000

0 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for

the past ten financial years.

2022 HK$’000 2021 HK$’ 000
2022F FHT 2021F FET

Revenue WA 1,731,095 1,556,158
Gross profit EF| 1,150,140 1,119,623
Profit before income tax Bk 15 %: A1 K8 825,962 778,391
Profit for the year FE 8 691,293 651,543
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 7~ 2 8 & A FE45 F5E 645,875 607,838
Earnings per share (HK$) 2R &R (87t) 0.77 0.73
Dividend per share (HK$) SR E (B )

Final 7 & 0.33 0.28

Special interim 4% Bl F1 24

0.25 =

2022 HK$’000 2021 HK$’ 000

2022 F THT 2021F FBT

Profit for the Year

A B ) 1
I (Eicn:l./4)
HK$'000 HK$’000
Fi&x FiEx
691,293
700,000 i 700,000
601,323
600,000 576,852 600,000
567,881
500,000 500,000
400,000 400,000
300,000 300,000
200,000 227,548 200,000
100,000 100,000

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

UTRAAREEBES

Profit Attributable To
Owners of the Company
A2 vl gEA N A A

+6.3%

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

B BRFENEAMiFEUREEEEERE -

For the years ended 31 December 2 Z 12 B 31 HIEFE

2020 HK$'000 2019 HK$’'000 2018 HK$’000 2017 HK$’000 2016 HK$’000
2020F FHst 20194 FHEt 20184F FHEx 2017F T8 2016F TET

1,315,346 1,432,632 1,513,873 1,265,994 1,084,280
952,903 1,012,796 1,078,421 916,433 795,087
685,895 689,222 720,898 610,966 532,270
567,881 576,852 601,323 505,512 439,880
542,456 556,118 580,720 489,967 420,315

0.65 0.66 0.69 0.59 0.50
0.24 0.23 0.23 0.19 0.16

= 0.72 = = =

2020 HK$'000 2019 HK$’000 2018 HK$’000 2017 HK$°000 2016 HK$’000
20204 Tt 20194 FHBr 20184F FHx 2017F T8 20165F FTET

2015 HK$’000 2014 HK$’000 2013 HK$’000
20154 FHt 2014F T 2013F T8

970,477 761,051 613,963
680,877 543,031 420,043
456,614 355,219 271,466
374,578 294,698 227,548
354,249 287,124 220,001

0.42 0.35 0.29

0.13 0.10 0.08

2015 HK$’000 2014 HK$'000 2013 HK$’000
20154 THT 2014%F T8 2013F TET

Non-current assets IEHREEE
Current assets REEE

Total assets BEE
Non-current liabilities 3E R E & &
Current liabilities &) & &

Total liabilities #2 & {&

Net assets & EFE

Financial Metrics B % {512
Gross profit margin EFI=
Net profit margin #iF/=
Current ratio g tt =

Return on equity B 7B R =
Return on assets &&EE H{ =
Dividend payout ratio® jk & tb = ®

Note: There are changes in accounting policies in 2019 which the Group has elected to apply without restating comparative figures as

permitted by the relevant financial reporting standards.
m Exclude special interim dividend

558,171
3,276,811
3,834,982

82,421

213,057

295,478
3,539,504

71.9%
41.9%

15.4
18.4%
17.0%
38.6%

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2022

484,022 494,506 424,621 405,768 398,176
2,932,947 2,643,815 2,746,464 2,354,887 1,956,646
3,416,969 3,138,321 3,171,085 2,760,655 2,354,822

70,843 65,604 5,927 5,024 4,694

216,616 307,081 140,931 147,454 122,891

287,459 372,685 146,858 152,478 127,585
3,129,510 2,765,636 3,024,227 2,608,177 2,227,237

72.4% 70.7% 71.2% 72.4% 73.3%
43.2% 40.3% 39.7% 39.9% 40.6%

13.5 8.6 19.5 16.0 15.9
18.1% 20.9% 19.9% 19.4% 19.8%
16.6% 18.4% 19.0% 18.3% 18.7%
37.0% 34.6% 33.2% 32.5% 31.9%

LE= g;mmwﬁfﬁ&?@%—m%ﬁﬁ

o TREFHNTFHRE

372,795 312,890 251,493
1,654,190 1,319,651 1,158,622
2,026,985 1,632,541 1,410,115

5,352 4,675 4,248

112,718 91,005 96,148

118,070 95,680 100,396
1,908,915 1,536,861 1,309,719

70.2% 71.4% 68.4%
38.6% 38.7% 37.1%

14.7 14.5 121
19.6% 19.2% 17.4%
18.5% 18.1% 16.1%
30.7% 29.2% 30.2%

CWREAENBEREENAFTREFIEALR
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Tread on frost and you know solid ice is not far off,

and spring is near when ice is melting.

Firmly believe and follow the trend,

we strive to excel and be invincible.

Tong Ren Tang remains steadfast in its original mission,
and keeps developing and moving forward.

With the attitude of entrepreneurship,

Tong Ren Tang is still shaping the future.

In 2022, the world has entered a new era. With a global population of 8 billion and global aging population, the world’s
economies and outlook are becoming profoundly intertwined, and health as a common issue for humanity is a necessity to
unlock the future. Variant of Covid-19 (“COVID”) and the opening of the border of different countries have led to a recovery
of the global economy, and the general expectation of the market and economy is rebounding, with new opportunities for
new development just around the corner.

KEEP TO THE CHARACTERISTICS AND MOVE FORWARD TO LEAD
THE NEW STAGE

The world is changing, the epidemic is changing, the market is changing, and so is Tong Ren Tang. In the midst of all these
changes, Tong Ren Tang is still keeping to its characteristics, focusing on its main responsibilities in Chinese medicine,
and identifying unique opportunities and potential new markets in the traditional medicine industry. Chinese medicine plays
a unigue role in the wakening of health awareness around the world and the new COVID pandemic, serving as a necessary
complement and effective extension of modern medicine, and filling the gaps in the healthcare field. With the resurgence of
the COVID variant, Tong Ren Tang has served more than 50 million people worldwide, initiating a new phase from a global
participant to a leader in the field of Chinese medicine.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

FOCUSING ON INNOVATION AND LAYING THE FOUNDATION OF
MODERNIZATION

As the world keeps changing, the competition is intensified, it is important to stay steady to go far in the future. With the
gradual improvement of the rigid system and auxiliary support, the stability and risk resistance of Tong Ren Tang in the
international arena have been significantly enhanced, and its standards have given more deep and fundamental protection
to the overseas business of Tong Ren Tang under the diversified environment. Meanwhile, the renewal of marketing efforts,
talents and governance has further improved the marketability and competitiveness of Tong Ren Tang, and the orderly
implementation of internal reform under the historic brand has laid a solid foundation for providing standardized and
modernized Chinese medicine services to more people across the world.

PROSPECT

The future is not only a beautiful aspiration, but also a choice made at the moment. Tong Ren Tang stands firm to its main
duties, while making continuous efforts in new aspects, with the new products layout such as Chinese medical beauty
treatment and Chinese medicine anti-aging treatment, so as to actively prepare for developing new healthcare businesses.
The aspirations of humankind for health are never-ending, and Tong Ren Tang’s determinations in the healthcare industry
will be unswerving.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my highest respect to all employees for their loyalty,
selflessness, passion, dedication and hard work, and to all the fellowmen who have been working hard on the front line of
Tong Ren Tang’s Chinese medicine innovation and development. | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our
shareholders, customers, business partners and local governments who have stood by Tong Ren Tang’s
internationalization progress.

Ding Yong Ling
Chairman
Hong Kong, 13 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

Since its establishment in 1669, Tong Ren Tang has gone through 354 years of history, upholding the corporate spirit of
“Nurturing kindness and virtue, Preserving tranquility and wellness” and the development vision of “Creating health and
sharing with the world”, promoting Chinese medicine to the world by leveraging on the unique advantages of Chinese
medicine, showcasing the achievements of Chinese medicine research and development. For decades, Tong Ren Tang
insists on keeping the righteous traditions while seeking innovation, marking it an internationally renowned brand of
Chinese medicine.

In 2022, the Group faced a complex and challenging market environment with various risks, based on precise execution of
strategies to anchor Tong Ren Tang’s high-quality development, and had entered a new chapter of innovation and
proficiency. Based in Hong Kong, the Group has a global footprint, and has undertaken the mission of promoting Chinese
medicine culture based on the inheritance of the pharmaceutical methods and craftsmanship of our predecessors, and
aiming to further explore ways to the modernization of Chinese medicine and expanding its service coverage, so as to
accelerate the internationalization of Chinese medicine.

During the Year, the Group achieved a revenue of HK$1,731.1 million (2021: HK$1,556.2 million), representing a year-on-
year growth of 11.2%; net profit of HK$691.3 million (2021: HK$651.5 million), representing a year-on-year growth of 6.1%;
profit attributable to owners of HK$645.9 million (2021: HK$607.8 million), representing a year-on-year growth of 6.3%;
earnings per share was HK$0.77 (2021: HK$0.73), representing a year-on-year increase of HK$0.04. The Board
recommends the distribution of a final dividend of HK$0.33 per share (2021: HK$0.28).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

HONG KONG MARKET

This Year, the Group continued to treat Hong Kong as an important strategic region, where it focused on the Hong Kong
market and fully expanded the upstream and downstream industrial chains, launched innovative marketing reform and
channel construction, and continuously promoted the Group’s high-quality development to help Hong Kong’s urban
construction, economic development and livelihood needs and improvements.

The Group continued on the integration of online and offline sales channels, and has been steadily improving its layout in
the core market of Hong Kong and identifying areas with high consumption potential for the establishment of offline retail
outlets. During the Year, the Group has 25 local retail outlets in Hong Kong, covering all regions in Hong Kong (except the
outlying islands). The Group has accelerated the integration of its own e-commerce platform, cross-border e-commerce
platform and other online retail channels to effectively meet the consumption needs of consumers in multiple scenarios
during the pandemic. The Group actively promoted the construction of diversified channels, focusing on strengthening the
wholesale channels, and proactively identifies high potential and high quality wholesalers to ensure quality and quantity, so
as to ensure the steady growth of sales of the Group’s premium products to achieve mutual benefit and win-win situation.
The Group further deepened the marketing reform, coordinate and strengthen the construction of all-media promotion
channels, such as TV, newspapers, social media, short video, live broadcast, etc., to enhance the joint output of brand,
product and culture, and promote the growth of the Group’s overall sales volume; the Group has focused on promoting
new industries, new business models and new retail models, and strive to create a diversified and multi-level marketing
pattern, so as to achieve a stable situation where marketing and sales promote on each other and develop together. To
optimize and improve the framework of integration of production, academia and research, the Group has maintained
long-term interaction and cooperation with universities and colleges in Hong Kong to conduct in-depth exploration of the
efficacy of the Group’s major Chinese medicine products,and further verify the relationship between the traditional efficacy
of Chinese medicine and modern pharmacological effects, and enhance the market transformation rate of academic
research results.

During the Year, the Group’s revenue from Hong Kong market reached HK$826.0 million (2021: HK$688.4 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of 20.0%, while same store revenue declined by 9.9%.

NON-HONG KONG MARKET

During the Year, the Group’s business network covered major countries and regions in Asia, Oceania, North America and
Europe, with 48 retail outlets overseas in total. Due to the impact of the pandemic, the overall number of confirmed patients
overseas remains high, and the number of students, travelers and visitors of relatives has not yet recovered to the pre-
pandemic level, and the market for Chinese medicine services outside of China has yet to be activated. Under such difficult
situation, the Group is seeking changes and actively exploring new ways to modernize Chinese medicine services, and
based on its ability to cope with the pandemic and other risks, the Group was able to coordinate the overseas markets,
and some of the overseas markets grew against the trend, such as Singapore, New Zealand, Canada, Dubai, etc., and
eventually turned the overseas markets around. During the Year, the Group recorded a revenue from overseas markets
amounted to HK$471.6 million (2021: HK$441.3 million), representing a year-on-year growth of 6.9%, while same-store
revenue grew by 10.8%.

For the Mainland China market, despite the economy of Mainland China was still affected by the recurrence of the
COVID-19 pandemic in 2022, the Group is still actively planning to set up the Tong Ren Tang brand store at the global
largest duty free city of the China Duty Free Group — Haikou International Duty-Free City on 28 October to put in place a
duty free strategic channel. During the Year, the Group’s revenue in Mainland China market remaining stable at HK$433.5
million (2021: HK$426.4 million), representing a slight year-on-year increase of 1.7%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PRODUCTION, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

During the Year, the Group made strong efforts in the areas of production and quality management, as well as technology
and product innovation. In terms of production and quality management, the Group’s Production and R&D Base in Tai Po,
Hong Kong obtained GMP (Good Manufacturing Practice) for Proprietary Chinese medicine certification, International
Standard 1SO22000 certification and HACCP (Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Points) certification. The Group has set
up a quality management system that covers the entire life cycle from project creation, R&D, raw material procurement to
product production and supply, providing comprehensive protection for our production. In terms of technology and
product innovation, the Group continued to improve and innovate production technology and efficiency, as the production
capacity of Angong Niuhuang Wan (% & 4 & #1), Sporoderm-broken Ganoderma Lucidum Spores Powder Capsule (5 &
T/ THBE), Ultra Fine Pearl Powder and Lingzhi Vitality Capsules was enhanced to fully meet the market demand.
Based on its reserve of product resources, the Group has further enriched its product varieties by initiating the research
and development of its new product, Qing Yin Wan, which has been approved for registration as a proprietary Chinese
medicine. Meanwhile, the Group based on its core products and strengthened the development of our own intellectual
property rights, including invention patents, utility model appearance, copyrights and publications. The Group has
expanded and developed its patent portfolio and applied international intellectual property rules to protect and enrich the
core value of Tong Ren Tang’s products.

Over the years, the Group has been collaborating with universities on various research projects to enhance the quality of
its products, and to establish a framework for the integration of industry, academia, research and application, thus paving
the way for modernization of Chinese medicine. In particular, the Group has jointly applied for a research project with the
Innovation and Technology Commission in collaboration with the School of Chinese Medicine of the Li Ka Shing Faculty of
Medicine of the University of Hong Kong (“HKU School of Chinese Medicine”) in relation to Angong Niuhuang Wan. The
Group provided the necessary pharmaceutical products for the research project as requested by the HKU School of
Chinese Medicine. In November, the Group sponsored the “International Summit Forum on Developing Integrative
Strategies for Stroke Treatment” organized by the HKU School of Chinese Medicine, which gathered professors and
experts in Chinese and Western medicine from internationally renowned universities. The HKU School of Chinese
Medicine published the pharmacological summary of the collaborated research project, showing that Angong Niuhuang
Wan can be used as an adjunct to thrombolytic therapy to improve the efficacy and survival rate of ischemic stroke and
greatly reduce the side effects of cerebral hemorrhage caused by delayed treatment. The research results have greatly
uplifted the international influence of the Beijing Tong Ren Tang brand, and the overall goal to promote the sustainable
development of the industry with the scientific research results to promote the commencement of Beijing Tong Ren
Tang’s overseas business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRAND PROMOTION

The Group upholds the corporate spirit of “Nurturing kindness and virtue, Preserving tranquility and wellness” and the
in-depth implementation of the concept of macro-health services. Despite the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic during
the Year, the Group still actively launched a series of brand promotion and marketing activities to enhance the brand power
and influence of Beijing Tong Ren Tang in Hong Kong and overseas markets, and to promote the spread of Chinese
medicine culture and brand culture with a high sense of mission and responsibility in Chinese medicine services and
macro-health services.

In response to the public’s demand for health and wellness during the pandemic, the Group has consolidated the influence
of its major product varieties through diversified platforms, the media and different promotional channels, so as to enhance
the market penetration rate of our products, and open up a new marketing model. The Group focused on the strength and
breadth of online marketing efforts, and launched multi-level and multi-channel brand promotions. Meanwhile, the Group
focused on serial activities of the special project “Show Love and Care to Stroke Prevention”, with innovative ideas
combining virtual idols and real life interaction with good marketing results. We have organized science research seminars
in cooperation with academic institutions to popularize the knowledge and concepts of Chinese medicine to the public.
During the Year, we held the first free tram ride day with the theme of stroke prevention, focusing on benefiting the local
citizens, and enhancing the reputation of our products.

During the Year, the Group strived to fulfill the social responsibility of a century-old Chinese medicine enterprise, and made
multiple donations to the society by providing pandemic prevention materials and medicines to organizations such as Sik
Sik Yuen and stroke patients’ organizations in Hong Kong, and donated 100,000 boxes of Huoxiang Zhenggqi Pian to the
Hong Kong government to provide maximum protection and to tide over the crisis together with local citizens. The Group
was mindful about women’s health and supported the Pink Ribbon Global Breast Cancer Awareness Campaign during the
International Women’s Day on 8 March. At the same time, the Group focused on grasping the important timing and policy
opportunities, and refreshed the marketing mix to stimulate consumer demand; the Group also launched science video and
advertising “Synchronization” to effectively realize the product and brand publicity effect, boosting the local consumption
and promoting local economic recovery.

During the Year, the Group has won a number of brand awards, including the “The Most Influential Brand in Asia: Most
Trusted Brand in Chinese Medicine” in Singapore for the eighth consecutive year, the “GBA Top 100 Enterprises
Inheritance Award” and the “GBA Most Valuable Brand Award” in the Greater Bay Area, the “Global Service Practice Case
(BERRISEEZRHI)” of China International Fair for Trade in Services 2022, the 7th (Zhongjing Cup) International Award for
Contribution to Chinese Medicine (5 L& (1F £ #1) 1 B 22 B PR F 5k 38 ). The Group also received the “01 Enterprise Gold
Medal Award — Outstanding Chinese Medicine Brand (01 {2 ¥ & By K48 — #EH B2 R I8)” for the third consecutive
year, highlighting Tong Ren Tang’s leading position in the development of Chinese medicine both inbound and outbound,
and demonstrating the remarkable achievements in the internationalization of the “Tong Ren Tang” brand. This year, the
Group was awarded the “12th China Securities Golden Bauhinia Awards (5 + =B Bl % £ & #2€)” organized by the
Hong Kong Ta Kung Wen Wei Media Group, and won the “Best Listed Company” award. The Group’s outstanding brand
image and quality products are continuously recognized by the capital market, and the honors and awards reflect the trust
and support of consumers for the Group’s products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

As at 31 December 2022, we had a total of 762 employees (2021: 745 employees).

The staff costs of the Group for the Year were HK$219.1 million (2021: HK$216.7 million), representing an increase of 1.1%
from last year. To ensure that the Group is able to attract and retain talents, remuneration policies are reviewed on a
regular basis. In addition, the discretionary bonus is offered to employees with outstanding performance with reference to
the Group’s results and individual performance.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue for the Year was HK$1,731.1 million (2021: HK$1,556.2 million), representing an increase of 11.2%
from last year. This Year, although the Hong Kong market was still under the influence of the coronavirus outbreak, Hong
Kong gradually relaxed its immigration control and the Hong Kong government continued to distribute consumption
vouchers to Hong Kong citizen to stimulate local consumption, coupled with the gradual realization of reopening of the
border with overseas at the end of the Year, the revenue from the Hong Kong market has increased by 20.0%. For
overseas market, it has seen growth against the tide in certain overseas markets it has cultivated for years, such as
Singapore, New Zealand, Canada and Dubai, which led to an increase of 6.9% in revenue from overseas market. Revenue
from the Mainland China market remained stable with a slight increase of 1.7% from last year.

Gross Profit

The Group’s gross profit was HK$1,150.1 million (2021: HK$1,119.6 million), representing an increase of 2.7% from last
year. The gross profit margin decreased from 71.9% last year to 66.4% this Year, which was mainly due to the change in
the product mix from last year, which was arose from the new business of sales of Chinese medicinal raw materials in the
Mainland China this Year.

Other Gains, net

The Group’s other gains, net was HK$9.6 million (2021: HK$8.0 million), which was increased by HK$1.6 million from last
year. The increase was due to increase in government grants received under the COVID-19 pandemic this Year.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

The Group’s distribution and selling expenses were HK$187.2 million (2021: HK$186.4 million), representing a slight
increase of 0.4% from last year. Due to increase in number of retail outlets, the rental expenses and staff costs increased
this Year, but it was offset by the decrease in advertising and promotion expenses. Distribution and selling expenses as a
percentage to revenue slightly decreased from 12.0% last year to 10.8% this Year.

General and Administrative Expenses

The Group’s general and administrative expenses were HK$154.5 million (2021: HK$155.3 million), representing a slight
decrease of 0.5% from last year. General and administrative expenses mainly comprised of staff costs and rental expenses
which remained stable from last year. General and administrative expenses as a percentage to revenue slightly decreased
from 10.0% from last year to 8.9% this Year.

Finance Income/Costs, net

The Group’s net finance income was HK$15.9 million (2021: net finance costs HK$330,000), which included the finance
income of HK$20.6 million (2021: HK$4.4 million). The increase in finance income of HK$16.2 million was mainly due to
increase in both the average short-term bank deposit interest rate and the average bank deposit balance from last year.

Income Tax Expense

The Group’s income tax expense was HK$134.7 million (2021: HK$126.8 million), representing an increase of 6.2% from
last year. The increase was mainly due to the increase in taxable profit this Year. The effective tax rate for the Year
maintains at 16.3% (2021: 16.3%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Profit for the Year, Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company,
Basic Earnings Per Share and Dividend

The Group’s profit for the Year increased by 6.1% to HK$691.3 million (2021: HK$651.5 million) with a net profit margin of
39.9% (2021: 41.9%). Profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to HK$645.9 million (2021: HK$607.8
million), representing an increase of 6.3% from last year. The basic earnings per share for the Year were HK$0.77 (2021:
HK$0.73). The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.33 per share for the Year (2021: HK$0.28).

Financial Resources and Liquidity

During the Year, the Group funded its liquidity by internal resources. Based on the Group’s steady cash inflow from
operations, coupled with sufficient cash and bank balances, the Group has adequate liquidity and financial resources to
meet the daily operations and working capital requirements as well as to fund its expansion plans.

The Group continued to maintain a strong financial position with cash and bank balances of HK$2,244.0 million (2021:
HK$2,275.6 million) as at 31 December 2022. Most of the Group’s cash and bank balances were denominated in Hong
Kong dollar and Renminbi, and were deposited in reputable financial institutions with maturity dates falling within one year.
The table below sets out the information regarding cash and bank balances, working capital, total equity, current ratio and
gearing ratio as at 31 December 2021 and 2022 and net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities, investing
activities and financing activities for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022:

Cash and bank balances I & [ R T &5 84
Working Capital &E& & O

Total Equity #4248

Current Ratio® fiEjtk & @

Gearing Ratio® & f&LL & ®

Net cash generated from operating activities & & E B E A IR S F4E
Net cash generated/(used in) from investing activities R &EEBIFIELE,(FrA) WIR & F4E
Net cash used in financing activities @& & B 7 F K38 & /F 58

™ Being net current assets
@ Being current assets divided by current liabilities
® Being borrowings and lease liabilities divided by total equity

Capital Expenditure

During the Year, the Group’s capital expenditure amounted to HK$38.5 million (2021: HK$23.4 million), which was mainly
used in renovation of retail outlets, purchase of a property in New Zealand and purchase of machinery and equipment for
production and operation purposes.

Major Investment, Acquisitions and Disposals

During the Year, the Group did not have any major investment, acquisitions and disposals.

Charges over Assets of the Group

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s net property value of HK$9.5 million (2021: HK$10.4 million) has been pledged as
securities for bank borrowings. Such bank borrowings in Australian dollars bears interest at 1.5% plus the bank bill rate in
Australia per annum and is wholly repayable in 2023.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group’s main business operations are conducted in Hong Kong and other overseas countries/regions. The
transactions, monetary assets and liabilities of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi and US
dollar. During the Year, the fluctuation in the exchange rates of these currencies did not have material impact on the Group.

The Group did not engage in any derivatives activities and did not commit to any financial instrument to hedge its foreign
exchange exposure during the Year.
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8.8 15.4

2.8% 3.6%

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BILEE

2022 2021
HK$’000 T % T HK$’000 F & T
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OWNED PRODUCTS

HA EE il

ZEFRNL
Angong Niuhuang Wan

Functions: To clear heat, remove toxin, settle fright,
open the orifices. Febrile disease caused by pathogenic
factors entering the pericardium, high fever and fright

syncope, loss of consciousness, delirious speech;
Wind-stroke coma, encephalitis, meningitis, toxic

encephalopathy, cerebral hemorrhage and septicemia

with the pattern mentioned above.

DR ERES HARER BRAR BALE SRER
MEWEE PEERREA - BEEL . hEMERE - B B

MIfE R E 5% R o

Active ingredients: Bovis Calculus, Moschus,
Margarita, Cinnabaris, Realgar, Coptidis Rhizoma,

Scutellariae Radix, Gardeniae Fructus, Curcumae Radix,
Borneolum Syntheticum, Powdered Buffalo Horn Extract

BRRG  £85 BE D% 40 4F FE-
B’ - B2 kR KEBRED

Antrodia camphorata plays an important role in

protecting liver and improving metabolism,

reducing the rate of acute liver injury caused by
alcohol, anti-oxidation, maintaining cardiovascular
health and regulating blood glucose level, as well

as regulating immune function.

122 AERB R - REFRE - B8 - 8|

HEOMERERBEMEEER -
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lucidum spores

BRA  mERF

Sporoderm-broken
Ganoderma Lucidum
Spores Powder Capsules

Functions: To enhance immunity. For
the elderly and the frail or the people
with low immune function, and for
patients after surgery or medication.

DR wmeE L ARFERE 8B5S
BERERRIEETAL URFHRAE
faBEENEE  BREE REEMR-

Active ingredient: Ganoderma

B2
935 B %%
Tong Ren Tang

Lingzhi Vitality
Capsules

Functions: To
enhance immunity
and improve sleep.

R EmeE s
AR ©

Active ingredient:
Ganoderma spores and
Ganoderma Extract

BRRG  22nT -
BRI

Prebiotics

70 5% 1 AR
Cranberry
Collagen Prebiotics

This product contains
high-quality fructo-
oligosaccharide as major
ingredient, formulated with
cranberry powder and
marine collagen peptides
and is manufactured by a
modern technology.

FREREEERBRERR
B RUEHERY - BF
BREAMK  KARKIE

Annual Report 2022

[ F R
Reviving Prebiotics

This product contains high-quality
fructo-oligosaccharide

as major ingredient, formulated with
Astragalus extract, Scrophulariaceae
extract and Angelica Sinensis Extract,
and is manufactured by a modern
technology. It is suitable for people
who suffer from both Qi deficiency
and poor blood circulation and
people with poor intestine activity.

FRERBEEBRRERRE  BUE
BRI - Z2RIMAESERY -

RARKITERRMA - BARKNHR
EREABEIRERBARNBEERE -

Korean Red Ginseng & Red
Ginseng Granule Tea

The Korean Red Ginseng
products come from Geumsan
County in South Chungcheong
Province, a place known as the
home of ginseng, and are
manufactured by traditional
preparation method of Korean
Red Ginseng. Korean Red
Ginseng can strengthen the
immune system, increase blood
circulation, antioxidant, improve
memory and fight fatigue.

EBAZERREEEAZ ZHE
ERERILES - RABEASESR
MITEERMA - SBASEE
AR N  MRRE « 7Ef
RENRE  MEELEEDN -

Cervus Elaphus Linnacus
Collagen Capsule

The product contains
collagen peptides that are
produced by hydrolysis of
the scales of Ocean Lutjanus
Sanguineus via an unique
Japanese developed
enzymatic technology,
formulated with Milk Mineral
Salt and Cervus Elaphus
Linnaeus, and is
manufactured by a modern
technology.

RRBEARFERRSAHER

Has BABREEZRIBE

MEREEEBREAM B

LA BENE - SREHHE

B RRRARKIER
BMAL

RBALZhA
3 K 2 51

Korean Red Ginseng &
Healthy Drink Sticks

The product selects fruits
in nature by the principle
of Five Elements with its
symbolic colors, together
with Korean ginseng. It
contains prebiotics
(oligofructose) to support
gut health. The addition
of marine collagen
supports skin elasticity.

FREEERRDASTE
BXR  BaYERHREN
MEESESHR - 928
BRERESET(NREE
2Ry BesERE -
SMARBRERD @ BMK
M -

Otbhers

B R & F ik
Marine Collagen Peptide

The product is made of marine
collagen peptides imported from
Japan. These peptides are got by
enzymatic degradation of scales of
Lutjanus Sanguineus by the specific
technology. It is easily digested and
absorbed by human body due to its
properties of small molecular weight
and high water-solubility. This product
is prepared as oral tablets with grape
seed extracts and jujube extracts by
the advanced modern process.

AREANBAEDSETBREQK =
LA HRAN SR RE - BBBERI
ETEEIMER - 2 7R/ BAR
X BHWABRY - RUEAEIFEEN
RERE  RASENTEHKARS
BRAGE -

FHREALS R Bk

Korean Red Ginseng
Jelly Stick

Concentrated Korean ginseng
essence that invigorates gi and blood
is matched with different natural fruit
flavors, including pomegranate,
mango, peach, passion fruit, omija
and bellflower, and added prebiotics
(fructooligosaccharides), marine
collagen or Chinese herbal medicines
respectively, helping to maintain
intestinal health and increase skin
elasticity.

DR ENNEESESRERE &
UARXRAKROK BFEAR T
R -EZH BER E®RFRERLO
bR o W& B INAZE T (RBRE)
FRREORTEES  FHERFEE
fRER IS o

Fii 40 25 2 b
Ultra Fine Pearl
Powder

The product helps
settle spirit and
convulsion, clear
the liver and
improve vision. It is
used for treating
fright palpitation
and fearful
throbbing, vexation
and insomnia, etc..

TRERREER
BERFAENDN B
AREEEN - W&
KIRSEAR o

2 FE D £ ks
FRER B

Korean Black
Ginseng Jung

The ginsenosides and
nutrients in black ginseng are
more readily absorbed by our
body after nine cycles of
steaming and drying refined
processes, promote the
antioxidation, improve
immunity and memory, reduce
fatigue status, improve blood
circulation, etc..

Rl mEFNKEEREBR
BNIRERN AR R BB
EHNAZETRERESRA
R REREE BET

B meommnEt BEREN -

RELED RBREMRE - K
EMBER/RE -

Rhodia
ALFL R -

ALEUR B %
RERAL R RIBEE

Rhodiola Rosea Capsule
Blueberry & Rhodiola
Rosea Capsule

Rhodiola grows in high and cold
areas. It helps enhance immunity,
anti-hypoxic, anti-fatigue,
radiation resistance and

delaying of aging in the

body.

HMER-—RERESR
Wi AERER
& RS UK

B G a8 RIE
ERBEREZ
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MAJOR AWARDS
HOKAEIH

1

¥,
Wi
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Hong Kong Takung Wenhui Media
Group Awards
A T R S B 18 4 T 4 0

The Most Valuable Brand in Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area

L WKV [ e L R 5

Hong Kong Heritage Foundation Awards
7 B HUR L G B IR

2022 GBA Top 100 Enterprises Inheritance Award
2022 K ¥ 1 7 A S R OK BE

ARC Award 2022

2022 4 ARC 4F i 5% it 52

Design award for 2021 Annual Report
2021 4F ik wt 88

Award for Public Welfare
Fhotr O 1 B ER AL B

Awarded by Community Medical and Education
Services Association (HK)

P 7 o8 e R i R B O A

01 Gold Medal Award 2022
01 4> % 5 ) K 3% 2022
Outstanding Chinese Medicine Brand
4 1 e 5 2 5

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited

7

10

ARC AWARDS

The 12th China Securities Golden Bauhinia Award
58 12 i o R 7 4 R A
e The Best Listed Company
IetE EliAH
e OQutstanding Entrepreneur of the Year 2022
2022 45 B wi A R

The Most Influential Brand in Asia 2022
2022 45 57 P b 5 L 52 5B g il R 3

Most Trustworthy Brand (Traditional Chinese Medicine)
SR AL £ 5 o ML 250 v 5 )

Global Service Practice Case 2022
2022 4% BR IR 55 B i & 0

Awarded by China International Fair for Trade in Services

FH e B O 5 B 0 28 5 o A

The 7th International Award for Contribution to
Chinese Medicine

e 5 9 I i R B

Awarded by the World Federation of Chinese Medicine Societies
F At 5 e 0 28 B U 1 7 AR

HKCT Business Award 2022
HROK [ 8 56 Hh B 2 i 2022

Awarded by Hong Kong Commercial Times
H Hong Kong Commercial Times /i #

Annual Report 2022

ORGANISATION CHART
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TRT LTD.
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TRT International
Natural-Pharm
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-

TRT Tong Xin
Tong Le

AR D%

.

TRT (Macau)
423 (ML)

TRT (Singapore)
e 4= (R A3k )

Honour Essence

KRERS

.

TRT (Seoul)
[ % ()

*

TRT (Gulf)
I A (g %)

TRT Herbal
Heritage

[FEs-gULE £

TRT (Brunei)
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.

TRT (Hainan)
TR -3 (¥ )

.

Sichuan Sihui

TRT (Thailand)
4= (e )

TRT (Malaysia)
[

(GE )

-
TRT (Thai Boon
Boong)

=3 (RO )

-
TRT Fook Ming
Tang
T A )

TRT E-commerce

-

Dianorm Biotech
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|
R

OCEANIA

TRT (Australia)
[

(BRAIE)

-

TRT (Melbourne)
=% (REA)

-

Herb Booth

TRT (Auckland)
il %4
(€571 )]

-

TRT Management
[ 3 4 B

M

AMERICA

TRT (Canada)
22 (I K)

“*

TRT (Toronto)
OERAEZ ES)

TRT (Vancouver)
I 4% (H 7 )

TRT US Holding
[ 4 3 S R 7

TRT (Los Angeles)
[~ 2 (A5 5%)

-

TRT Ming Qi
T3 R

TRT Concord
[ A= 3 g A

.

TRT (San Gabriel)
i 422 (B 2 )

ik

EUROPE

TRT (Poland)
IF A2 (Y )

s

TRT (Leeds)
1% (R %)

-
TRT
Europe Holding
T A 2 I 4 e

TRT (Pudu)
4% (5 HE )

TRT (Czech)
4= (HE )

-

TRT (Sweden)
=3 (Gt

TRT (Berlin)
T A3 (A1 BK)

TRT (Swiss)
4% (i L)

-

TRT Giomi
=2 T L

This chart is produced based on
the information as at 31 December 2022.
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This report is the 2022 Environmental, Social and Governance Report (referred as the “Report” in the section headed “ESG
Report”) published by Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group” or “We”) for the purpose of disclosure of the Group’s policies, measures and performances
related to corporate social responsibility and sustainable development and performance during the period from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2022 (the “Year”).

REPORTING SCOPE

The Report covers the Group’s core businesses of the Year which include manufacturing, retail and wholesale of Chinese
medicine products and healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments on the business
operations of the Group located in Asia, Oceania, the Americas and Europe. Operating sites were updated in the Year,
details of which please refer to page 41 of the Report.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) as set
out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and follows the four reporting
principles (materiality, consistency, balance and quantitative) for disclosure.
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ESG REPORT
ABOUT THE REPORT

Reporting Principles Definitions

Materiality A report should include ESG
issues that have significant
impacts on the Group and its
stakeholders.

Consistency A report should use consistent

methodologies on statistics to

allow for meaningful
comparisons of data over time.

Balance A report should provide an
unbiased picture of the
performance in respect of ESG
issues and avoid any possible
inappropriate influence on a
decision or judgement to be
made by report readers.

Quantitative KPIs relating to historical data

should be measurable and,

where appropriate, comparable

in order to evaluate and validate
the effectiveness of ESG policies
and management systems.

Responses of the Group

During the Year, the Group invited internal and external
stakeholders to conduct online surveys to identify
material environmental and social issues and determine
the key disclosure content of the Report.

Unless otherwise stated, the statistical approach used in
the Report is consistent with those used previously to
ensure comparable data.

The Group complies with the principles of impartiality in
the preparation of the Report.

The Group continuously recorded KPIs and made
disclosure in a quantitative manner, where practicable. In
addition, the Group engaged an independent professional
consultant to conduct carbon assessments in accordance
with international and local standards to ensure the
accuracy of the data of KPlIs in respect of the environment.

The Group made disclosure on related KPIs in a
quantitative manner.

The section headed “Content Index” on the last chapter of the Report is available for quick reference.

CONFIRMATION AND APPROVAL

All the qualitative and quantitative information cited in the Report is sourced from the Group’s public information, official
documents and related statistical data. The Report was confirmed and approved by the Board of the Group on 13 March

2023.

FEEDBACK AND OPINIONS

We believe that the opinions of different stakeholders will help strengthen the corporate sustainability performance and
lead the Group to continuous improvement. If you have any questions or suggestions about the Group’s sustainability-
related matters, the content of this Report or the form of reporting, please contact the Group by email

(ir@tongrentangcm.com).
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ESG REPORT
CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

In the post-pandemic era, governments around the world have gradually relaxed their anti-pandemic policies, bringing
opportunities for business and social recovery. In this positive social atmosphere, the Group continued to adhere to the
principle of providing high-quality Chinese medicine services and products for the public, helping the public to maintain
personal health, and continued to work with the society to face the impact of the epidemic and tide over the difficulties
together.

With international and national long-term goals for climate change, the Group actively implements various environmental
management measures in response to China’s “dual carbon” goals and the Hong Kong government’s “carbon neutrality”
target, so as to reduce the burden of business operations on the environment. Meanwhile, the Group will gradually
formulate plans for setting sustainable development strategies and goals based on its business development, and set up
sustainable social and economic system across other sectors.

As an important member of the local Chinese medicine industry, the Group adheres to operational compliance and
stability, responds to the expectations of the society and the industry, and is committed to providing customers with
high-quality products and services. The Group will continue to focus on its responsibilities and implement a compliant and
sustainable operation model in various aspects to maintain the professional standards of the industry.

The Group understands the importance of building a professional talent pool to the TCM industry and the Group’s
operation and development, and is committed to setting up a suitable employment system for employees, creating a
working environment for their growth, maintaining employees’ performances, and continuously training professional talents.

Looking forward, under the leadership of the Board and with the support of various stakeholders, the Group will continue
to monitor its operating performance sincerely, establish an appropriate employment system, and move towards a green
operation model to achieve sustainable business development.

Ding Yong Ling
Chairman
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KR  AKESHEUESEAE  CRHREBERSARTHFENLEEN  FRTENERKE-

FEERPBVEXATEHTEBTERERALERRNERN RO/ TTESENERYNE  FEARRETENIH
RE - HFAFEIRE - THEHIRIEEAS -

RERR  ARERESFTENEERZFOENIET  SEFEUEBPNEEEELERR  EYSENERER  BERge
EEES  ERAUBENEBRRE -
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RESPONSIBLE GOVERNANCE

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE ON SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

Governance System

The Group has always adhered to the ideology of “stable development and cultural inheritance”, and has established a
clear and effective governance system to foster a stable and sustainable corporate development. The Board recognises
the importance of balanced development in the three ESG aspects, and is responsible for monitoring the ESG aspects
during operation through established corporate governance practices and procedures to maintain its sustainability
governance standards. In addition to monitoring and confirming this report, the Board is also responsible for overseeing
the risk management and internal control systems, reviewing their effectiveness regularly, determining the Group’s risk
factors, reviewing existing and potential risks and countermeasures, and reviewing risk management reports. The Group
will continue to understand its own performance and look for improvement solutions to strengthen its regulatory system
and stability.

The Group has been operating in a progressive manner, so as to maintain its stability while improving its corporate
management performance and sustainability governance standards. We are reviewing the establishment of an ESG
structure that incorporate the Board, the management and major departments, with an aim to identify and respond to
relevant opportunities and risks through regular reviews and formulation of sustainable development strategies and
policies. To this end, the Group will continue to review the existing governance structure, to support the Board, the
management and all functional departments to work together to achieve long-term and sustainable development.

Risk Management

Globalisation, technological development, climate change and the pandemic have brought different levels of risks and
opportunities to the global environmental and social development. In order to achieve effective risk management and
ensure timely response, the Group has established a risk management and internal control system, and the Board is
responsible for continuously monitoring and reviewing its effectiveness. The Board also determines the acceptable risk
factors under the changing environment, monitors the risk management framework, and reviews the existing and potential
risks and the relevant countermeasures. At the same time, the Group has set up a risk management team to monitor the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems, and monitor any changes in risks, and reports and
submits risk management reports to the Audit Committee and the Board on a half-yearly basis.

To identify, evaluate and manage the significant risks, the Group implements the 5 major components of risk management
and internal control framework and the “3 lines of defense” model. Details of the related risk management and internal
control system, please refer to pages 152 to 159 of the Annual Report.

] A B
Binm#

FEB-EFRFIEEXE UEAINES BYUARKANNELRRR  UAERERUHENLERR -EST90
BE HEREA-ASBTHBRNERNE AEEBCHENCXERFARER EBEETHNRE HEREARS
H ABUBEBRELAKT RTEBRERARS  EFSTEEEEAREERABEZRS  THRREEARM - 7
EASENABREE FHRARBEABREHER UREZEREERSS -FAEESTHEBEFREARSRHE
AR MaEEERGREBEM -

FEB-BEUNRLENEELE  ARRENEEN  ARRALCXERXRARTFEZRERKT - HMEHREILA
B EEENIZMMARNRE HERELARE PEZBTHRTRAFTISERREBRREE - S5 RELEE
HEBERER AEEULBER  BHERARENERREE UHESS EEERSBENEZERAES  £ET—2 #
BERRARTFENER -

Jal B 4 B

2R BNEBER fSRECREEARTEZEAZHRRERUTURFTRTIARENERREE - AEINEFRNERE
BNRARBNEHTE  ARECEVAREERANERRAS  YHESSREFEEERRNEARE - ESETE
HERENES BXTRISENNERER  EFXAREEER  URENRERETRRREBEYIER -RE - K&
ERVEREE A ERRABEERABEERSNRY  UREFTABEE  IS¥FOAERZEEERESTERRR
REBREERS -

AEBERAREERANELELRTNRIEFTERZR [ZERE I ERX > 85 - FEREEEANVEE - FEEREER
ADERRGNFERS BB AFERE152E159H
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Control
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EREEE BARE

Five Components “3 lines of defense” Model
hETE [=EMER] EX

In addition, the Group has established clear risk monitoring procedures so as to identify and respond to relevant risks
and opportunities.

Boh - REBEC L ENNEREERF - UBREAI R EEARNERRES -

Risk Risk
Assessment Monitoring
[ B T [E B B 2

Risk Risk
Identification Response Reporting
JEB e 8 B B JER i EE

Major Risks
Related to ESG
HEE  HER

EIRMEEZ Impact(s) Major Measure(s)

FERR -2 TERYIER

Policy Risk The Group’s TCM products, TCM, The Group prevents risks by collecting and mastering the

BUR B b healthcare consultation, and food laws, regulations and policies of the country/region where
or health products are subject to the project is located, improving the management system

regulatory supervision. If the Group of overseas companies, strengthening the construction of
fails to meet the requirements of overseas product quality control systems, regular auditing
laws and regulations, it may cause and monitoring, enhancing compliance awareness,
regulatory risks in the TCM industry introducing talents, and treating contract terms carefully.
or food and health products. FEERBREZREERMEAR MWEEEERRBEK
AEENHEER B - REBH ZSEICAEEHE  NBREREBIERREESHER -
RERBIRBRAZTEREE AR THRHEE HRBAREBHE - AFSlE  BEHSSEMK
FEEEERER  BUREETE RESAPBEHER -

FETELIRARIRRRERER

m - (1
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Major Risks
Related to ESG
BRI R
ERMEREZ
FERRK

Quality Risk
BEERB

 ESG REPORT
i ‘_‘RESPONSIBLE GOVERNANCE

Impact(s)
®e

Quality Risk can be divided into
four main areas, namely
procurement, production, testing
and sales: If the quality of raw
materials, proprietary Chinese
medicine and herbal pieces
provided by suppliers does not
meet the requirements, risk on
quality of procurement may occur;
If there is inadequate control over
the production process, risk on
quality of production may occur; If
there is lack of testing procedures
or if the procedures are not
stringent, it may result in products
in poor quality, and mixed with
other prohibited ingredients, and
risks on quality of product testing
may occur; If there are quality
problems on the sale of Group’s
Owned Products and Non-Owned
Products, the manufacturers and
distributors of the products will
bear the responsibility. If the
products are not put off-shelf and
recalled in time, there may be a risk
on quality liability for product sales.
EERRTASARE £E B
B HEHMALE : BHERRMYM
WERM  ARERRSRETFEE
R BBEUREERBEERAKR &
LEBREETR  HAAUREEE
EEERR  BRZEARE - B8
FTRBREHMERS  BHREMEDR
B7 BEUEELEERRIZEER
b R AEEEERRERRIERE
EmHREEMNE SHERNEE
ENBHERESE  MRRGHE
mETEE B BERRREEE
EEREEEERAR -

Major Measure(s)
TEREYIEE

* Major measures to address the Risk on Quality of
Procurement: Through materials testing, the Group
prohibits unqualified raw materials and auxiliary
materials from flowing into the production process; The
Group enforces the suppliers on proprietary Chinese
medicine to strictly implement product quality standards
in various countries and regions, evaluates and reviews
export suppliers on herbal pieces to ensure quality;
Retail outlets in each regions gradually improve
procurement and supplier management procedures to
strengthen compliance procedures.
RBEERAMBNEIZREER  BEHYRETHRA > K&
EREFESKRNEMBRBHERALEERE  A5EER
ERFREHEFBRATEERIRREENERRER
2 HBRAEOMHERETIEERZ  BRRE BTHBE
TEAMBLS TERBRHEEFEERE  RILERRE -

* Major measures to address the Risk on Quality of
Production: The production management of the Group
strictly follows relevant regulations, workers in the
production workshop shall undergo training on
production techniques and pass the corresponding
examination. Production team leaders are thereof held
accountable for the production quality. Each production
process is recorded in details to ensure that it is
operated in accordance with established procedures.
SEEERBNIERYER  AEELEEEERENT
HERE £EBBEIXALBEERMBIMNEK
HEEENMMARRELEERESE  AEBET IR
BHMARE  BRERUENTIFRERE -

e Major measures to address the Risk on Quality of
Product Testing: The quality standards for products of
the Group are in strict accordance with the laws and
regulations of the relevant countries or regions.
Processes of product inspection are refined while
standard operating procedures for each inspection
methods are in place and details records are made. The
Group regularly calibrates measuring instruments to
ensure the accuracy and credibility of test results.
EnBiEERBNIZREREE  ARENEREER
Y RAARE RS i BA R ERBRIERE  BBAF
EUHERERERARFMALE A E2EFETES
RE » BARBBERERAE -

e Major measures to address the Risk on Liability from
Quality of Marketed Products: The Group keeps abreast
of the changes in regulations on the external packaging
and labelling of products in and outside the PRC; Retail
outlets in some regions have drafted management
procedures for quality risk reporting, pharmacovigilance
and product recall and destruction to safeguard the
quality of marketed products.
HEEREEEFERABNTIEREER  ASEERZER
FEENIERDPEEEBNEREL  BOBLEZTEL
iy 16 E i A VR B R B B R B 7 W [ BE 8K SR 5 AR RE
EERE REHEERME -

Major Risks
Related to ESG
BHRIE B8R
ERMEREZ
FERK

Business
Partner Risk
EBEEBH
[ Bz

External
Consignment
Business Risk
INEBEFEMT
E 30

Price Risk
(Procurement
Price)
BEE
(FREBEE)

Impact(s)
g

The Group may experience weak
cooperation due to improper
selection of partners, poor
management coordination ability,
incomplete information
communication, or non-compliance
with cooperation contracts, which
may affect the Group’s business
development and adversely affect
its operating results and financial
position.
FEETREGEBHNERTE -
EEHAERDE  EMBBETBE -
FPEFEERNERR  #35HaE
EE5  RELAEEBRNEXK -8
REXBERVBRTBERFFNZE -

Due to the production needs, the
Group has the opportunity to
engage external manufacturers for
consignment tasks. The procedures
and products may fluctuate due to
equipment or other factors of
various manufacturers.
HREREEME  AEEEHKREE
FRBEEBMETNIIF - ERWN
BFEREGIERATEALEEMNRE
REMEE > MEHRKE -

The prices of TCM herbs may
fluctuate significantly due to factors
such as production volume and
demand for TCM herbs,
environmental protection and
contingencies (such as climate
disasters and epidemic outbreaks)
and affect the entire industry chain
and accordingly the procurement
prices of raw materials, auxiliary
materials and proprietary Chinese
medicine, thereby increasing the
Group’s uncertainty in cost control.
HRPEMNER TR -BRRE
BREM(RELE RBRH)ER
BRE SIBHEMNERELEKRE
ENRE SEBRGEXE R
B BRE R RENRBERBZR
BRE  EMAEEHRAEENT
BEM o

R ORREE

BEfH

Major Measure(s)
TEREYIEE

In strict accordance with the various requirements, and
according to a supplier audit system, the Group conducts
audits on suppliers, updates supplier qualifications, and
also ensures that suppliers meet the Group’s relevant
requirements. In addition, the Group strictly implements the
review system for the new suppliers who cooperated for
the first time, carries out bulk purchases when conditions
permit, operates in accordance with the normal
procurement process, and explores operations such as
import and export procedures, taxation, customs clearance,
and transportation.

AEBBREZEREEIERER  REGEHEHIE - Hit
EEETET I EFHEREE  BRUBEFITSEAE
EHEER - B/ HREXSENHRES  AEEREH
THHEBRNEZHE  EREATT BT NERERE
RBESRBREERE RREHOFE  HK - 8- &
WEBRE-

The Group strictly complies with the requirements of the
Consignment Production Management Measures (Trial) (Z&
FLEEBEEPA (317))) and the Product and Service and
Process Control Quality Management System (Trial) ({ZE f
HRERBREEFHEESTESIE)(EIT)) to consign and
regulate the products and performance of relevant external
manufacturers, so as to ensure the stability of the whole
process.

AEEBREREB(ETREEEEREIZE (A7) MKERERK
RBREHEEEEHE) (AT MWER  ZEREEREAD
HEEFNEMRRR  BRERENEBEM -

e In the process of procurement, the Group controls the
cost for procurement by identifying new suppliers,
diversifying supply channels and comparing prices via
quotations. The Group pays close attention to the
market conditions and policies of TCM herbs so as to
provide timely communication with end-users on
procurement status, the Group can thus have quotations
from suppliers in advance and ensure the most
appropriate price for procurement can be obtained.
AEBERBHEES  SRBEMFMUED  HEMHE
BB ZHAGKE  BEARBEA  BYBEPENT
B PEMBEBR REEKHEREFBERELSSER
RATMERAE  BRUSSENERETRE -

¢ In order to cope with the increase in the procurement
price of certain scare TCM herbs, the Group actively
purchases such herbs in the international market as

inventory.
REHSENZHENNRBER LA FEEBEREER
mISREERMMER S -
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Major Risks
Related to ESG
BRI R
ERMEREZ

FTE@ME

Intellectual
Property Risk
S R B

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited

Impact(s)

g

Risk on Intellectual Property Rights
can be divided into three main
areas, namely overseas registration
of intellectual property rights,
trademark licensing agreements
and intellectual property rights. In
the event that the trademark “Tong
Ren Tang” is registered by any
other entity or individual or a patent
application is filed overseas, there
will be risks of overseas intellectual
property registration; If the Parent
Group terminates or amends the
“Tong Ren Tang” trademark license
agreement and authorization letter
entered into with the Group, there
may be risks on trademark license
agreement; If competitors copy the
Group’s research and development
results, there may be intellectual
property risks occurring.
AEERRRTAD RBINBERE
=t BEFATmS  ARERL=
REHE: &EBLCE|BEEEMK
HibBE U A AT EFERE
BEAREEEBMIBERZIME
B EESEEK LB EAEEE
AZIECE  BERESNRERE
B EAREEESETAHER
B ERFEFERASEGEK
R BEURELEANBERRR -

Major Measure(s)
FTERHIER

Major measures to address the Risk on Overseas
Registration of Intellectual Property Rights. Through the
agent appointed by the Parent Group, the Group
monitors the use of trademark of “Tong Ren Tang”
overseas and sees if the trademark has been registered
by any other entity or individual or if any patents have
been filed overseas.
BHMEEREMEARNEIZREER  AEEEREE
EEENREBEEZSIMIRCEIFERE  EYWEEIRE
BERAEMENCREATMIEFKABHER -

Major measures to address the Risk on Trademark
Licensing Agreements: The Group closely
communicates with the Parent Group, and promptly
updates and formulates contingency measures where
there is any change to trademark licensing agreements
made by the Parent Group.
BAEFAHERRNEIEREER  AEEETESEE
BE NBEEHBERESNEEMNEZE  F-KER
B E I HIEEERIERE

Major measures to address the Risk on Intellectual
Property Rights: The Group cooperates with
professional institutions and commissions them to apply
for various intellectual property rights and patents for
the Group’s achievement in research and development.
MBEERRBRNEIEZREEER  AEEEEEKBESE -
ZAHRAAEEAMBRRAFSEHAAERE R -

Annual Report 2022

MANAGEMENT ON COMPLIANCE

It is fundamental for the Group to operate in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. The Group understands

REE - AL KB R
| IR

that non-compliance with laws and regulations will have an impact on the Group at different levels, ranging from business
operations and reputation to penalties and litigations. As various national laws, regulations and policies in the TCM industry
continue to be refined and implemented, the Group will put utmost importance on ensuring operational compliance as it
always does, as well as formulate and implement a series of internal policies and systems so as to strengthen the
compliance management. Our Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s policies and practices formulated
as required by legal and regulatory requirements, while the Board reviews the Group’s compliance on an annual basis.

During the Year, the Group had found no non-compliance in relation to each area in ESG.

A RE

BIMEEANERERFARAEEARLEETNELRER - A REERAEREZER AP AAEEATRTIEAEANEE 1
ERRE - F8 MARFAS BEPBETEXFEEAEIALARRTEMCER  FAEEREERRREESRAER
B YEHERBRE-RIANPHRRAE  BLEREE BRZESREEEASATHETEIEREEERNWER
RES ESSRSFRMAEEARER -

Fr o AEESEERE HEREATHBEBNELIERER -

Aspects Issue(s)
R 3

S\l l=i=Il Emissions

B 29587

The Group’s policies
AEBEBEE

e Measures on the Administration of
Environmental Protection of
Production Bases
(EEEMRBRESENL)

e The Medical Waste Treatment
Methods
(ERENEERE)

¢ Rules on Management of
Laboratory Waste
(ERZEERNEERE)

Principal Laws and Regulations in
Hong Kong (including but not

limited to)
ERTEEFER (BEERRR)

e Air Pollution Control Ordinance
(Z=RIBREFHRHD

e Ozone Layer Protection Ordinance
CRELGE TG

e Water Pollution Control Ordinance
K5 RE HIRB1D

e Waste Disposal Ordinance
CBE D 52 22 5 451 )

e Codes of Practice for the
Management of Clinical Waste
(EBREYERE IT/EFA)

e Hazardous Chemicals Control
Ordinance

(BELERERIRH)

Use of resources
EREA

e Measures on the Administration of
Environmental Protection of
Production Bases
(EEEMIRERESTEIE)

Not applicable
TEH

Environment and
natural resources
BRERXAER

e Measures on the Administration of
Environmental Protection of
Production Bases
(EEEMRBRESERZE)

e Product Eco-responsibility
Ordinance
(EmBREEERG)

e Environmental Impact Assessment
Ordinance

(REBEEFEEAGD

LERCEREBRARA | —B=FFHK
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B A REBEMYE
; HIEE®E :

ol

| r ]
' Principal Laws and Regulations in Principal Laws and Regulations in . L B
J Hong Kong (including but not Hong Kong (including but not u
Aspects Issue(s) The Group’s policies limited to) Aspects Issue(s) The Group’s policies limited to)
] EE AEEBE BEXEAEMER (BEETRR) ] EE AEBEBR BEXTEEMER (BEETRR)
Employee Employment e Staff Manual ¢ Employment Ordinance Operation Supply chain e Material Procurement Not applicable
8T EE (ETEm) EEIEH)) @iE management Management Rules TiEA
Rules on Management of e Employees’ Compensation HEEEE CIRRIBERAR)
Implementation of Employment Ordinance ° SupplleriManagement Rules
Contracts (BB EEH) (REEEERE) _
(EEENEREERE) e Minimum Wage Ordinance ° (Cé‘ol\cl)lg)Manufacturmg Practise
KTz
. iilinalﬁéf:ﬂ: ?Privacy) Ordinance (£EHEEEREGMP)
) T ¢ |nternational Standard 1SO22000:
anq various discrimination 2018 Food Safety Management
ordinances System
CEA SR (A1) #761) R % 3R (BB 1S022000:2018 B R R
s 2EERER)
Health and safety Rules on Management of Retailing e Occupational Safety and Health * Hazard Anglysns T G
BREEZS Safety Ordinance Control Points (HACCP)
- w BEDMEZE 3 (HACCP
(BEE2EERR) (B¥E 2 REFHED) (BEIHEREH M HACCP)
Rules on Management of Training Product e Product Quality Standards Chinese Medicines Regulation
(EIEERRE) responsibility (EREERE) (GE 32D
- EmEE ¢ Confidentiality Management Chinese Medicine Ordinance
De-ve.zlopment and S’fff Manual Noﬁ applicable Regulations (R B B AE )
training (STFH) THEH (RBEERRE) Regulation of Registered

B R EIE

Rules on Management of Training
(EHINEEBRRE)

Labour standard
L TR

Staff Manual
(EIFM)

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2022

e Employment Ordinance
ClEMBIRG)

e Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
and various discrimination
ordinances
CEAER (FAB) R 6]) R EEER
37

Business
ethics

[HE =L

Anti-corruption
RES

¢ Rules on Management of Retailing
Safety
(ZEZZ2EEHRE)

e Staff Manual
(BIFM)

e After-sales Product Consultation
and Complaint Handling
Management Rule
(ERERFARRFEEERE
RE)

* Product Return Management Rule
(EmEEEERRE)

* Rules for Management on the
Quality of Retail Services
(ZERBEEEERE)

e Adverse Drug Reaction Report and
Monitoring Procedures
(ERTRRERSMERERE
RE)

e Good Manufacturing Practise
(GMP)

(EEEEEEREHGMP)

¢ |nternational Standard 1SO22000:
2018 Food Safety Management
System
(BIFRZZ#1S022000:2018 B M &
2EBEER)

e Hazard Analysis and Critical
Control Points (HACCP)

(f&E D EEE 2 (HACCP))

e |Internal Audit Manual
SR EBEE 5T F )

e Staff Manual
(B IFMm)

LERCEREBRARA | —B=FFHK

Proprietary Chinese Medicines
AR BT AR

Food Adulteration (Metallic
Contamination) Regulations
(RYBR (SERESE)RH)
Pesticide Residues in Food
Regulation

(R ABREEIZERRA)

Food Safety Ordinance

(RUR G

Undesirable Medical
Advertisements Ordinance
(PRES (BE) 1R46)

Trade Descriptions Ordinance
<7 fm 356 BR AR 45D

Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance

CEAER (FLER) R B0

Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
B L BA B 5 151)
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Communication Channels
BREER

Stakeholders Communication Focus
HHE BRER

COMMUNICATIONS WITH STAKEHOLDERS #51n #% %8

Opinions from different stakeholders" are essential to the Group’s
business development and management, and it allows the Group to
review potential risks and opportunities so that the business practices

We believe the participation of
stakeholders is an important part in the
business development. The stakeholders’
opinion helps the Group to establish

A
#* ey
R

a more comprehensive sustainability
development strategy.

can be more in line with their needs and expectations.

The Group is dedicated to establishing an open and transparent
communication mechanism. During the Year, the Group
communicated and maintained good relationship with its stakeholders
and responded effectively to its stakeholders through various targeted

channels. The specific types of stakeholders, communication focus
and communication channels are shown below:

Stakeholders

K&

The Board, senior
management and
employees

EEE BREEA
ERET

Communication Focus
BREEZY

The Group understands the needs of its employees
through various channels, such as performance appraisals
and questionnaires, and encourages communication
among employees and their supervisors to support
employees’ career development and create a workplace
facilitating advancement, health and safety.
AEEZEBIARARETHREIZR NERTERBEER
T HEASTHIEER UXBETINBERRE LHE
—ERERRE  BREMNZENITHESHR -

i 2 B W] 5 A 0 SR o

f ¢ 0 % 2 BLR 3R
— A EE R > F
5 A Bh A 5 1 S

TEAFHEONRREAEENXBERREES
AEE EPAEEERECNRRERKE <
EBEREEMMNTENHRE -

AEBFNRBAMEANBEELS  ~FEB
EEHHMENRERBSHEERE HEBHER
BFREWER AFEHEREE - ARENEA
MRBBERMRENT

Communication Channels
BEER

e Questionnaires
BERAE

e Suggestion boxes for
employees
BT

e Training programs
EHIRE

e Staff activities
BIES

e Corporate communication
B

M “Stakeholders”, also known as “interested parties” or “interest holders”, refer to groups and individuals who have significant impact on
the business of the group, or those who are affected by the business of the group, including the internal Board, senior management and
employees, external customers and consumers, shareholders, suppliers and business partners, trade associations, government and
regulators, community organisations, potential investors and banks.
[HoE] XBIASEBRL I RESEA EH - ECXNEFFEASE IS EBFIENFENEA  BERAPNESS  SRERE
ABRET BN EFRHEEE  RR - HEBMREBBME  TEHS  BAREERE HEBARS BEREERRTS -
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Shareholders and
Investors

RERKREE

Suppliers and
Business Partners
HERRSERBHE

Customers and
Consumers

EEREEE

Government and
Regulators

B REEHE

Trade Associations
TEGE

Community
HE

The Group holds regular general meetings and discloses
important information by means of annual reports, interim
reports, financial reports, ESG reports, corporate websites
and other disclosure documents to keep investors and
shareholders updated on the Group’s position, results and
ESG performance.
AEEEHRTRRAS  WEBFR - PHRE - BBER
HORE CMERERRS  ARFPUMEMKE S EM
EZEM BREENRRTBAEENGHER - &M
BRI BREREN

Questionnaires

BERE

Regular release of financial
report and data

EH IR E R BIREMG
Shareholders’ meetings and
activities

BRRAEREE

Corporate communications
B

Press releases

il ik kg

Investor relations
communication

REEZERARER

The Group ensures that its suppliers understand and meet
the Group’s expectations and requirements through
screening, auditing and evaluation process, and
communicates regularly with its suppliers and business
partners to strengthen partnerships.

REEEBHE BLRTGEERE  BRUER T BN
AAKEENHERER  UEHEHEFRAEBHEEAEN
e R E o

Questionnaires

BERE

Regular communication
EHEB

Assessment and evaluation
B2

Information sharing
ERHAE

The Group has access to feedback from its customers and
consumers through various channels, such as staff at retail
outlets, customer service hotlines, facsimiles, emails and
social media, and has a mechanism in place to handle
customers’ feedback and complaints appropriately.
FEEEBTRARBNETELRKET FTFREAR &
H EBUREXER WRMEFRHEEENRE LRI
BHUZZREEF REMIR

Customer services hotlines
BRI H#E

Product labelling

BRER

Mails

Eges

Social media communication

HREEEE

The Group liaises with relevant government departments
and regulatory authorities to keep abreast of the latest
legal and regulatory requirements and to ensure
compliance of its operations. Any non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations will be reported to competent
authorities immediately.
AEFHEBFEENPREERBRERE  UEREHE
BERERREREESR NEERMBEEERNE
o AEEKZNEEBEBPIRE -

Regular communication
ERBR

Compliance records
AR

Policy documents

B S

Response to consultation
B

The Group communicates with trade associations on a
regular basis for exchange of any industry information in
order to ensure that its operations comply with industry
standards.

AEEEHRTEBERR  XIRTEEM BREELR
TEEE-

Regular exchange

E R

Participation in the affairs of
trade associations

SRTEHEEH

To better understand and respond to the needs from the
community, the Group organises community activities and
services from time to time and encourages its staff to
support voluntary services.
REFBTHNEELENER  AEEFREHETHLEE
BRI UHBE T XIFE TR -

Fostering community culture
HEXLER

Support to underprivileged
groups

R ESE RS ]

Community services
HER®

LERCEARERAT | B —FFH ek
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Materiality Assessment

To ensure the ESG Report reflects the issues of concern to stakeholders and the Group’s environmental and social impacts
regarding those issues, the Group conducted stakeholder communication and materiality assessment with the assistance
from an independent consultant, to identify the important environmental and social issues. The Group also understands
and responds to the expectations and requirements of its stakeholders through the below procedures on identification of
material issues.

HBPEREAG

BRARN HEREARSERREGEIONE  URALAHEHREYRANU T AOYE  AREEBH L
BEETHHEBBRESMFEUARIETNEARERE - SEUTERHBERINEF  FEMAURS THR
BESHEWHERER -

Identification of Key Stakeholders
HAlEREGE

Step 1 Determining the Issues
STR1BEZRE
Review the past results of stakeholders’ participation and the Guide on the
Stock Exchange to formulate the list of environmental and social issues.
REBENSOESELRRBEZMES))  MRTRERESHEEE -

The Group has reviewed and adjusted its lists of topics and identified 25 issues,
covering four major areas, namely “environmental”, “employment and labour
practices”, “operating practices” and “community investment”.

FEERBRRRYBEBEFLTHAR  XHA250ZE
BMERE| [EEREIER] [EEEH N HERE | MAHEE -

\/

Step 2 Collect Stakeholders’ Opinion
SHR2BERFHERR

Conduct questionnaires through online platform to enable
stakeholders to score the importance of each issue.
ZERALFARBEASHAE  BEHENSERETD

The Group collected a total of 157 questionnaires, among which 131
were from internal stakeholders and 26 were from external stakeholders.
AEBMBEWRE157HERBSE  ER 131 BREARDBEHMDE > 26 3 REIPIFHE ©

\4

Step 3 Identify Material Issues
SRIMBIEEMERE
Independent consultant analyzed the importance of each issue upon stakeholders
and the Group’s business in the materiality assessment.
EEEUTET  BUBBIMSEZEHFOEN
BEEM URBAKEEBNEEM -

»’J)‘J There are a total of 13 material issues during the Year.
Please refer to the results of materiality assessment below for detail.
FEHEIBHEEMER  HFHEFZRUTEEMHNEER -

\

Senior Management Confirmation
and Continuous Improvement
EREEAEBRAREERTE
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Material Change in Material Change in
Issues Issues Materiality Issues Issues Materiality
& EEMEE EEME(L E 7] EEMEE EEMEM

Environment 3215 Training and development v -
2 3
1 Greenhouse gas and air Decrease EANBR
pollutants T Prevention of child labour Decrease
BERERZRTEY BLEET T
2 Sewage Decrease Prevention of forced labour v =
Bk Tk Br LS8 T
RN Waste Decrease Operating Practices &3& 184l
R T PRI B
(P Supply chain _
4 Energy Increase (pEsE
o e e
d VA Responsible procurement Increase
5 Water resources Decrease TS H#
KEIR Tk -
6 Use of resources 1IsBN Product responsibility 4 Increase
: - mEfE L
HR R EmEf o
. i8N Customers satisfaction v/ -
7 Environment and natural Decrease P
EEREE
resources T ) )
BERARER 2{i8 Data and information 4 Decrease
8 Climate change Decrease security T
kRERZZ
RRELE T 21 ngtﬁll %ﬂlt ﬁrt ight v |
9 Environmental compliance v Increase ;g;g;gua PrOREYNGES nt.“f;se
BEARMN E# , ,
VAN Anti-corruption v -
Employment and Labour Practices &K % T &35 RES
1100 | Employment system v Decrease VIR Operational compliance v Increase
EREFE Tk EESHMN L7
11 Diversity, equal v Decrease ity | tment i B1%3
P T Community nvs ment LB R E
anti-discrimination 225 Community needs v Increase
Sl - FEHET HEBR TH
R 21 Community investment -
122 Occupational health and 4 Increase HtERE
safety E#

BERREZ2

Through the questionnaire survey, the <@
Group identified 12 “material issues” HighA / )
located at the upper right of the
materiality matrix curve, covering four
major areas, namely “Environment”,
“Employment and labour practices”,
“Operating practices” and “Community
investment”. Compared with previous
years, material issues including “Product
responsibility”, “Operational compliance”
and “Employment system” have always
maintained a high level of overall concern.
In order to fully consider the issues eo
concerned by stakeholders in various

aspects, the Group once again listed o
“Community needs” as a material issue 25}
to reflect the focuses of different areas.
As a result, totally 13 material issues in Low Importance to Tong Ren Tang’s business
this Year. The results of the materiality & HRECEXBHEERE
assessment have been reported to the

Board for review.

Materiality Analysis
BEEURHT

ot

0% &

HISNENEEMN

Importance to Stakeholders

0
& %o
(c)
®

D

T
wS

BRBEHEE  AEERNT1I2EWREZEMERMSE LR ERMEE] BERE] [BEREIESR] [EEEM]
RIMBERE MAHE - BEFAL  EENFEARERER] [EEARE IR ERIE S EESRSERRBAIE -
ARPEZEFNDENSHBRINGEE  AEEB-RBHEFRIFIAEEUEE  URRTEEBNEIER - Fit
AEABBHEEURE - EENTHARCRXGESEEMN -
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RESPONSIBLE GOVERNANCE LA

iy PRINCIPLE OF ADHERENCE: STRICT By . o
MANAGEMENT, LEGAL COMPLIANCE ji# 82 - 5EaH

A business and working environment NV EE R A B T B
with equality, ethics and compliance is the T 1 32 58 2 A< £ M & B¢ 9%

isciplinary
supervision

KEEE

foundation for the healthy development R EE o

of the Group. Financial I
supervision / supervision
Eji%%g a / . ﬁ'IBZ EI_-E §
S . . \ =
_ . / “Sixin One” \
Anti-corruption /" Supervision
The Group adheres to the three principles of “Virtue”, “Honesty” and “Integrity”, manages its daily operation performance System
in a strict and prudent manner, and strictly prohibits any illegal acts such as bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. \ N y N
In order to strengthen the objectivity and effectiveness of the monitoring system, the independent internal audit department — h r/_\ﬁL_E%J
of the Group is also responsible for overseeing the Group’s business activities, corporate governance and workflow, as 4 A KEEBEZ /
well as independently assessing the effectiveness of internal audit regulations and internal control system, so as to Legal N, ‘/ Inspection
continuously enhance internal control and anti-corruption management. supervision \ { supervision
EREE KEEE
Also, the expectations to and responsibilities of employees are detailed on the “Internal Audit Manual” and “Staff Manual”
to provide guidelines to their daily work, which set out the Group does not allow any disclosure of trade secrets, abuse of
power for personal gains, abuse or infringement of the Company’s property or acceptance of advantages in the name of Audit
the Company under any circumstances. In addition, the Group has set up a supervision office and has an anti-corruption supervision

officer in place, which both are fully responsible for the disciplinary and inspection work of the Group through assessment BIEE
and spot checks. To strengthen the regulatory capacity and scope, any suspected corruption cases can also be reported
by employees to the supervision office by phone calls, email or in person. The Group will formulate corresponding
treatment in accordance with the “six-in-one” supervision system and the “one post with two responsibilities” responsibility
mechanism to achieve all-round compliance operation.

During the Year, the Group provided an average of 5 hours and 4 hours of anti-corruption training for Directors and
employees respectively to remind and ensure compliance with the requirements of relevant laws and regulations as well as
internal policies by internal personnel, hence creating a clean working environment. The training covers anti-corruption and
anti-bribery laws and regulations, as well as case studies of past violations, in which proper ways to handle potential and
actual violations were discussed in particular. During the Year, the Group did not have any corruption lawsuits against the
Group or its employees.

R 815 “One Post\

AEEERFE][H] [EISAER UBREEENEE  SEESLERR BRCAKS 9T KFEREZSET , b with Two :

AR ANBREERANERMRANY AEEBYNAREIEEEEAEENERTD CETARTHERRS - U Supervision iy Responsibilities” Main

REBUFRAREFREFNERABEZRANERE  UBERARNSEERRRESEE - responsibility ; Responsibility responsibility
EEEA . TEEME

BATAC(ABEHFMREIFM PIBEEEINHNEURESEE - AR E THRME . EhaERa T EEAE _ | Mechanism

RTHUTTRBETERT AEANZEARESANALATES AR A DM YSRSRE - i AEERTERY - : [—HEEE ]

AEREHAE FRINRME 2 HAEEECRERIf -EINTRAESE SHARSAERNATERERES B H

B UMBREENREE AEEER (AN B AEBBRAN —HeE | SERNERRNERE  LEH2HLNE N8

BeE .

REAEEDHNREERETIRETHS PER 4 NFHREITHEN - UREERBRABASHEBEEZAEZRRABBEEN
BEXR HERZNIERE - BINBEEREIRREBRNERESR  URBEERTANERNN  EFEERTOMZ
ERBECNERERER - 2F - FEEAARBEEMHHAEBRE THWEITHARMF
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RESPONSIBLE GOVERNANCE

CORRUPTION COMPLAINT
HANDLING PROCEDURES
iR

Employees can report suspected corruption cases anonymously or
in real name to the supervision office via telephone, email or in person

BTIMERER BEBIRSNEERLZFEARNEIERRERTRSE

After receiving the report
EREERE

The supervision department will investigate the case
immediately to understand its nature and authenticity
ERBHSHAREZRYG  BREMERERY

\4

If the report is true If the report is untrue
MBHEE MBHRE

The Group will handle the case within the
scope of authority according to regulations,

The Group explains the content
of the case to avoid recurrence

or refer it to relevant law enforcement of misunderstanding
authorities according to its severity AEEHHRERB(ELERE

FEESERREENFREE BRERHERS
A EH R EREE XA EEARR R

Completion of processing
BRETE

Feedback to whistleblowers

ERREETRER

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2022
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Protection of Privacy and Intellectual Property Rights

The Group attaches great importance to the protection of customer privacy and intellectual property rights, and is
committed to ensuring the confidentiality of all information and the rights of each property holder through internal
procedures such as the “Confidentiality Management Regulations”, “Staff Manual” and “Rules on Management of Retailing
Safety”. Our internal procedures stipulate the staff’s responsibility in keeping information confidential. All staff are not
allowed to disclose customers’ or internal information and data to third parties without prior consent of the Company.
Meanwhile, security training and education on confidentiality are also provided to staff with access to confidential
information to raise their awareness towards confidentiality. No staff is allowed to disclose customers’ personal information
without any prior written consent. To ensure the confidentiality of personal information and data, the Group respects the
rights of all companies, individuals and creators, and expects to respond to the “No Fakes Pledge” of the Hong Kong
Intellectual Property Department and to protect intellectual property rights through internal regulations and external laws.

To further monitor its compliance and confidentiality, if customers or third parties suspect that their privacy or intellectual
property rights have been infringed, concerns or complaints can be submitted through established whistle-blowing
channels, including telephone, email or written requests. The Group will investigate and impose corresponding penalties
according to the reported content.

In addition to internal potential risks, the confidentiality of information may be affected by network security. To avoid
disturbance arisen by hackers or illegal software causing leakage, staff may download software only with the consent of
the Information Technology Department. At the same time, the Information Technology Department may upgrade the mail
defense level in various ways including mailbox security verification and phone SMS verification to further ensure network
security and avoid problems.

A 3 B ok 7 R ot

FEBERREZFBARMBER FHLEBRETERR) (BIFMR(ZEZ2EERABR)ENMRE  BRFE
BEHNREURSERFAANEN -BRMHYATREZEATEIHENRENEL  EFFAESTRTEREHAENER
AE=ZFHBEETAEFRABENREE - BREAR  AEBAAPRREATNEIRHREIFZ2HE  URSEARE
Bl REEEFY  FEEIUTEHIIREZFEAEN -BRTREAAENRHEENREN  AEEEEMEAF - @
ARBIMEENER  MEEBABRERMOES  DEBEBNAREEEN EREERE] URRENRERE -

RE-SEEHSRAURREN  WEFPIEAE=SFERECHBASINBERZZRL  TEBCRINEERRE &
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EE-SHERAKEZR  BRIIATE-

tRACERAEARAT | —B==FFH




'ESG REPORT

OPERATING IN GOOD FAITH BEING DEDICATED AND STRIVE FOR EXCELLENCE

We adhere to the corporate motto of
“Never cut corners on labour and quality,
no matter how complex the process or
how costly the materials” and devote

to the optimization of supply chain and

product quality management, so as to
offer diverse, safe and highly effective
Chinese medicine products.

WHOLE-PROCESS QUALITY
MANAGEMENT

Product safety and quality management

Tong Ren Tang adheres to the principle of “honest operation and
morality” as core value of quality management, follows relevant laws
and regulations, and strictly implements targeted internal procedures
such as “Product Quality Standards” and “Regulations on the
Reporting and Monitoring of Adverse Drug Reactions”. The Group
upholds good product quality to ensure all Chinese medicine products
provided to our customers are excellent and complied with relevant
laws and regulations. The Group’s modern Production and R&D Base
in Tai Po, Hong Kong obtained the GMP (Good Manufacturing
Practice) certification for Proprietary Chinese medicine,
1SO22000:2005 (Food Safety Management Systems) and the HACCP
(Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Points) certifications, and all
Chinese medicine products produced and sold by the Group are
registered with the Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong and
complied with international and local standards.

To ensure the quality of Owned Products, we adopt a stringent quality
standard. From material procurement, reception and storage,
production and even inspection, we formulate management and
operational guidelines in accordance with the quality requirement of
each process, and stipulate the duties of responsible functional
departments and key personnel so as to ensure that the arrangement
on its production process and product quality are excellent and
complied with relevant laws and regulations.

BB [N ELABRE
AL R SABBD
S 1 W9 s B 50 % Ak RE G
REMMEEH » BHEFPRE
Z oAb ~ &2 K B g
%Hn °

ZRAEERFH

B REREH

B-E-—UBzRIHAEHEE HBARIFHRE
EEZOER BEMEBEAEIERBEDT
<<En”u’%£§ SE) (ERTRRERSMENEE
BRE)SHEUENADRE - AKERERINE
REZE BRAEFRUEGHERERNPHEE
B AEERNBEBABNRERCEEFZEE N
BEEBTREGMP (LELEEEFIRE) RE -
B B2 #1S022000 : 2005 B MEZ 2 EHEAR
HACCP (BESMEEEHIH) BE » LEEBF
BHETHZESAMAERREER  UBEAFR
BEEREENERITEEBRAMAZE -
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EERRNEBERNE-—EEERRFES
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eiling Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2022

Process
bii%

Step 1
Materials
Processing
TR
Yl

3 K

Step 2
Production
SR—
EEBRRE

Step 3
Inspection

Major Quality Control Measures
TEEEEEREK

e Carry out field inspection for the growing, collection and processing environment of raw
materials, auxiliary materials and packaging materials
BEERENE HANERMHNES  REREERR

e Upon arriving manufacturing plants, materials are subject to preliminary inspection for its
variety, specification and packaging quality etc., and then quality checked by quality
department after passed
VRERE  IPBREERERKNEREES  ARABHEENETEERS

e Distinguish and store qualified materials and unqualified materials separately to prevent the
use of unqualified materials during production

BORBIERAKRNTEROME - BLETERMBRALEE

e Qualified materials will be labelled with the inspection date, its expiry date and re-inspection
date, and will be re-examined one month before the review date and those expired will no
longer be used and will be scrapped and destroyed immediately
RBEENYHNESECRREY  HEXHRERES  YRERBAN—EANETER - BB
BRI EAS NBAEME M - 3037 B REEH SR

e Establish guidelines on temperature, humidity and storage environment requirements for the
storage of different raw materials, auxiliary materials, packaging materials and finished
products, and also store in normal temperature storage area, cool storage area and cold
storage area according to its serial number, nature, toxicity and species, to prevent the growth
of micro-organisms and cross contamination
AAFFETEEME - @ BRMBNERROES  8FRE RERFFREER AR
HiES Bt SHRRERE 2FRREARTE BREFENLSE  BRAEHEY
REXBH

e Ongoing monitoring on the temperature, humidity, air pressure and cleanliness level in different
production areas, as well as cleaning the production equipment and measuring instruments
with filtered and purified water or 75% ethanol regularly and evaluating cleanness
FEEZEFTRAEBENRE  RE ZRBIRZFE  UREHERAMKR75% CEBERE
ERBRTESRE  RETRFTME

e The production area is installed with cleanroom to avoid contamination during production
LEEHREREE BREFEBREITHR

e Operators should put on specific work clothes. Different corridors for operators and materials
to enter and exit the production area to prevent micro-organism, particles and other pollutants
from entering the production procedure
BRIEAEEZZEEIFER  REABRYBMEAEEEEHAABB AREYRBEE UK
£y MNETRYRAREBRRE

e Stipulate internal quality inspection standard, set out the requirements for the qualification of
inspectors, inspection methodology and inspection equipment

AYABRRESRE  JIBRRBASER RBHE BBERSER

e Set up laboratories with different functions to perform inspection on materials and environment

RAETENENERE  SFEETURRRERR

e Conduct a comprehensive internal quality inspection on each batch of finished products, and
those related safety projects will be inspected by independent third parties recognized by the
government to ensure the products comply with safety and quality standards in Hong Kong
BEMALANERRHYERBATNZEEE2RE  BEENRE2MEECABRFAINBILE=
FERE  UHEEBNRERMEEE
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OPERATING IN GOOD FAITH: BEING DEDICATED AND STRIVE FOR EXCELLENCE

The responsible officers receive training regularly regarding all the
procedures to ensure a comprehension of relevant requirements.
During the Year, the product quality training covers GMP, materials
management, inspection management, medicine equipment,
manufacturing equipment management, quality standard,
manufacturing techniques, equipment operation, cleanliness and
hygiene as well as employee discipline.

In order to have a further improvement on product quality, the Group
established its strategies on quality development and risk
management, which set out its quality development strategy including
objectives, targets, planning and annual plans for quality control, and
also formulated a series of guidelines and measures to guide all
functional departments in improving their management system on
quality control on an ongoing basis.

Creating a management system
and culture for quality control
EVEERRANEEEEL

HUZARE AEABATHES I - g
REZDBBEEERE - &AF  EmmEFIE
EGMP - HERE - RREE BRI X RE
REEE HERE -LETIE - BHRBRE-F
BHERABRESIH -

RE-SREEREE AKETLTEERE
&J‘LI‘ﬁ’*’ﬂ EH O JIRHEHEERREK  ©FE

ERpi - BB  REARFESE UBET
—%EU?EEI%D%JF" EEERENESATEER
BEEZBR -

Forming a competent team
BERAT EE

* Forming a quality management committee which is e Strengthening the management capabilities of quality

responsible for formulating, assessing and adjusting

the strategies on quality control.

RUBEEEREE  SEHFHE  ENAEESHKE -
e Enhancing the management structure on quality to

clarify the responsibilities of each working unit so that

control-related technical staff and the training of
technical and operational staff, to build a team with
both quality and quantity.
MEEEEERMAENEEESD  UREERIEAS
WIEE  EREHESTFHER -

a culture for quality control can be fostered. e Developing a more comprehensive mechanism for

TELAEEHEER  HRIBANEME MREEEE

talent selection and incentives, which includes the

XAt ° procedures for identifying, training and managing
talents, as well as the employment packages.
TEAAEANYBEG  SFERE BENEE &
BEBERE -

Materializing a zero-defect

quality control management
ERTREEEEE

Enhancing the flow of
quality-control related information
mBEEEEZEEMRE

e Setting up a zero-defect management panel which is e Enhancing and making the good use of digitalized

responsible for determining objectives for achieving
zero-defect, performing regular assessment thereof
and offering corresponding remedial solutions.
RUYUZHRER/NEH AERETHRBEEEE T
EATENGE  WIRMERIES R -

¢ Developing a recognition system to encourage
functional departments and staff to achieve “zero-
defect” and provide suggestions.
EBREHE HBBERENEIER[ZRE IR

Enhancing standards on quality control

TEHEREERE

e Enhancing and adopting a more stringent standard
that covers the management and control over TCM HR(E
herbs and raw materials, selection, cooperation,
assessment and review of suppliers, product quality
control and management, and scopes of retail and
medical services, to further improve the management
standards.

TEMRMNEBRENZE  RETEMREREER - #
EEEE  SF  FAENER ERELRE ZEREE
BRAS €S - E—SRATEEE -
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product management system for statistical and
analytical purposes, and establishing a system on the
reporting and handling of quality control tracking for
the whole product life cycle, quality risks and
pharmacovigilance.
MERZAFNAEREEAEBRFEETHRTRDN -
ByERZEGESNEERY HERBANEYER
R R RS o

Management of quality risks
EERAKBRER

See “Rules of Quality Risk Management” for details.

ERBREERE) -

The Group has also formulated “Rules of Quality Risk Management” to
further strengthen risk management, eliminate quality and safety
incidents and enhance prompt response to these incidents, improving
operational performance.

In addition, in order to assist consumers in their purchase of authentic
products, our products contain labels applying anti-counterfeiting
technology to eliminate counterfeit ones, further boosting consumer
confidence in the Group.

Risk control

Risk analysis
[ B 2 B A

e |dentify and evaluate e Corresponding .
known or potential risks measures are
and assess the extent established with
and impact thereof reference to the extent
WAl EEEHMRBEN of the risk exposure and
Ak UARFEERER previous experience
e REABEERBIER
R M FEH TR T

CREATING A BETTER EXPERIENCE
FOR CUSTOMERS

Improvement on Customer Communication
and Product Recall

The Group produces its product with great dedication and places
emphasis on after-sales management, while continuously values
customers’ feedback on the products. Under the basis of the “After-sales
Product Consultation and Complaint Handling Management Rule” and the
“Product Return Management Rule”, the “After-sales Management and
Product Return Procedure” are in place to improve the customer services
quality. If there is any query about product information and usage after the
purchase, or complaint on product quality, durability, reliability, safety,
effectiveness or defects in design, customers are able to make
consultations and complaints through phone calls, emails, written request
or visit our retail outlets in person as well as return the product.

Meanwhile, the Group stipulates the requirement to be complied with
by staff at retail outlets in the “Rules for Management on the Quality of
Retail Services”, which covers courtesy, reception, hospitality,
knowledge of customers’ needs as well as introduction of products.
The Group also provides relevant training to its staff at retail outlets on
a regular basis in order to provide excellent products and customer
services. Preparing for the new retailing and consumption patterns of
the digital era, the Group diversifies its sales channels, including the
establishment of an online shop on the Company’s official website to
provide customers with seamless experience both online and offline.

The Group received two complaints on products and services for the
Year. Following our investigation, it was confirmed that there was no
problem with our products, and we had taken appropriate actions and
replied to relevant customers. Furthermore, the Group has no recall
cases due to health and safety concern.

A AEEHET(EERBRERRE)  E— N - e
SHEETHARER BREBREDEHE | -
£ URMATHRENRREY  REEER -
I o

Brit 2t RGBEBEERENERER  A5H
EREEHARMNER UMHBREER £
IEEEEHAEBNEE -

Risk evaluation
BT

Communicate with relevant functional
departments to master information and monitor
the process of quality risk management and
phased evaluation, continuously improving the
management process and adjusting response
measures
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REGULATE PRODUCT INFORMATION

The Group strictly regulates its product labels and description to ensure
their compliance and conformity with relevant regulations. Also, we do not
tolerate any misrepresentation of drug labels and description. The labels
and description attached to the proprietary Chinese medicine we sold and
exported are in compliance with the Hong Kong Chinese Medicines
Regulation, Guidelines on labels of proprietary Chinese medicines of
registration regulation of proprietary Chinese medicines and Guidelines on
package inserts of proprietary Chinese medicines. The package insert and
description for proprietary Chinese medicine must be supplied with
information such as the names of the main active ingredient, the dosage
and method of usage, functions or pharmacological actions, storage
instructions, contra indications or side effects and the expiry date. Hence,
customers can choose suitable Chinese medicine products to safeguard
their health and safety. At the same time, the product advertising and
promotion implemented by the Group have to comply with relevant laws
and regulation. Any advertisements and labels must be reviewed by the
compliance department before being released to the public so as to ensure
that all information is true, accurate, healthy, clear and without fraud.

If we receive complaints related to product advertising and labelling,
we will investigate the case immediately, identify the causes, and then
formulate solutions and improvement measures to prevent recurrence
of similar complaints. During the Year, the Group did not received any
complaints in relation to advertising and product labelling.

In the future, the Group will continue to review and optimize relevant
policies relating to product responsibility, and review the internal
control mechanism from time to time to provide customers with
comprehensive products and services.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

To ensure the quality and supply of its products, the Group regards
the stability of the supply chain as one of the important factors for its
business development. Effective supply chain management helps
companies ensure that the supply of raw materials and production
lines of products can operate as scheduled, in turn contributing to
their achievement of long-term development. The Group has
formulated the “Procurement Management Rules” and “Suppliers
Management Rules” to provide clear guidelines for requirements and
procedures of supplier assessment and approval.

In order to ensure the performance of existing suppliers meets the
Group’s standard, we will have a regular review on the performance
and product quality of suppliers to protect the cooperative relationship
and ensure both parties are consistent with the contract made. The
evaluation on new suppliers of the Group covers areas including their
production capacity, supply capacity, material quality and reputation
and etc. At the same time, for new suppliers of raw materials and
auxiliary materials, we will ask for a small batch of samples from them
and send the samples to our Quality Inspection Department to
undergo a comprehensive test for ensuring that the active ingredient
content, physical and chemical indicators, heavy metal content, pesticide
residues and beyond meet the Company’s quality standards before we
proceed with the official purchase. In respect of the Group’s suppliers of
major raw materials and auxiliary materials and suppliers of packaging
materials that may have significant influence on product quality, the
supplier evaluation team will conduct sample testing and field evaluation
to ensure the material quality meets the Group’s standard.

: Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2022
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AFTER-SALES MANAGEMENT AND
PRODUCT RECALL PROCEDURES
B AR B B i I RS

When the after-sales service hotline and mailbox, or the retail outlet receive enquiries, complaints, or

request for product return or exchange and etc. from customers

ERRBAR BERARBBERTELAREITFNEH -

Queries about product prices,

discounts, sales or business-
related matters will be sent to
the designated staff of each
retail outlet to directly reply,
or be sent to the sales and
business department to
follow up and reply.
FRERER BE  #HEZX
KA ENZH  #RHBELR
EEASEEOBBRERHHEE

Queries about product
indications, usage method
and quality will be directly

replied by after-sales service
personnel or be sent to the
quality assurance
department to follow up
and reply.
TEEMBEE - FRBER
mEZEH  SHERRBE
EASEENBRERHME

Rif - BRERRESHFER

Regarding the complaint of product
quality, request for product return or
exchange, the quality assurance
department will conduct examination
and formulate measures based on the
actual situations which include sample
check, product recall and etc..
FHEEMEENRE -  BEEERE -
mERBBHEEERETERE
RARBERGIEEERERE -
BEMRRIRERERS

REBIFIREDE -

If the reason of return is
related to delivery or order
error, product will continue to
be sold after passing of quality

REDBFIREDE -

If the complaint is related to a product causing a customer to
have adverse reactions, the quality assurance department will
handle the complaint in accordance with the “Adverse Drug
Reaction Report and Monitoring Procedures”. If the case is

inspection. confirmed to be serious or unexpected adverse reaction,

2B R E BB R T HEE
EREW A SRR TR
LB RBENE -

meeting will be convened and investigation will be conducted,
including inspection of the batch of production record, product

samples and etc..

ERFREFHERELATRREGH  HERENAR (EaT
RREBREMENEERRE) B8 - ZARKHRIABRENFAS
HNARRER KEHESBRARAL  BEREZMEEDE

If the product is confirmed to have potential
safety hazards or quality problems after
investigation, the case will be reported and the
product will be recalled and destroyed in
accordance with laws and regulations.
EERKRAESRREFERZBESEENE &
BEREEERETERREREKWHRTE -

EmBEE -

If corresponding adverse drug reactions are
established and updated, solutions and
preventive measures will be formulated,
including revision of product instructions

and etc..
EHEERTRRERIEH%  SHERRT
XK ERE  BRETERHAES -

ARACEARERAT | SF=SFEH
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- OPERATING IN GOOD FAITH: BEING DEDICATED AND STRIVE FOR EXCELLENCE

In addition, the audit team is responsible for reviewing the suppliers
every two years by reviewing various legal licenses, professional
qualified certification documents, etc. of suppliers, as well as
assessing the supply capacity, production management level and
quality management level of suppliers. If there is problem in quality,
we would perform re-assessment on the field and request
improvement or even terminate the business with relevant suppliers if
such improvement is not satisfactory.

The Group understands that identification of environmental and social
risks in the supply chain as well as formulation of such monitoring policies
are conducive to stronger supply chain management. The Group will
further improve its own supply chain management and processes in the
future so as to achieve a more stable and sustainable development.

Number of suppliers by region

e I B oy PR RERG BOH
oA

o B NAEEEMFHHERETES
EFRAHERNS RS EER EXEERE
XHE IEHERNHERED EEEEKT
NEEEEKF BEHREEM[E  RMNEER
ETRSET  URREHEAEEHELREY - W
BYUTEY - SSYERE - EAKIEEE -

AEEHAREREDRNREELTRERR - U
RITVHABEERR BN MAaftEEEE -
FEEERARE-STEAINHEEEER
PR NEHERERTSANER -

During the Year, the Group had a total of 247 suppliers, which are
located in Asia, Europe, the Americas and Oceania. The selection
process, environmental and social risk identification system and
monitoring mechanism established by the Group are all applicable to
all suppliers during the Year.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AND
INNOVATION

Keeping up with the development of general health industry, we have
been focusing on the scientific development of TCM to promote our
organic growth and continuous upgrading of technologies. During the
Year, the Group continued to develop new products adapted to more
diversified market demand, invest a lot of money and research &
development personnel in this field, such as nourishing of body
condition for the prevention of diseases. In addition, the Group actively
advanced its scientific research on key product categories to facilitate
further product upgrades and future product development.

The Group will continue to adopt “industry-academia collaboration”

BB RSB

DLEE | SRR » WK

RE - AEBHABATRHEER > 2MR=M -
BUN ~ ENRIEM - REBFFLHPERRF -
BERMEEBRBAIRAAREERFITEARAE
FREHIER -

B % 819

HEAREESBRRBE  EM-—BEUPBEEN
BERENE  HBEERED D MBE AR
MAEAR - AF  FAEBEENERFREITAE
RARBESRFBAESRILEST  LUDEHRE
ABBEE BREARNEZTHER B X
CEEBHENERREETHM I £BE
mEBEARRERRRER

FEBHEESMINAFEER - BBEBEBRA
EEERREFE HRUEHERRENBAN

Jt
.l-ﬁ

® isi 2 N _ \ strategy through collaboration with world-renowned universities for
- 6 o . 59% " o L o joint research on key product categories, ranging from their safety to ’ =7 > F %o FAE
= 0% g 59% 24% 96% h on key prod from their saf BoBEzEMN  FARRZHERE  AHE
' > ' ‘ mechanism of action. It is expected that the results of scientific HORARRE BARREAEEFEEARLE
() Europe \‘ 1 research will contribute a large amount of quantitative data for the ERENELCHE REIRRE—THEMBRPE
B 4 future global expansion of the Group’s TCM, and will be treated as a B oEyhBRE FATBERUEINER B
@ Oceania ‘ foundation for the public in overseas to further familiarize with, accept E—SERAEAEEEEITENEEHNREE
KEEN and consume TCM and as technological and data support for the ETERBRHEBENREMTRERESEXE -
Group in further expanding its presence in overseas markets and
@ The Americas duci tential Ket risk
=3 31% 1% 64% 4% reducing potential market risks.

Total #5}: 247 Total 5t 188

Field audit and
assessment of the
quality of suppliers

HERRSEE

BT

Sample testing

ALl 3]

(Sample testing
is passed)
(BRI EH)
Conduct field
assessment on the
quality of suppliers
bi-yearly
SMELHER
ETRSESE

(Key materials suppliers)
(BRI R FER )

0 m
Approve suppliers and Evaluate and file
add in the supplier list
EfHERR
SIAREREE

Written information
such as certificates and
licenses documents
provided by suppliers

records regularly
TEHIRHE R iR AR

Preliminary review

(Non-key materials suppliers)

on new suppliers (FFEAR YR ER)

HAER )=

HEmRMHEEESE
BRXASEEER

Request improvement
by supplier/cease
business with supplier
ERMERNE
ERHPER AL IE 2T

Suppliers of raw materials,
auxiliary materials and
substantial packaging materials
who first cooperate with us
BEREEHRE - Bk
EREEMRMHER

~©

(If problems on the material quality occur)
(I RHH R E S RERE)
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- PEOPLE-ORIENTED: RESPECT AND INCLUSIVENESS, MUTUAL BENEFITS FOR

R RAEREY
UNBA {'%i@ﬁ > A%?’é@_

~ EMPLOYEES AND COMPANY

. P 5 . Leave Apart from local statutory leave, the Group provides additional paid holidays, including N L
i}t ﬂ]ﬂ % *‘]‘ r U\ A 7,%"'1 ZIK b }\ % :,':E‘ Arrangement marriage leave, compassionate leave and home leave, to ensure employees rest well. '

We are committed to the concept of
B T o K EAR B B % B AEEREEHEEES  LRENEHES  AFER RERARRS  RRATEEE
< g h ° ey O 5

“people-oriented and mutual benefits

RIS o
for employees and the Company”. SCAL B A 36 B AR RS #i R 20 225K
Peovle-oriented thinking. team culture FKMETEETLRE BB TAH Diversity, Equal » The Group follows the principle of “distribution based on contribution” and “equal pay for
p g’ D — Opportunity and equal work” and provides equal development opportunities for all employees and
and Corporate responsibility principles i:_t, Zi % © ﬂi % © fﬁ Fﬁ & ? _g[-_\ E@ Anti- applicants. No biased decision are made due to their race, gender, age, religion or other

discrimination factors that are not related to their ability, qualifications and experience to build an
— inclusive and fair working environment.

Zdt AEMETRESE  BIRMRE BFEETRERA+EHFENRRES T8

FEHE HiER - H5  Fi - RAZHEMMEED ERREBRBEFNAZFELHFREHRE - UERE

RRER BRAFHITERSE -

urge us to pay close attention to staff TAEBRHE
development and create a friendly, equal,
healthy and safe working environment for

the employees.

e To enhance the diversity of the Board, the policy on diversity of the Group’s Board
members states that difference factors such as gender, age, culture and educational
background are taken into consideration when selecting new directors.

EMPLOYMENT SYSTEM REAESEZ R AEENESERES TCBRHABRENESR - SR - Fi#t - X

LRBEESETRRRIAZRER 2H -

The Group aims to create a friendly, equal, diverse and respectful

working environment for its employees, so as to help them to

capitalize on their strengths to attract staff retention and to enhance
corporate competitiveness. The Group has clearly stipulated the
measures and arrangements related to remuneration, recruitment and
promotion, working hours and holidays in the “Staff Manual”, so that
employees can understand the employment terms and human
resources policies and protect their own rights and obligations. In
order to effectively review the implementation of the employment BEFANERBRREFEEEE - FEES
system, employees can report employment related matters to RARE REEERRBE BREREFME
department managers or the Human Resources Department based on Y2 TS BEHW IERERLERR - BEARK
the guidelines. The Group will handle and follow up with their feedback AEEE R HERNREF(ETFMIUZTS
in a confidential manner to meet the needs of both parties and SEERSENERSIE -

establish a suitable working environment and operation model. In the

future, the Group will continue to review and update the “Staff Manual”

from time to time to ensure our staff of a high standard and compliant

employment system.

e 0 il JEE

FEBETREIHRERS TS -2t B
EREENIAFRE  BHBERR  URES
ETEANRALEKREN - AEEMNETF
M) FRBEEENGH  BEREA  TEHBR
BEMEERRZH BETITHEBRERBKIRAD
BEREBE REBSNEINRER - REXRE
BEHNENTER BT ARIEEFESI@ERM

Recruitment, e All recruitment, promotion and termination procedures adopt the principle of fairness and

Promotion and openness, and such decisions shall be made based on factors including work

Termination performance, attitude and development direction of employees or applicants.

BR . B R FRERE  BEARBEREYERAFLAMNER  ERBEETIREEALHIFERR &
B BREOSERELHRE -

e Procedures related to recruitment, promotion and termination are specified in the “Staff
Manual” to help employees understand their rights and relevant procedures.
BRARE BARMERESIAMNEIFMIF  UPHEITHRE FNWEFRERERE

Prevention of e No tolerance for the employment of child labour or forced labour in the Group’s operation.

Child Labour and During recruitment, job applicants have to provide identification documents for our

F d Lab verification and documentation to ensure they are qualified and complied with relevant
orc: 2 Our laws and regulations.

BLEEBTREHSET AEEZRRSAERTAET  TRBRBRAREREALNSAEBLRGEE

RRETEERREHRM

Remuneration U

and Benefits
£ DS &R

The Group provides a fair and competitive remuneration and benefits to our staff,
regularly assesses and reviews the remuneration and benefits policies with reference to
the industry level and practices of each regional market, to improve its arrangement and
requirements. Also, performance-based bonus and awards will be issued according to
staff qualifications, performance assessment and individual or team performance for the
year to support and recognize staff.

AEERBEBHFHWATERTESED  AETREATFEARFIHINFTHREF - AREHBR
HHE REERRERER - RASFREINIERE BN  ERSERRMES
R#IE - URZERES -

The Group provides comprehensive and regular medical check-up upon staff joining the
Group, also offers basic medical, dental and accident insurance to employees. Staff and
their direct relatives are provided with free TCM consultation services.
AEERETRASFEEZEABRENSRERE EXABRERINRE  S/MBER
BB BERRXBEWETRETEAARSE

To take care of the personal health of staff and their families, the Group distributes
shopping coupons for different company products to staff and their direct relatives.
Meanwhile, the Group also converts vacant rooms into nursery rooms for its postnatal
female employees

RARBEEIRERANBAARE ETIREREBREREREUSEQARNERBERE -
B RMFAEAEIILEZERRBEAWAE -

To create a relaxing and pleasant working atmosphere, the Group organizes various kinds
of after-work activities from time to time for employees to join. During the Year, the
Company held a small fun sport competition and various fun quizzes, putting people in
the festive mood.

REEBRRRNITEEESRE  AEEFERERRETIREDHEETSHE - AF > XA FH
R ) ABREHEURSEBELE  FETUTRBZHANRFM LKL -

Working hours and job duties are specified on the employment contract. Employees are
only required to perform their job duties thereon and strictly prohibited any forced labour
and job duties mentioned outside of the contract in any form.
ARIFEERBESERYIANERSNT  ETRFTRETERBIRE - BREUEM
FRRFEREBITEN PR EFRE A BT o

In the event that there is any employment of child labour or forced labour, the Group will
handle including reporting to the enforcement branch, assisting the aggrieved employee,
and also taking disciplinary actions in accordance with relevant laws and regulations.
MBREMETRBEE THERER  AEEERE\EEFERERE  SEEIEHPIR
S MPREET  URKRLRES °

As at 31 December 2022, there are 762 employees in total, please refer to the summarized data of the employees for
details.

BZE2022F128318 AEEAHRE762RET FRETHBEEIBEHAE -
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EMPLOYEES AND COMPANY

GLOBAL DISTRIBUTION
OF STAFF

ZFRE T

Number of employees worldwide

ZRETAH O
000 |- 762

Asia
CHbY|

Americas

FK

7%

74%

@ Directors and
Senior Management

ESRBREEAE

@ Employees worldwide
FRET

2016 2017

EMPLOYEES RELATED DATA
OVERVIEW FOR THE YEAR OF 2022
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© Calculated based on the number of
employees as at 31 December of
the respective years
RIEEF12A31BNETAHGHE

“THi18%

Staff worldwide
2RET

Below 30 years old

30EE AT

. 30-39 years old
30-395%

. 40-49 years old
40-495%

‘ 50-59 years old
50-595%

. 60 years old
and above

60BE R £

Staff worldwide
2RET

Male

B

Female

7t

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited

Age distribution Employees employment/turnover rate by region Employees turnover rate (%) =
> Y —— Number of employees turnover
ﬁzﬁgﬁﬁﬁ ﬁﬂh@%ﬂﬁ@ E‘ ﬁiﬁ/{ﬁiﬁ& Hﬁ% of the category / total number
(%) of employees at the end of
Directors and senior management 30 ) reporting period x 100%
EEpSOEEAS 26% MABTLEE (AOL) = =8
30-39 years old BIRABTAE,ZEBRED
B 15T %
[ ) o 20 KU E T ABix 100%
. 40-49 years old New employees rate (%) =
40-495% 10 o 1o Number of new employees of
4% 4% the category / total number of
. 50-59 years old employees at the end of
50-595% 0 0% : : o
. - - reporting period x 100%
. 60 years old Asia Europe Americas Oceania FABETH= (Aot) = &
and abgvje: B BoM ES KFEM ERIFARS T AR ZHERIHR
60BE A Employees employment rate . Employees turnover rate EHARNEET AR X 100%
fEEHMgE = BERALLE

Employees employment/turnover rate by gender and age

P S T 4 O LAY, 9802 b

Gender distribution

PRl 3 i

40
30%
Directors and senior 30
management
EEREREEAR 20 Yo 14%
Male 13% 12%
St 10| 2% 5%
2% 4% 0% 0%
‘ Female
g3 0
Male Female Below 30 30-39 40-49 50-59 60 years old
2 7 years old yearsold  yearsold yearsold andabove
30BE AT 30-395% 40-495% 50-595%  60BE KM L ‘ ‘
Employees employment rate . Employees turnover rate I
B SRt BERALE ‘ l -
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EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND SAFETY E‘ I @’% Ei‘ii?i\ Execution Establish safety culture, enhance safety education =

BERRENL  MBRZ2HE
To enhance employees’ health and safety awareness, we develop annual training plan which
includes monthly training with different themes in accordance with the requirements of the

The Group provides a safe and healthy working environment for FEMAETEYREZENIEERE  BiER AT
employees and adheres to the production principle of safety and EREENEER -BACERB(ZSER2ERE
hygiene. According to the “Rules on Management of Retailing Safety”, BRE)  JHEIESIRERZEZEEMNEE » U

Tong Ren Tang lists out the regulations on safety management of

BREBUSETIFRNERRSE -

workplaces and warehouses to reduce the risk and impact on the

employees’ position.

Planning
HE

Health and safety hazard assessment

REE T2 BTG

Labour Department and Department of Health conduct regular health and safety inspection
and check-up on employees at Tai Po Production and R&D Base.

BIERAEEEEHMARNBEEMBEMETETREEZENRERRSE -

Workplace and storage layout

TERBFERMHE

All workplaces, including retail outlets and warehouses, shall have fixtures required for
safe working practices and have conspicuous safety signs in place. For instance, items
shall be stacked at a safe distance from heat and electrical switches. Adequate
firefighting equipment shall also be available in the warehouses and the operation staff
shall be familiar with the equipment and its usage. Firefighting equipment shall also
receive regular inspection and maintenance performed by designated professional.
FBEXRS SRZERAGREESEEREEENMENERNZZETER - fl1 Y&
HERERMRR ERMABERSZ2ER - REERBRANERSEYN  BEASTEABRKE
SHEERMAER T E  HERM T EHEANERETREMRE -

Inflammable items, poisonous and hazardous substances in the Tai Po Production and
R&D Base are stored in designated space and labelled. The storage space is equipped
with good ventilation, smoke exhaust and fire safety systems in compliance with safety
standard. A valid license has been granted to the Group and annual safety and electricity
inspection has been conducted through Fire Services Department to maintain safety.
RFEEMBEMN IR RESEENEFTHRNEENEBZR - XA LR - ZFERE[R
EEZSBERBME  MARZ2HARE AEEFEERER B FEBHEHEETR
2RENRE  UKRZZE -

Safety rules and guidelines

Z2HRBRIED

Based on the requirements of different workplace and job nature, safety rule for our
employees has been developed to stipulate the safe operation procedure for each
position, aiming at minimising the risk of injury and occupational diseases. In respect of
retailing, the Group formulated the “Rules on Management of Retailing Safety”,
stipulating the requirements for safety management in workplaces and warehouses.
RETIFESHRIEEZR  Z2RBEABETHE  MAZSBEUZ2RFIES - UHIRER
BERMEMRFENRR EZEFE AKEFHET(ZERL2EERRE)  JIBIESHIRER
ZEEEWRE °

Investigation
B

Hong Kong’s Department of Health. Before the end of training, employees are required to
complete relevant assessments. We will also keep record of the training sessions and
assessment results for each employee to ensure each employee obtains necessary safety
knowledge for the position.

RAMBETNREZ2SH  BRMNSFUREBFLEBERFTEFEIIGE  EFEFERAR
THREEBNEI - TARFINA - BTIHEEZHBER - BATSABULETRHEMSENIT
il ERAEREHERNE  BREIEEABHEUAENZ MR T IE -

Production employees are exposed to relatively high risk during the operation of the Group.
To ensure that they have sufficient knowledge about factory safety, regular safety production
training will be conducted including standard operation on equipment, safety and emergency
management, fire safety knowledge and system usage as well as traffic and security
management.

SEETIRASELETHERSABNEN AEREMAGRENZ2HRE  R24EER
FREEHET WREEREERE  Z2RESEE  HHABRREER  UARRBEMN
BRRELR -

Regular inspection and accident investigation
EHBRERBHASE
Labour Department and Buildings Department conduct regular inspection on safety and

environment in Tai Po Production and R&D Base every year.
STRREFESFEEPNAFEERREBNETOTHKERRZERBRER

Health management and promotion

BEEEREE

During the Year, we have arranged several occupational health seminars for employees at Tai
Po Production and R&D Base, which covered scopes of fire safety, traffic safety, public
security management, to teach and demonstrate relevant safety and health actions.

RE BRMARNBEERNBREHE TR TZAREREELE  SEREHAZE  RBEZE
BEREEE  ARL THEERERREDE -

Over the past 3 years (including the Year), there is no case of work-related death and work-
related injury. The work-related injury rate was 0%.
BEA=ZF (BEAF)  AEETEBERNTIR TR IEER  TEXH0% -

e T
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L

From the outbreak of the pandemic to the gradual transition to the post-pandemic era, the emergence of the pandemic still
threatens the global society and public health, affecting the lives and personal health of people around the world. The
Group understands that employees are still concerned about the health and safety of themselves and their families, and
hopes to gradually return to the pace of life before the pandemic. In addition to ensuring that the workplace complies with
government regulations and guidelines, the Group has also formulated guidelines on internal epidemic prevention
measures to effectively ensure the personal safety of employees in the working environment. We will also timely adjust
epidemic prevention measures to cope with the epidemic situation so as to boost the confidence of our employees.

In order to further lower the risk of employees being infected, the Group has formulated a series of safety measures,
including flexible working hours, working from home and a shift system, providing training on epidemic prevention and
distributing epidemic prevention materials such as masks.

REFBRRERASBESBEINREFERER  RENERDHEABZEZHRHERAHRE  FEXRZIHUARNEFTREARE -
AEEHHEINMABIRFANRERZ2RAIEE  IHERESEERBEANEEH R - AEERTREAIFESHE
BERFNRERIES  FIERMHEERER  EXEREEIRIFRENEAZZ - EATSEARRERS - BNREE
Pk - RREETHNED -

RE-—SHREETIRFNEE  AEEFET —RIZ2ER SEBE LURD ERTERBES - R4HEMZEI
URIREOESHRME -

Before arriving at During work Leaving workplace
workplace e Wear a mask e 1:99 diluted bleach is used to
e Declare physical condition * Measure and record body clean and disinfect frequently
e Require a negative COVID-19 temperature regularly on a daily touched objects

rapid antigen test result basis * Enhance cleaning and

Clean their hands with alcohol- disinfection of waste containers

IKEZE T /S FrAl based handrub before and after e Carry out waste separation
o HRSBEMR entering and leaving shops, and
e ER2019BMHESRESFAH touching objects BEBE TESZ P

feaE R o M1 :99MBRANKBEARH
THEHE SEEEBNY S
e BEOE MEE 2R ESHIRBRR
e BHRFHASBRALHER ETRIR S E
e REAEHKEBYRAIE

BRREFRESEF

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2022
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]
TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT 'L

Adhering to the concept of “business growth driven by talent”, Tong Ren Tang supports talent sustainability and career
planning of the employees to nurture talents and strengthen their sense of belongings. The Company formulates a
promotion system and clear guideline is given to employees through the “Staff Manual”. In order to formulate a suitable
development direction for employees, we evaluate and give feedback on staff performance through regular performance
appraisal and assessment.

At the same time, we specifically design training programs based on the requirements of every position. For instance,
regular trainings on the operation standard of equipment, safety and emergency management, knowledge on fire
prevention and facilities usage are provided to plant employees together with assessments so as to ensure they work with
safety knowledge required by their positions. We also attach great important to providing trainings to retail outlets staffs so
as to provide high quality customer services. We also maintain detailed training records for each employee to assist them
to review their training joined and assessment results. We regularly collect opinions from employees to review and update
the training programs to further improve our approaches of training.

During the Year, the Group provided training for 46% employees, in which male employees and female employees received
an average of 8.2 hours and 6.0 hours of training respectively, and employees at all levels received corresponding average
training hours, including 27.9 hours for directors and senior management, 19.8 hours for managers, and 5.7 hours for
general employees.

vl 5L % J

BCEEFHERIATRERRINES XESTIFEARRERBERE  LUEEEFAY REEINEER - A2RME
T-EEAREHNE UBEB(EIFM AETRHAEES -REEHETAMTERER  EMFEEINIERRR
RERE RETIRITSENRRES -

HERE BMTEERESTFBUNEE SITaENEINIFE NABEETIRHEHNERSERE R2RERE
B OHBARRREEASEI > ARIER BRAEIEZARBUMZNZZABRT I -BEMAT+TIERZELHKETHN
BIES  BREBTHRSETI TRERE  RESHENEFRY -SUESTIHAEFMAZIER  HEBERRMSENEI
RERER BBEHMREETIZR  BMRIARENEZIANE  UTEEIGEH -

AE S AEEZIETHERE46%  ERSEUETIRLZMETHRER T F198.2K6.0/NEHEI - MBBRAED BIES
THETHEIREY  SFEERSREBAER279NE KERB19.8/0E  UREKRKEBTHS5.7/0E -

LERCERERRARA | =B==FFRK
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Focus of
training
EEE

Working
Skill

Tk

Product
Quality
EmES

Health and
Safety

fRERZE

New Staff
HABAE

- EMPLOYEES AND COMPANY

Description of training
3 FI

Targeted on job requirements for employees, our staff knowledge on our products and work tasks as
well as their professional skills can be enhanced through provision of different kinds of skill training. For
example, trainings on management of manufacturing equipment and sampling are provided.
HEETHBAUER  RETANKEIR  MEHERRITENRSE  SERESHE © flRHERER
B ERE REEREI -

To enhance our employees’ understanding and performance of production processes and quality
requirements, the Group provides different trainings on product quality.
RINEETHAEREREEERVWAMRRE  AEERHTIENEREEIZI -

In order to ensure the health and safety of our employees, the Group provides health and safety trainings
as well as special activities on different topics to teach and demonstrate different exercises for safety
and health to draw more internal personnel attention to occupational health and safety.
REREINRERZ2  FEERUIREZENRERZZIRRERES  ZRMNTEFRDNLZ2RRF
BEE REANBASHBERREZZNEE -

The Group is endeavored to providing an inclusive workplace. As a result, the Group provides induction
training and career training for new staff every year to give them a hand in understanding their own
responsibility, familiarizing them with the Group’s culture and its core values with the aim of adapting
themselves to new working environment and integrating them into the new organization.
AEEAFERMEFVWIESH - At SERREFABE THEIRBSIR  HBHHFET THESHE -
EEXENEERS  FEFNMAS TRABRIN THERE  BAHAEAS -

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2022

All employees

EEET

Training rate

gk 46%

Total training hours h
ours

Hrall ARy 5 111 I
s :

Training hours per employee
A8 H LI @ 77 bous

Male employees

EMET

Training rate

zaex  48%

Total training hours h
ours

BN 1 962 s
, s

Training hours per employee

?iﬂﬁZEIi%%]llﬂ#ﬁg 9) 1/11(3?455

Managerial
grade staff

RERET !
Training rate

gk 09%

Total training hours L

RO 714

Training hours per employee
AR NN ] g @ hours

|
N
\ it v

BN e REREGY
PNRA : Az - AEILE
N =3

‘;
Training hours per employee )

FHELATHINY DT },‘ﬁ}}? ‘

Directors and
Senior Management
EERERERAR
Training rate

zax  100%
Total training hours

Hel AR ne g 307

hours

Female employees
LMHET
Training rate o
gk 44%
Total training hours

I 3 149
b

Training hours per employee

FAIERLAIR 6, e

hours
/J\H.'f

General staff
BEFXET
Training rate

sk 43%
Total training hours

S 4 ()9()

Training hours per employee

PR LIS 7 b

Employees training rate (%) = Number of trained employees of the category / total number of employees of the category at the end of

reporting period x 100%

ZIETHER (AL = ZEAZINET AR ZEINREHRANETHLH x 100%

Employees average training hours = Total number of training hours for employees of the category / total number of employees of the

category at the end of reporting period

BTITHEINY = ZEANZIETRAREY ZEIREPRNETHAH

LERCERERRARA | =B==FFRK



ESG REPORT
ENVIRONMENT MANAGEMENT: COMPLIANCE AND PREVENTION,

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Forging the self-discipline of “Dedication
comes from the heart in the steps that no
one else can see for Tong Ren Tang”, while
we pursue excellence in Chinese medicine

products research and manufacturing, and
we are committed to take up responsibility
of environmental protection.

Various environmental crises have an impact that cannot be neglected
on the stability of society and economy. Based on the relevant
environmental laws and regulations, the Group has formulated the
“Measures on the Administration of Environmental Management
Protection of Production Bases” to regulate the management of
emissions at the Tai Po Production and R&D Base. Through
standardising the emission management, implementing resources
conservation measures and raising employees’ awareness, we monitor
and continuously optimise our environmental performance. At the
same time, with the environmental objectives of improving the
efficiency of resource use and reducing emissions, the Group
continuously evaluates, records and discloses environmental data on
an annual basis to review the effectiveness of existing measures, and
plans to engage an independent consultant to conduct assessment in
the future to help us further develop specific indicators for emission
reduction, waste reduction, energy saving and water saving, and
strengthen our governance performance.

EMISSIONS MANAGEMENT
Waste

The Group, being well aware of the potential impacts of waste on the
environment and social, cautiously treats solid waste arising from its
operation. Solid waste generated during the operation is divided into
hazardous waste and general non-hazardous waste. In this regard, we
have formulated treatment measures for each category of waste to
avoid environmental pollution caused by misclassification or treatment.
This Year, a total of 0.42 tonnes of hazardous waste such as
acupuncture needles and cotton generated by the Group were handed
over to qualified companies for processing. At the same time, non-
hazardous waste such as domestic waste of approximately 656.9
tonnes in total were handed over to local government authorities for
collection, clearing and processing.

WASTE EEZEY)

# & Total &

W B (G EAR >
O R i H R - AEBE
S 85 & i 5 T RS i RO Y ]
RF o IR AR I IR SR B R UAT: -

EERECHRALEREENRBEMTRTER
BHEE  AEBEURBERNEEEIRAER
FIECEEEBRBEREEEWE)  RELHE
ERBEBNHERNER - RMNEBHEHRY
EERE ETHNERERERRESEIZH
EEERBHATERERR - AR AKENURES
BEREAMRLHDFRBRRER - SEFME -
LHEREFRERERE  #MBRIRTHEERR
Mo WEENBREFEB LB ETM  HE
HAVE— D HIRTRBE - RIEE - EiREREIKI A EE
BB maERaRRE -

i & B
§ 27]

AEEBFAEEYEHREREENTE  EEE
BEEBEPEENEREY BRMALEREENE
BEZVIHEEEENE —REZEEY I
HEEBEENITLEEREERE BREER
PEIEEMSIBRESTRE[E - ]NF > £E
EEENHRHENBREEEETEEYH0.42A
M HRHEERATRE AREENEFZN
REBMEBEZYWHGE56.90M » KA E it BT
P E - BEMERE -

# & Total

| B ] | B
Total hazardous Intensity of Total non-hazardous Intensity of
waste generated hazardous waste waste generated non-hazardous waste
FELEERENEE BEBERYEE Rt EERZERE BERRYEE
W'ya 0.000 656.9 0.3
2022 2022 2022 2022
2021 2021 2021 2021
y tonnes/HK$’ million of revenue y tonnes/HK$’ million of revenue
{ONNES DR EEE TN (ONRESIE N
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Hazardous Waste 5B &Y

Hazardous wastes such as a small amount of chemicals are generated from the Group’s production process while a
small amount of medical waste is generated from the Chinese clinical services at retail outlets. Paying attention to the
risk of improper disposal of hazardous waste, such waste will be disposed of with proper supervision and disposal.

FEENEEBRESVEBCEREEERRY MEEARNTELERBTIRAEELBBEEY - RMNBEIFE

REEEEZYNAEK  ZERXEEEREE BEEREEHEEZEY -
Medical waste
BEEY

The needles used by the Group in Chinese

Chemicals and other hazardous waste
LtERREMEEREY

Understanding that the chemicals we use in production and
experiments pose a potential threat to staff and public health and medical consultation and acupuncture fall
pollute the environment, the Group formulated the “Laboratory within the scope of medical waste Group 1
Waste Management Regulations” and control measures, which are — Used or Contaminated Sharps. The
administered and supervised by laboratory management, in “Medical Waste Treatment Procedures”
accordance with “Hazardous Chemicals Control Ordinance” of prepared by the Group complies with
Hong Kong. “Waste Disposal Ordinance” and “Codes
AEERPEENETERRERANLERHEIRARBEB/R of Practice for the Management of Clinical
WEERK  TEHRBEERSR - At 25EEEXBEE(ESL Waste”. Our staff at retail outlets are
BREHGRAHE(EREEHNEERB)REFER  THER required to recap and properly placed
TEBANEEEHTRES - used sharp needles in medical disposal
bin with special marks to separate from
other waste and avoid contact with
humans. The sealed medical waste will be

Toxic and hazardous wastes such as chemical containers and
waste oil are classified and disposed to specially-marked
collection containers, which are stored separately in the leakproof, transferred to a licensed medical waste
dust-proof and explosion-proof facilities. Licenses from the collector for disposal. Meanwhile, we will
relevant government authority were applied and such waste is sent submit a relevant application to the

to qualified recyclers for handling. The amount of recycling for Environmental Protection Department for
each time will be registered and recorded. follow-up actions.

LBEREHF BRHSESETEEVEIEZENFIERNK AN 1R A h B8 RO AR & R AR IS B AT AR Y &
ERF BUFHREBRE - FHRRE - BRERBRESNEENR BEREYE—ER - [REARZITHEA
e RMEMHBARNHERFERR YBRXHABEZENESER 2| AEBMKEEB(ENEERH)R(E
BB R RETERREEBRE - BEEYPEBIFTFA)GR(BEEEYESE
RRE) EERGEIAEBASNGEE
The Group also encourages employees to collect hazardous waste 1 ZEZHRASRIZEBWEREE W
such as ink cartridges and used batteries, and recycle them and HibEE ok Mo EAEBHKE - 8T
hand them over to independent professional recyclers to reduce BHBRBEYE  BRESEBEBEYRER
the impact on the environment. EE RN BINEARRRKRBEIMEESR
AEETFBETRERKE  ESHEFTEEEY > LETEW 7B LAEIRE o

RXABISERREERE  URKHRENTZE

Non-hazardous Waste £ E EEY)

The Group’s daily operation generates non-hazardous waste such as packaging materials and domestic wastes.
By reducing waste at source, the Group supports reusing and recycling resources, and strives to reduce the
non-hazardous waste generated by the operation. During the Year, the Group recycled 5.57 tonnes of paper and
0.02 tonnes of metal, and discussed with recycling companies and had access to data of wastes so that we can
further improve our relevant disclosures.

AEENWAEEEELOEBNRETFNREEZEEY - KMETRERE  XFBREEBAREREW  BLEE
FRERINEEERY - AF > AEBEWT 5.57 AMARM0.02 AMEEE -

Waste generated from production
g P Domestic waste

process and packaging materials SRR
LERERBERFELNNR

The Group adheres to the approach
of “purchase on demand”, where we
purchase packaging material based

Food waste generated from the canteen of the Tai Po Production and
R&D Base is collected and stored at designated rubbish bins to be sent
and disposed by our collector. The qualified collector will regularly

on the production volume of our collect and handle sewage and waste oil being discharged from the
products accordingly. Employees at kitchen to the grease traps subsequently.

Tai Po Production and R&D Base are AEEUSBIERBRER R FABEEREE M RENEELS  THEEER
encouraged to reuse resources, and o BREHFRERMENANS KR BIRBEEERNERENREREERE
prevent willful discard of recyclable
waste such as newspapers and
paper boxes. Employees are
required to collect and separate
recyclable waste, which will be sent
to waste collector for recycling. e Establish a new electronic system, e Collect paper and deliver it
REFBRZ[IREBE | NERE > & adopt electronic communications to to independent
EREEENEAESENSEN reduce printing professional recyclers for
Be REBHBABEENRZEME BUFWNETRG BITEFLERE > follow-up processing

Meanwhile, office staff are encouraged to reduce using as well as making
best use and recycle any single-use items by types:
B ROBEBRAZEETES —AMARNER  URMF|EARNSEEY

ITERER BLEEEEFEEUEE WA HIED H&E.%EEEE% ;3‘7:3335_\?5,%
??uygﬁgégg&ggwwii e Use double-sided papers and reuse BB RARE r
£y 533 0 2 7 [ U single-side printed paper ‘
ERYEYE  EREELA [ l
J |

ERECEREERAA | SR FFR




ESG REPORT
ENVIRONMENT MANAGEMENT: COMPLIANCE AND PREVENTION,

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

During the Year, the Group consumed a total of 257.2 tonnes of packaging materials, which consists of 114.5 tonnes of
paper, 135.1 tonnes of metal and 7.6 tonnes of plastic. Total consumption for the Year decreased substantially by
approximately 46.8% compared to that of the last year.

RE > REBHEHEFE272AMBEME > EFEF 1145 20MHKR 1851 N MEBR7.6 AMER - KEEHEEEERL—
FERBTIHEHN46.8% °

PACKAGING MATERIALS" &5 # £

#& Total

Total Packagin
Materiog E

Plastics 22} BRI R

Papers #3& Metals ¢ 8

114.5 135.1

2022 2022

162.2 190.2

2021 2021

7.6 257.2

2022 2022

131.0 483.4

2021 2021

tonnes ‘AW tonnes ‘AW

tonnes M tonnes Wi
Intensity of packaging materials

(tonnes/HK$’ million of revenue) 001 5 003

BRERMBZE 2w s8R 2022 | 2021

™ It only includes the operation sites involved consumption of packaging materials.

REESREBEMBERNEEL -

Wastewater

The sewage generated by the Group mainly covers production and domestic sewage, which is discharged through the
pipelines laid by the government to the fixed sewage treatment system, and is regularly collected and sampled by the
relevant authorities. At the same time, in order to reduce the impact of sewage discharge on the environment, we conduct
random inspections at the Tai Po Production and R&D Base for a period of five years to ensure that it meets the standards
and further monitor the quality of sewage.

At the same time, the equipment, containers and tools produced are cleaned and disinfected using the self-produced pure
water and the concentrated alcohol in the factory. The cleaning and disinfection process of drug equipment are completely
free from any cleaning agents, ensuring that the discharged water is“zero residual and zero pollution”, reducing the
damage on environmental pollution from the pharmaceutical process to the minimum, and the production equipment also
uses food-grade lubricants that are easily decomposed to reduce pollution.

157K
AEBEENSKIEREEERETEA MRS AECHBRBROEEENZET S KERRAS  LEMERETE
WERBERE - B BHESKEREBEERNYE  RAUAEES—EES  RABLEFREmETBE  BRE

BFRE E-SEETKER-

HEEK £ENRE TR ITEOEAREARAARCHABRFRENERETIEZRES EBERNRBBEREARES
BREAZETERAEMBERE  BRFLUNAKIZRE T353R BRESRHRESANEEREAIKE MEER
BTRRARZDBNRBEFEBELURDITR

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2022

REE A KBRS
FRBIATRL : SFUCHDY - RS

Carbon emissions and air pollutants

Same as last year, the Group commissioned an independent consultant to conduct a carbon assessment for the Year to

quantify the greenhouse gas emissions (or “carbon emissions”) generated from its operations. The quantification process
was conducted with reference to “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs” published by the Stock Exchange.

During the Year, the Group’s total carbon emissions were 1,957.0 tonnes CO.e. The Group’s carbon emissions mainly
come from the use of purchased electricity in Scope 2, which accounts for approximately 92.8% of total emissions,
followed by the burning of fossil fuel in mobile sources in Scope 1, which accounts for approximately 3.4% of total
emissions. The total carbon emissions for the Year decreased by approximately 5.0% compared to the last year, mainly
due to the decrease in carbon emission related to use of purchased electricity.

B B i e 22 SRS A
BAEF N AEBENBHTMARTRE 2B ABCEEEENBRSRMAN (RB (BIR])  BLHBRSZH
A AR FERS MR REARE) 2 (M= BEBREUEERE3) -

RE AEENABRERB1,570 M _SLtREE - AEEANRFIREIERBEE2Z2IBELIRA  ERHKRED
92.8%  HRXBEE1 2BBHRNLARBRE  VIEABREN34% AFELARFRB L -FERPH5.0% BRI
BEHEABBEBMERERTE -

CARBON EMISSIONS #izHE R

Scope P! P! ﬁ; TO'I'G I

o e
7 Other

Direct emission Il 1
of greenhouse gas

HERERBHK

124.4

2022

104.9

2021

tonnes of CO2 equivalent
RE—StHES

Indirect emission .='
of greenhouse gas
B R E RN

1,815.7

2022
19371

2021

tonnes of CO2 equivalent
NE—SLHEE

indirect emissions .=|
of greenhouse gas
Hi B R ERE TN

16.9

2022

16.3

2021

tonnes of CO2 equivalent
AHW—ELRES

Total greenhouse
gas emissions
BEREBHHNAEE

1,957.0

2022

20583

2021

tonnes of CO2 equivalent
AEM—FRES

A Intensity of greenhouse gas emissions
‘ a (tonnes of CO: equivalent/HK$’ million of revenue) ° lI .3
BEREBHRZE cu-atnat BEETHA) 2022 | 2021

@ Fossil Fuel Combustion — stationary source
L RERE — BER

@ Fossil Fuel Combustion — mobile source

{LRRER G — BEIR

@ Purchased electricity Sewage discharge

SNBED TSIRBER

@ Water consumption . Business travel by air

RKER BB LR

ERECEHREERAE | —FE=-FFR




ESG REPORT
ENVIRONMENT MANAGEMENT: COMPLIANCE AND PREVENTION,

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Air pollutants are mainly generated from emissions from gasoline and diesel burned from vehicles operating in each
operating sites, liquefied petroleum gas consumed by cooking herbs in Asia operating sites, the burning of natural gas by
cooking herbs in the Americas operating sites and the burning of natural gas in Europe for heating purpose.

For the purpose of reducing carbon emissions, the Group encourages its employees to replace business travel with video
conference or teleconferencing, to use more public transport and switch off idling car engines. Air pollutants for the Year
has decreased as compared to that of the last year mainly because of decrease in vehicles fuel consumption.

ZRGERMIBFEESEBERNWERME TBMGH  DNEBERREEMERRCAMR NG BHAEEMRERR
R URBNEERERARSEENHER -

BRERIBHER  AEEASBEIURGREFEZRANEIRELT SRELARBIARFERRL - AF  ZRERYR
F—FERY  FERRBHFTHERERD

EMISSIONS ks m®

Nitrogen oxides Sulphur oxides Respiratory suspended particles
Ek=t ) {ik=pe%7) AR ABZR T

74.] 609.2 0.6 78.0

5.9 453

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
kg T kg T5 kg 5

1) Scope 1 includes direct GHG emissions from fuel (1) HE1LEREEERRBERMRESH - ShEMmRm
combustion of stationary sources and mobile sources such BEEAERBEIK -
as gasoline and diesel.

) Refer to “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: 2) SEBMI(NAEERIE HEREEARE)2(HE=
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by RIFHERBEYIERERIES) R(2006 FIPCCEIRAER
the Stock Exchange and “2006 IPCC Guidelines for National B EEIEm)

Greenhouse Gas Inventories”.

3) Scope 2 includes indirect GHG emissions from energy such (3) HEEERF = AT HBEES NS RNEZEEEREHEM -
as purchased electricity from third parties.

(4) Reference to “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2:  (4) ZZEIFAMIEFRE HEREARE) (M= :
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by REEBENIEEERES)  PEAREKNBRERRE
the Stock Exchange, the revised instructions of “Corporate HCEERERBHMRE R ZHBEERMEBRIE (2022
Greenhouse Gas Emission Accounting Methods and FEBTR))) (BRERB)BIIHRERSEERMEMNE
Reporting Guidelines for Power Generation Facilities (2022 HRERZHYE -
Revision)” issued by the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the People’s Republic of China, and the
calculation of electricity or grid emission factor for each
operating site location.

(5) Scope 3 includes other indirect GHG emissions from (5) HESOEEBEESNEERKRSKMENENRD
electricity for the treatment of water and sewage and BRITHEAREEEE RN -
business travel at the Hong Kong operation site.

6) Refer to “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: 6) ZEBIFAMAEERE HEREARE)2(HEE= :
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by RIZEERBEMIEZERIESI) ©
the Stock Exchange.

7 Includes air pollutants from the combustion of gasoline of (7) BREREERMBREAIREENZRSEY -
vehicles.
) Air pollutants emission and emission factors are calculated 8) ERHFEBVANHEREFTSEHIM(OAEFERE L&

with reference to “How to prepare an ESG Report —
Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”

RERWME) 2(MH - REBREARERERES]).
PEARANMBEEREDCERBBERRITRMBHER

published by the Stock Exchange, the “Technical Guide for BERGBMER REERRE(ERTRANFERRETF
Preparation of Air Pollutant Emission Inventory for Road MYFHE -

Vehicles (CGBER BN K RISRY B BUBE RS R ITER)”
of the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s
Republic of China, and the “Compilation of Air Emissions
Factors” published by the United States Environmental
Protection Agency.
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RESOURCE EFFICIENCY

Resources Conservation

The Group fully understands that energy and water are valuable natural resources on Earth shared among humans, and is
committed to protecting its supply through different means and mechanisms in response to the concept of sustainability.
This Year, each operation sites of the Group obtained water from local governments, and did not encounter any difficulties
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose. We pay great emphasis on electricity and water conservation and require the
employees to be prudent in the use of electricity and water resources without wastage. The Group has implemented a
series of measures to enhance resources efficiency and established an e-document system to further reduce resource
consumption. Among which, as energy consumption is the primary source of the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions, we
will continue to focus on and strive to enhance the energy usage efficiency at the Tai Po Production and R&D Base, offices
and retail outlets.

i 44 U

FEBRAERRBKDIRBRTNERER  FREAENHRZER  UFHEBFRENSAREHRELHE  UEET
FEENER - AF  AEEZSEESTAKREELRF  YERBEAKRLEEARE - RMUERFORERAK B
REIRKRAERA  HBRENERR - ARECER —RIIBALEFRREBNEE - URTEXHEFLRES E-THIE
REERE - A BEREREEEARERZREFRNERRE  RMASEABRILBHIREARNBEENZES - BIER
ZELRPEEREANE -

Primary measures to enhance resources efficiency and minimize carbon emissions

RABRMBR B BEHRNERRE

Tai Po Production e The air conditioning and lighting system of the Production Base are set at day or night
and R&D Base modes to reduce the energy consumption during night time
KA R SEEMNEARBHARGRABRKREER  BOREERERE

e Install timers along the corridors, the surroundings and the concourse of the Production
Base
REEEMER  ARRAERIKEE

e Maintain energy consumption at a reasonable level based on the production requirement
RBEEER  GEBTHAE

e Turn off all electrical, air conditioning and lighting appliances before leaving for the day or
when not in use

RTHRBEAERSERAERE ZARBARS

e Regularly check and maintain energy-consuming production equipment to sustain its energy
efficiency

EHRERELELEERS  URFEERNE

¢ Install information card for production equipment to make it easier for professionals to
perform regular monitoring and follow-up
REERBRERBERES  HESEXEASEHERRRE

e Take into account the actual needs of the environment, timers are installed for outdoor
advertising signs so that the signs are turned off for a designated period at night

ZREASRERE  AFNBREHRIEEE  RETRERRER

e Maximise the use of natural light and adjust lightings based on sunlight conditions
BERAAARNX AEBRARBHAGRZEZE

e Adopt energy-saving lamps with higher energy efficiency
BEASERAENESREER

e Regularly perform inspection and maintenance to ensure proper functioning of water
equipments and pipes
EHRENREAAREREE  BREFEE

e Regularly collect and inspect the electricity and water usage for analysis and response
TE U SR MR AR FE B % FA K B BAE D AT e 8

e Select and plan carefully the type of green plants around the Tai Po Production and R&D
Base

RERERAIRFAFEEMRE LD RE(EYNER

ERECEREERAA | SR FFR
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ENVIRONMENT MANAGEMENT: COMPLIANCE AND PREVENTION,
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Primary measures to enhance resources efficiency and minimize carbon emissions

RAEIR K ROR D PR E iR e

Hong Kong Office e The air conditioning and lighting system of the office are set at day or night modes to
and Retail Outlets reduce the energy consumption during night time
BEERRAER MAZHEHARBRARGRABREEER - HPRERERIERE

EBERum
o Set air-conditioning system to maintain indoor temperature at 25.5°C
REZARFBEFTERRE 25.5°C

e Regularly educate the employees on the importance of energy and water conservation and
saving

EHPE TR KNEEY

e Place different green plants in office to improve the air quality and relieve the monotony and
weariness from work

R|AZHELSERCEY  UAHEZRRER TETRNEARRE

e Remind employees to turn off all equipment, air conditioning and lighting appliances before
leaving for the day or when not in use
RBRETIRTHREAEARREEMERE  ZHARRBBRSLS

e Maximise the use of natural light and adjust lightings based on sunlight conditions
BERAAAKX AEBRARBHEAGR=ZEZE

e Adopt energy-saving lamps with higher energy efficiency
EASRERNENEHREER

e Regularly collect and inspect the electricity and water usage for analysis and response

EHREMNBE AERBKELED N RE

During the Year, the Group’s total energy consumption was 4,559.7 MWh, and the total electricity consumption was
4,065.7 MWh. Other energy consumption included liquefied petroleum gas, natural gas, gasoline and diesel. The Group’s
electricity consumption mainly comes from Hong Kong operations. During the Year, the total energy consumption has
increased by 46.1% as compared to the last year, mainly due to the increase in operating hours of all operating sites
following the easing of the pandemic, resulting in increase in consumption of electricity, gasoline and natural gas.

Z!Sfﬁlzii%ﬂ? ERBEER4,559.7 KR BEEEH4,065.7 KR - HEERERABERICAMER - RAK - dA
Kl AEBNESIEREERBER A FERREEERL - FELAN46.1%  TEARREERNEBRNEEE
RREBMEM  ABED - WHRRARERELF -

ENERGY USED geiR A

# & Total

Total energy
consumption

RERAEE

Liquefied

Gasoline Diesel petroleum gas Natural gas Electricity

bahci 4 L AR AAR £
215.1 28.7 0.03 250.2 B 4,065.7

2022 2022 2022 2022 2022

4,559.7

2022

185.7 517 73 195.4 2,681.1
2021 2021 2021 2021 2021

3,121.2
2021

MWh MWh MWh MWh MWh
IR JKFBF JKEBF IR KB

MWh
K

Intensﬂz of energy used
MWh/HK$’ million of revenue) ° 2.0
REREHZE kmr EETKA) 2022 2021
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Use of water resources

The Group’s water consumption is mainly from manufacturing, sales and office operation. During the Year, the Group’s

total water consumption was 24,669.2 m?® and the water intensity was 14.3 m*HK$ million of revenue. Compared with the
previous year, the water consumption of this Year has increased by approximately 9.7 %, which is attributable to increase
in operating hours of all operating sites following the easing of the pandemic, resulting in increase in consumption of water.

S <gl L]

AEBOKERERTIBRELE  HERPD « K5 AREWOFHKEH 24,6602 75K BABEB143THK/E
BETMA Bl E—FE  AFRKRLAN7% FEASEEEREHENELESMAEFTEM AAETES -

CONSUMPTION OF WATER RESOURCES /K &R M

# & Total

Total water consumption Intensity of water
IS consumption

FEKZE

24,669.2 14.3

2022 2022
22,481 14.5
2021 2021
m?¥HK$’ million of revenue
m? 5K SR BEBITERA

™ As water resources of its offices, warehouses and some operating sites in Hong Kong are managed by property management offices or there are
no physical operating sites, the data only covers some operating sites.

HREBHRAZ RERBIEEHENKERANXEERERIRTEREEHN  BERRENIEEY -

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group complies with relevant environmental laws and regulations in its daily operations, and regularly monitors each
operation site to ensure that its emissions comply with statutory requirements. Although the Group’s daily operations do not
directly have a significant impact on the environment and natural resources, as stakeholders in the society are paying more
attention to sustainable development, the Group plans to consider reducing the impact on the ecological environment from
the perspective of product life cycle, e.g. reducing the waste generated from product disposal, and avoiding the irreversible
impact of hazardous and non-hazardous waste generated from operations on the surrounding environment and ecology.

CLIMATE CHANGE

The Group understands the relationship between climate change and society and business operations. In addition to the
environmental changes caused by climate change, such as increased frequency of typhoons and rainstorms, which have
brought a survival crisis to the natural ecology, it also brings risks and changes to the society and daily operations. As its
impact gradually increases, we understand the importance of identifying and formulating countermeasures, and will
formulate supervision mechanisms and policies in the future to improve the stability of our operations.

BB M RARE IR

FEERBFEEFETEHRANEAERES THESSEEY BREIBUNESEEER -BELAEENAFEER
FERYRERAREREREAYE  EREFLS L EFDERRVEITHERRE A RENHIAREREDBRAE -
ZRBEHLEBRRENTE NI ERRBEEENERY BRAZBETELNAEREEERVAAEREREESR
TAERHEE -

= 2
R4

AEEHARRBCRAHERXBEENER  RTHIBNBRARNEMEENREARRNEREZLHARERTR
AR FRUBRAFEETRARRESE -MEAPEZHEE  BMNAOBIIRTLEHERNERN  WERRR
FTEERFARBOR  RABSEENRBE NS
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- ESG REPORT
~ SERVING SOCIETY: CREATING HEALTH, SHARING GLOBALLY

We are committed to the corporate spirit
of “Nurturing kindness and virtue,

Preserving tranquility and wellness” to
promote healthy life and TCM culture in
the community.

As a time-honored enterprise with centuries of history, Tong Ren Tang
has always upheld the mission and vision of “Healthy Life Global
Choice” to improve the wellness of the community and actively promote
TCM culture across the world. While providing quality medicine
products to the Chinese medicine market, the Group also actively
participates in social welfare. The Group fully carries out the
responsibility of a corporate citizen and gives back to the community.
We leverage our expertise in TCM to facilitate cooperation among
different sectors of community and encourage employees to care for
and serve the community. We promote community investment in four
aspects, including “caring for public health”, “supporting the grassroots
and the underprivileged”, “promoting TCM culture”, and “boosting TCM
education”. This Year, the Group was granted the “Top 100 Corporate
Heritage Awards” in recognition of our performance in inheriting
traditional Chinese medicine and helping future professionals grow.
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The Group has always paid close attention to stroke. During the Year,
the Group held a free tram ride event with the theme of “Show Love
and Care to Stroke Prevention”, which was the first free tram ride day
with the theme of “Pay Attention to Stroke” in Hong Kong, in order to
promote the importance of prevention of stroke in the community and
enhance public health awareness. At the same time, in addition to
providing free medical consultation services for 130 people in the
stores to help them understand their health conditions, the Group also
provided information on the prevention of stroke to more than 6,000
people who are persons in recovery or high-risk people and youth
groups through social media live broadcasts and online and offline
lectures, and promoted the culture of Chinese medicine.

In order to assist people in need to obtain suitable medical services,
the Group provides free medical consultation services in its stores
every year to provide Chinese medical diagnosis services and Chinese
medicine for different classes of citizens for treatment or physical
fitness. In response to the outbreak of the pandemic, the Group
provided online Chinese medical consultation and treatment services
for patients diagnosed with COVID-19, and provided free medical
consultation services for 600 people during the 11-day online
diagnosis and treatment services.
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Since the outbreak of the fifth wave of the epidemic, the Group has
successively donated epidemic prevention and control materials with
a total value of nearly HK$700,000 to Sik Sik Yuen, a hundred-year
charity organisation in Hong Kong, Self Help Group for the Stroke, the
Neuro United, the Hong Kong Stroke Association and the Community
Medical and Education Services Association (HK), including COVID-19
rapid antigen tests , N95 anti-epidemic masks, Beijing Tong Ren Tang
Chinese Medicine health food products, such as Fuzheng Tea (¥t IE%S)
and Banlangen Granules (1R E5 1R 9 &) , etc., to provide social groups
and the public in need with sufficient anti-epidemic and health
assistance.

The Group actively fulfilled its mission as a Hong Kong-based
enterprise by donating 100,000 boxes of Huo Xiang Zheng Qi tablets
to the Hong Kong SAR Government, with a worth of nearly
HK$6,000,000, to fully support Hong Kong’s fight against the
pandemic.
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In response to the Hong Kong Breast Cancer Foundation’s campaign
on women'’s health, the Group organized workshops to promote the
concept of women’s health and supported its activities through
donations. In the “Pearl of you” event, the Group invited 31 key
opinion leaders (KOLs) to share the event and reached the exposure of
220,000 persons.

In order to support the scientific research of the Chinese Medicine
institutes in Hong Kong, the Group provided medicines for a research
on prevention of stroke by the School of Chinese Medicine in the
University of Hong Kong and sponsored the “International Summit
Forum on Developing Integrative Strategies for Stroke Treatment”
hosted by the School of Chinese Medicine in the University of Hong
Kong this Year, so as to cooperate in scientific research and pave the
way of modernization of Chinese Medicine.

The Group held various community investment projects this Year, which
not only attracted the attention of major media, but also brought new
information and image to the public, and achieved positive results.
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Aspects
B

Content
AR

A1. Emissions

B

General
Disclosure
— MR =

Information on:
Relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
FHBERRAEREHER RARLHNES FEREEREZYNELSE
B
(@) the policies; and
BE R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
BFUHBTABEAZENHEEEERRAGINER -
The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

B ERR EREERBIE -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions
and intensity.

HiE(SHE) REEREE (HE2) RZRBHENEREE -

Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.
FEEEEREYERERTE -

Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.
FEEBEEZEYEERTE -

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
WHFTT LW EEERAESELBEMRIMNLE -

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and
a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HREEEERETREEYNGE  RELAATYNRAEEERAERELR
BT 5] o

Page Index/Remarks
BB RS

53, 82

82-86

85-86

82-83

82-83

82-86

82-83

A2. Use of Resources

ERER
General
Disclosure
—RIEE
A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other
raw materials.

ERERER (BIEER - KAREMBEME) BEEE -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity.
REANESNEER BEEEREAEERTE

Water consumption in total and intensity.

BFEKEREE °

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

WHAET LW REA R R EERABETSLBEMRMBO LR -
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

W SREGEAKR LB EARE - URFARTIHNAKBEEERAEREL
B R EREL Y 5 B -

Total packaging material used for finished products and with reference to
per unit produced.

HRmATAEEMRNEERSEEEN(hE -

53, 82

88

89

82, 87-88

82, 87

84

Aspects
B

Content
AR

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources
BRERRAER

General
Disclosure
— MR =
A3.1

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment
and natural resources.

HMEBTAHRERAREFREREALENHE -

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

B EREHHREARRREFNEAYERCRNEEEEAZENTH -

Page Index/Remarks
BB RS

53, 89

89

A4. Climate Change

KREEL
General
Disclosure
— MR E

A4.1

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
BRIREHORRIESHBTAEESENEARREBESENBEE -

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted,
and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage
them.

HREBRAIREHBRTAEENENEARBREESE  REHTH -

53, 89

89

B1. Employment

EE

General
Disclosure

—RiNE

B1.2

Information on:
Relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.
FREFHRMAE REREHA TR B FERE - 2t RER
UREMESEREFN :
(@) the policies; and
HE R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
BIUBRTARERLENHBEEZIRRBGNES -
Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical
region.
ZER - ERER FRANRBESINESEY -
Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.

ZEMR > FRABNKRBESRDNESRALE -

53-54, 72-73

74-75

75

B2. Health and Safety

RERZZ

General
Disclosure

—RiNE

B2.1

B2.2

B2.3

Information on:
Relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.
FERMZE2IFRERRERERRABEMREN
(@) the policies; and
BE R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
BIEUBRTABEALENHEERRBGINER -
Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three
years including the reporting year.
BE=ZF (BREERFE)SFEITHHARKREE -
Lost days due to work injury.
AIGEAI/EBH -
Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they

are implemented and monitored.
B TR AN B R R RE T 2 - ARMEBERTRESRETE -

53-54, 76

77

77

76-78




Aspects
B

Content
AR

B3. Development and Training
R RIE

General
Disclosure
— MR =
B3.1

B3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training activities.

FHERAREERT ITFRENNBREENBE - #HilZIED -

The percentage of trained employee by gender and employee
category.

ZHBRESEMNESNZIEETDL -

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category.

ZHpIRESERNES  SEREETHZINFHREY -

Page Index/Remarks
BB RS =

54, 79-80

79, 81

79, 81

B4. Labour Standards

S THER
General

Disclosure
—RIEE

B4.1

B4.2

Information on:

Relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BEAFLETHRAL TH :

(@) the policies; and
BE Rk

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
BFUBTABEAZENEBEERAGINER -

Description of measures to review employment practises to avoid child and

forced labour.

BB REEANEEABRET REHET -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practises when discovered.

WM EHRERBEREREEBRAERINANLER o

53-54, 72

73

73

B5. Supply Chain Management

HEEEE

General
Disclosure
—MRIFE
B5.1

B5.2

B5.3

B5.4

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
EEMEENREREERBIK -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

BB D WHEREE -

Description of practises relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers
where the practises are being implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored.

WA EREEAMERNES HATEREANHEREE  URAEEHT
RERGE -

Description of practises used to identify environmental and social risks
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
HAEEBNEERSERGNRERCERBMNEND  URAEREIT
REEEFE °

Description of practises used to promote environmentally preferable
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

BHERERERREES ARRERRRENES  UAREBERTRESRES
bz 3

55, 68, 70-71

70

68, 70-71

68, 70-71

68, 70-71

Aspects
B

Content
AR

B6. Product Responsibility

EREE
General

Disclosure
—RIFE

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5

Information on:
Relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.
FRAMRHEERABRBENRREREZ2 - BE  ZERILBSEURBHRS Z
By
(@) the policies; and
BER R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
BIUBTABEAZENHEBEERBGINER -
Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons.
CEREEXEMARTERLHRRERMARKNE DL ©
Number of products and service related complaints received and
how they are dealt with.
EEEREMRBRBHNRFHE UAREHTE -
Description of practises relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.
R AR R RENBERTHENESG -
Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
HIiEERETBEREREKER -
Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored.

BB EEANRERLRBRE  URBEARTREREL X -

Page Index/Remarks

BEWRS| B

53, 55, 63-69

67

67-68

63

64-69

63

B7. Anti-corruption

RES
General

Disclosure
—RIFE

B7.1

B7.2

B7.3

Information on:
Relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
EEG L BR - MFREREN
(@) the policies; and
BE R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
BFUBRTABEALENHBEERRBGINES -
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practises brought
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERPAHBTARHESREYEEENE SHARMTNEE RFRER
Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how
they are implemented and monitored.
WG ERER BREF  URMBARTRESRSZE -
Description of anti-corruption training provided to Directors and employees.
WM ESR S TRUNRETEI -

53, 55, 60

60

60-62

60

B8. Community Investment

HERE

General
Disclosure
—RIFE

B8.1

B8.2

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.

FRUHEZER T BEEMTHETENRREERTHEZELEREMN
B -

Focus areas of contribution.

SOXERIERE o

Resources contributed to the focus area.

EEIHBEABHAENR -

48, 90

90

91-93
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MULTI-CHANNEL INVESTOR COMMUNICATION STRATEGY

We believe that expanding our diversified channels of effective communication will help us to streamline our
communication with individuals, institutional shareholders and public investors (collectively named as “investor(s)” in this
investor relations report), facilitate, open and transparent exchange of information. Investors’ understanding of the
Company’s corporate mission and vision, development strategy, industry competition and operational and financial
performance will enable investors to make investment decisions in informed circumstances. The Company is responsible
for fair, accurate and timely disclosure of company information to ensure a high degree of transparency, enhance the
Group’s attention, stabilize our relationship with investors, and strengthen the mutual trust of each other.

In 2022, the Group continued to maintain a positive and effective communication with investors who are concerned about
the business development of the Company in a positive and responsive manner. The Group is committed to providing
investors with convenient communication channels and endeavored to ensure that all published data are true and accurate
and clear and balanced. The Group also collected feedback from investors and analysts and reflects the views to the
management and the Board of Directors. We are committed to maintaining healthy and two-way communication to ensure
that investors can fully understand the Group’s long-term development, strategy, industry competition and financial and
operational performance.

INVESTOR RELATIONS ACTIVITIES

The Group strictly follows the principle of fair disclosure to ensure fair communication with investors and the media and
does not selectively disclose significant non-public information to any person. We are very supportive of investor relations
activities. To facilitate the two-way communication with investors, the Group has adopted different ways, including local
and overseas non-deal road shows, investor meetings, AGM, corporate meetings, conference calls and e-mail consultation,
to closely and frequently communicate with shareholders, analysts and potential investors.

This Year, despite the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic which caused large and small investment summits and on site
roadshows cancelled or changed to telephone or video conferences, our management still maintained close contact with
investors and actively communicated with them in various countries through telephone, email and video conferences to
discuss the Group’s development and direction, providing them with a deep understanding of the Group and also
strengthening investors’ confidence in our sustainable development.

The Group has made use of a number of channels to interact with investors and keep them abreast of the Group’s latest
developments.

Non-deal roadshows and investment forums

We held non-deal roadshows after the interim and annual results announcement so that investors can obtain first-hand
information on the latest release from the management. The Group also actively participated in several investment
conferences organized by investment banks of which the management of the Group directly talked with investors and
analysts to share our financial results, business strategies and etc..

Major investor conferences participated and roadshows held in 2022 are set out below:

Ongoing communication with the investment community
Month A {4 Event 21§

March = A Post-results non-deal roadshow 3457 JE X 5 i858
Post-results non-deal roadshow 248 3E X 3 1§ &E
Post-results non-deal roadshow #4& & IER 5 B &

May & A Virtual China Summit 2022 2022 £ E 4 F hEIgE
August \ A Post-results non-deal roadshow 45 % IR 5 i &

Post-results non-deal roadshow 3451 JE X 5 #85&
Post-results non-deal roadshow 34 % 3E X 5 I§ &
Post-results non-deal roadshow #£4& & JERX 5 B &E

December+= 8 Investor conference REE RS

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2022
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R2022F SR ABREEBBRET ZHAMT :
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Organizers ¥ #E Location 2% / Form FZ=

Morgan Stanley EE4R £ £ %I Telephone conference E:E &%
CICCHEAT Telephone conference E:E &%
First Shanghai % — L& Telephone conference E:E &%
Morgan Stanley EE4R £ £ %I
Morgan Stanley EE4R = F

Telephone conference E:E 2%

Telephone conference E:E &%

CICCHE&AT Telephone conference B E &%
First Shanghai 55 — £ Telephone conference EFE &%
China Securities {52 Telephone conference E:E &5

China Securities {5 #21% Telephone conference EFE S %

ERECERAEERAT | SR FFR
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The Group actively arranged various investor relation activities, including telephone conferences with analysts and investor AEEFHHMTHTEREZEBRTE EEINMMESESR  REESRS  REORE
meetings and etc., in order to keep investors abreast of the Group’s latest updates and business operations. Through such ENBNANMBRFEBONCEER - BBHETH  RMARTHEREEESETHE  ER
activities, we not only maintain close contact with investors so that investors can get more in-depth and meticulous EEFMRAABOERLRER  TANEREEHAEEEERBENESER -

understanding of the Company’s situation, but also collect valuable advice from investors on the Group’s business strategy.

Timely response to investors, analysts and media B Bl EIEH > 40 b B R B A

Our investor relation representative provided detailed and accurate information in a timely manner in response to various REEBFEEAEZRED BEYSHEIRN  KEEERE - REE - SWMEREENE
forms of enquiries from Shareholders, investors, analysts and the media via email, fax or telephone. BEH TREEBARQADERFZNER -

Besides the above systematic communication activities, the Company website also contains an updated investor relations BRTULRFEMENERITEN  ARARUNBEEEBERRECEREEYN > EBHERQATE
section to reach out to the investment community and public with the latest information on the Company. We also promote REERDABATRUEEAQATDVEFTESERSNERIIE - B AT HEMNZHBEEER
proactive communication through direct contact with our investor relations team via email at ir@tongrentangcm.com. KEEEH  ARATBRBREEBERE FEHMir@tongrentangem.com B IR & & 1T H ZH

o REANER -

MARKET DIVIDEND PER SHARE
CAPITALISATION ™ AND DIVIDEND PAYOUT RATIO
(1) L L g v 33
Share Performance & # 8 i Bl M 2 B R B b
“bill HK: %
2019 2018 2017 gl it ety
12.00 0.30 40
Closing price as at 31 December (HK$ per Share) 1342 815 1176 1232 10.62 10.48 9.88 10.78 10.18 123
R12 831 AHKHE (BRET) 1100 : 025 38
Highest price during the year (HK$ per Share) 1430 14,50 1586 17.94 12.00 12.20 14.82 12.50 14.90 10.31
FERAE(SRER) 1000 984 959 020 &
Lowest price during the year (HK$ per Share) 799 775 988 1054 998 755 771 9.09 4.70 9.00 8.95 877 889 045 34
FEREN(SRER) 845 I sz |
Average daily trading volume (thousand Share) 1,385 1,531 854 925 469 424 883 1,120 4,200 8.00 0.10 32
FAFHURXE(TR)
7.00 6.82 0.05 30
6.00 I 0.00 28
: 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
™ Market capitalization are calculated based on the @ B Dividend per Share
closing share price of the Company as at 31 December BREE
of the respective years. @ Dividend e
TERREZRRIEZEF12A31BNAATRHRETE . "; ;; [PEV/ONLS (R
@ Not included 2019 special interim dividend (HK$0.72 TKE L=
per Share) and 2022 special Interim dividend (HK$0.25
per Share).

TEIE2019 F4 B R HRE (§%0.72 B 7T) & 2022
FHBIPHRE (BR0.25 BT) °

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING Ji SR AR R &

The AGM is a platform for face-to-face communication with Shareholders. Our Board members, senior management, BRRAFAGEBARSEBRREIRANTES  KANEEZERE  aREBAS - A EEM
lawyer and external auditor will attend and answer questions on the performance of the Group raised by the Shareholders. RONEZEEIGHE  TURRREEEBEREERIR N EE L EE -

The 2022 AGM was held at 3 Dai King Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, New Territories, Hong Kong on 10 June 2022, for 2022 FMRBFARAEN2022F6 A10ABREEEHARNIB I EWMASHIREIT - 2022
approval of, among others, the re-election of retiring Directors and the general mandates to issue and purchase shares. FRRBEFASLEBEE  HHEEEERAESURBEITRBEROGZ —REEES
Particulars of the major items considered at the 2022 AGM were set out in the circular dated 22 April 2022. All proposed Ho2022FRRBFASLEKERE 2T ESTEFFHNAHB2022F 4822 A2 BERA
resolutions were passed by way of poll voting at the 2022 AGM. FIER2022FRRAFAGLREZAER  HUREAXNESEB -

The 2023 AGM will be held at 3 Dai King Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, New Territories, Hong Kong on Monday, 8 May 2023 FRRBFAEGHN2023F588R(EH— )R L10K300BREEENRARBILE
2023 at 10:30 a.m.. MRS IFFERIT o
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

This Year, the Company participated in selecting activity of the “12th China Securities Golden Bauhinia Awards” organized
by Hong Kong Ta Kung Wen Wei Media Group. We stood out from few hundreds of renowned Mainland and local
enterprises and have been awarded “The Best Listed Company”. Ms. Ding Yong Ling, our chairman of the Board also has
been awarded “2022 Outstanding Entrepreneur”. The representative of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and
the Hong Kong and the mainland governance institutes, celebrities of the political and commercial circles, experts and
scholars attended the awards ceremony. Local and overseas mainstream media were also attracted to report in the
ceremony. Foam boards for promotion of corporate image was set up in the exhibition area of the venue with concerns
and praises from the attending guests and media.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ding Yong Ling, aged 59, is an Executive Director and the chairman of the Board of the Company. She is mainly
responsible for leading the Board to determine the development strategic direction of the Group and the high-level
oversight of the management. Ms. Ding was appointed as a managing director (now namely as chief executive officer) of
the Company in September 2004 and the chairman of the Board of the Company on 11 March 2019. Ms. Ding resigned as
the chief executive officer of the Company on 18 April 2019. Ms. Ding joined Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group in 1984 and
was formerly the head of the foreign trade division of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, manager of the import and export branches
and the executive director and the deputy general manager of Tong Ren Tang Technologies and the director of Beijing
Tong Ren Tang International Co., Ltd., and also is currently the director and the deputy general manager of Tong Ren Tang
Holdings. Ms. Ding graduated from the Party School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China in August
1997 with a bachelor’s degree in major of economic management, and she further completed an on-the-job postgraduate
course in international business administration at the Business School of the University of International Business and
Economics in April 2002.

Chen Fei, aged 52, is an Executive Director and the chief executive officer of the Company and is mainly responsible for the
day-to-day operation and management of the Company. Mr. Chen was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company on 24 March 2020 and was re-designated as an Executive Director and was appointed as the chief executive
officer of the Company on 11 March 2021. Mr. Chen joined Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group in August 1994 and formerly served
as the manager and deputy manager of Operational Management Department of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, the deputy
manager of Pricing Department of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, the deputy manager of Economic Operation Department of Tong
Ren Tang Holdings and the general manager of Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Thailand) Co., Ltd.. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Chinese medicine from School of Chinese Medicine of Beijing Union University in August 1994.

Lin Man, aged 47, is an Executive Director and chief operating officer of the Company and is mainly responsible for the
sales and business management of the Company. Ms. Lin joined the Company in 2004 and was appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company in 2005, the chief financial officer of the Company in 2008, and a Director on 1
February 2011. Ms. Lin was appointed as the chief operating officer of the Company on 21 May 2020 and ceased to be the
chief financial officer and the Company Secretary of the Company on the same day. Ms. Lin is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Lin obtained a bachelor’s degree in arts in Polish from Beijing Foreign Studies
University in July 1999 and a bachelor’s degree in accounting and finance from the University of Lancaster in July 2004.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Feng Li, aged 47, is a Non-executive Director of the Company, who was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 12 August 2022 and re-designated as a Non-executive Director on 13 March 2023. Ms. Feng currently serves
as a non-executive director of Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 1666), a Controlling Shareholder and the deputy general manager and the secretary to the board of directors of
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Company Limited (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600085), a
Controlling Shareholder. Ms. Feng joined Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group in March 2012 and was formerly served as the
manager of the Internal Audit and Legal Department, the assistant to the general manager and the manager of the
Economic Operation Department of the Company. Prior to joining Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group, Ms. Feng worked as a
senior audit manager at PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhongtian LLP. Ms. Feng graduated from the Department of International
Economics of Peking University in 1998 with a bachelor’s degree in economics and she is also a certified public accountant
in China (non-practicing).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper, G.B.M., G.B.S., J.P., aged 75, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company on 12 September 2017. Mr. Tsang is Honorary Professor of the Faculty of Social Science of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Tsang currently serves as an independent non-executive director of Kunlun Energy Company
Limited (stock code: 135) and DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 620) which are listed on
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Tsang held a number of posts in public service, including the President of the Fourth and the Fifth
Legislative Council of the HKSAR from 2008 to 2016. Prior to his election as President of the Legislative Council of the
HKSAR, Mr. Tsang served as a member of the Legislative Council from 1998 to 2016, representing the Kowloon West
constituency from 1998 to 2008 and the Hong Kong Island constituency from 2008 to 2016. He served as a member of the
Executive Council of the HKSAR from 2002 to 2008. From 1992 to 2003, he served as chairman of the Democratic Alliance
for the Betterment of Hong Kong. Mr. Tsang was actively involved in the establishment of the HKSAR. He served as a
member of the Preparatory Committee established by the Standing Committee of the Chinese National People’s Congress
in 1996 and a member of the Provisional Legislative Council of the HKSAR from 1997 to 1998. Mr. Tsang was a member of
the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference from 1993 to 2013, a non-executive
director of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission from 2001 to 2007, a member of the Executive Committee
of the Commission on Strategic Development from 2005 to 2008, a board member of the Airport Authority Hong Kong from
2005 to 2008, a member of the Independent Commission Against Corruption Complaints Committee from 2003 to 2008
and a member of the Disaster Relief Fund Advisory Committee from 2002 to 2008. Mr. Tsang also served as a member of
the Council of The Open University of Hong Kong from 1996 to 2005 and a member of the Standing Committee on
Language Education and Research from 1996 to 2000. Mr. Tsang obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree at The University of
Hong Kong in 1968, Certificate in Education at The University of Hong Kong in 1981 and a Master of Education degree at
The University of Hong Kong in 1983. Mr. Tsang was appointed as a Justice of the Peace (J.P.) in 1998 and was awarded
the Gold Bauhinia Star (G.B.S.) in 2002 and the Grand Bauhinia Medal (G.B.M.) in 2015.

Xu Hong Xi, aged 61, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 13 March 2023. Mr.
Xu is currently the chief professor of Shanghai University of Traditional Chinese Medicine, the honorary dean of the School
of Pharmacy and the head of Shanghai College Engineering Research Center for Innovative Pharmaceutical Research and
Development of Chinese Medicine. Mr. Xu serves as a distinguished professor of Organization Department of the Central
Committee of the Chinese Communist Party, the first batch “Shanghai Distinguished Expert” and concurrently serves as
the secretary-general of Chinese Medicine Academic Disciplinary Assessment team of the State Council Academic
Degrees Committee, a member of Chinese Medicine Professional Education Steering Committee under Ministry of
Education, a member of Chinese Pharmacopoeia Commission, the chairman of Chinese Medicine Experimental
Pharmacology Branch of China Association of Chinese Medicine, the chairman of Chinese Medicine Professional
Committee of Shanghai Pharmaceutical Association, the co-chairman of International Conference of the Modernization of
Chinese Medicine. Mr. Xu successively served as the scientific officer of Chinese Medicine Research Centre at The
Chinese University of Hong Kong, the deputy general manager and senior medical advisor of Hutchison Whampoa (China)
Limited, a director and the R & D director of Shanghai Hutchison Pharmaceuticals Limited, and the deputy director of Hong
Kong Jockey Club Institute of Chinese Medicine. Mr. Xu graduated from Shanghai University of Traditional Chinese
Medicine in 1983 and 1989 with a bachelor’s degree and master degree, respectively, and obtained his Ph.D. degree in
Pharmaceutical Sciences in 1994 from Toyama Medical and Pharmaceutical University in Japan, and conducted
postdoctoral research in National University of Singapore and Dalhousie University in Canada between 1994 and 1998.

Chan Ngai Chi, aged 51, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 15 April 2013.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chan had more than 20 years of financial management, compliance and auditing
experience. Mr. Chan worked in the audit division of PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong and various Hong Kong and U.S.
listed companies. Mr. Chan is currently the chief financial officer and company secretary of Vixtel Technologies Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1782). Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and also a Chartered Financial Analyst Charterholder. Mr. Chan
graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a bachelor’s degree in business administration
in accounting in 1994 and, also obtained a master’s degree in Science from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2003
and an EMBA degree from Peking University in 2021.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Wu Wei, aged 52, is the deputy general manager of the Company and is responsible for the production. Ms. Wu joined
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group in 2002, transferred to the Company from Tong Ren Tang Research Institute in 2014, and
was mainly responsible for product, technology development and project management. Ms. Wu obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Biochemical Engineering from Shanghai Jiao Tong University in 1992 and a master’s degree in Medicine from
Beijing University of Chinese Medicine in 2007.

Tsang Fung Yi, aged 47, is the chief financial officer and the Company Secretary of the Company. Ms. Tsang joined the
Company as a deputy chief financial officer in October 2012. Ms. Tsang was appointed as the chief financial officer and the
Company Secretary of the Company on 21 May 2020. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Tsang worked as a senior audit
manager in PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong. Ms. Tsang graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology with a bachelor’s degree in business administration in accounting in 1998 and is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Zhang Jiliang, aged 40, is the deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Zhang joined the Company in 2015 and
formerly served as the manager of the Business Department, the head of the Innovation Investment Department and the
assistant to the general manager of the Company. Mr. Zhang was appointed as the deputy general manager of the
Company in November 2022. Mr. Zhang is the inheritor of Tang Zuxuan, a master of traditional Chinese medicine, a
member of the Smart Medical Committee of the Chinese Association for Artificial Intelligence, a licensed physician, and a
licensed pharmacist. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Zhang worked as the deputy general manager and marketing
director of the intelligent terminal business department of iFlytek Co., Ltd.. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor degree’s in
communication studies from the University of Science and Technology of China in 2006 and a master’s degree in medicine
from Shanghai University of Traditional Chinese Medicine in 2017.

Yang Zichao, aged 39, is the deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Yang joined the Company in March 2022 as
the assistant to the general manager of the Company and was appointed as the deputy general manager of the Company
in November 2022. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Yang served as the manager of the financial department and director
of China Coal Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Yang is qualified as a Senior Accountant, Chinese Certified Public Accountant
(non-practicing), and International Certified Internal Auditor. Mr. Yang graduated from Nanjing Audit University and
obtained a bachelor’s degree in management in 2006, a master’s degree in professional accountancy from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong and CFO Qualifying Training Certificate from the Shanghai National Accounting Institute in 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors are pleased to present the report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are manufacturing, retail and wholesale of Chinese medicine products and
healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments. The principal activities and other
particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the consolidated income statement on pages
172 to 173 of this annual report.

The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK$0.33 (2021: HK$0.28) per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2022. Such final dividend will be proposed for approval by Shareholders at the AGM to be held on Monday, 8 May 2023
and if approved, will be payable on or before Wednesday, 31 May 2023 to Shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Members of the Company on Tuesday, 16 May 2023.

Details of the dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of the dividend policy of the Company are also set out in the below section headed “Corporate
Governance Report”.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the following periods:

(i) from Wednesday, 3 May 2023 to Monday, 8 May 2023 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of ascertaining
Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell
Centre,183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 2 May
2023; and

(i)  from Friday, 12 May 2023 to Tuesday, 16 May 2023 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of ascertaining
Shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final dividend. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at the address as set out in sub-paragraph (i)
above for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 11 May 2023.

During the periods mentioned in sub-paragraphs (i) and (ii) above, no transfers of shares will be registered.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of the segment information of the Group are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had borrowings of approximately HK$0.6 million (2021: approximately HK$1.3 million),
details of which are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 24 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out
in notes 33 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements respectively and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 178 to 179 of this annual report, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the reserves of the Company available for distribution amounted to approximately HK$2,630.1
million (2021: approximately HK$2,477.8 million).

DONATIONS

Cash charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately
HK$0.1 million (2021: approximately HK$0.1 million).

TEN YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last ten financial years is set out on pages 20
to 21 of the annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue received/receivable from the top five customers in aggregate and the

single largest customer accounted for approximately 56.0% (2021: approximately 48.2%) and approximately 23.8% (2021:

approximately 19.6%) of the Group’s revenue, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, purchases paid/payable to the top five suppliers in aggregate and the largest
supplier constituted approximately 54.8% (2021: approximately 49.9%) and approximately 20.6% (2021: approximately
20.5%) of the Group’s total purchases, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s top five customers include a subsidiary of the ultimate holding
company, subsidiaries of the intermediate holding company and the immediate holding company. In addition, the Group’s
top five suppliers include the immediate holding company, the intermediate holding company and their associates.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had any interest in any of the top five
customers and suppliers.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group values the contributions of employees. The Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract and
motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard. Details are set out below under the section “Emolument Policy” and note
2(t) to the consolidated financial statements.

To maintain its core competitiveness, the Group aims at delivering constantly high standards of quality in the Chinese
medicine products and service to its customers. The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with its customers and suppliers to fulfil its long term goals and carefully select (including and taking into
account their financial position, credit history and other factors) our suppliers to ensure that our commitment to customers
of quality and ethics. As at 31 December 2022, majority of the Group’s trade receivables are due within 90 days from the
date of invoices, and credit periods granted to customers, including related parties, normally range from 30 days to 180
days. Details are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
there was no material and significant dispute between the Group and its customers and/or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Ding Yong Ling (Chairman)
Chen Fei (Chief Executive Officer)
Lin Man (Chief Operating Officer)

Non-executive Director

Feng Li (appointed as an Executive Director on 12 August 2022 and
re-designated as a Non-executive Director on 13 March 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper

Zhao Zhong Zhen (resigned on 13 March 2023)
Xu Hong Xi (appointed on 13 March 2023)
Chan Ngai Chi

In accordance with Article 97 of the Articles of Association, two Directors, namely, Ms. Ding Yong Ling and Ms. Lin Man
shall retire from office by rotation respectively and, all being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election as the
Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with Article 81(B) of the Articles of Association, Ms. Feng Li, who was appointed as an Executive Director on
12 August 2022 and then re-designated as a Non-executive Director on 13 March 2023 and Mr. Xu Hong Xi, who was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on 13 March 2023, shall hold office until the conclusion of AGM and,
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election as the Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors, a confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent. A full list of the names of the directors of the Group’s subsidiaries can be found in the
Company’s website (cm.tongrentang.com) under “Investor Relations”.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Executive Directors, Ms. Ding Yong Ling, Mr. Chen Fei, Ms. Lin Man and Non-executive Director, Ms. Feng Li, entered into
service contracts with the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from 15 April 2022, 11 March 2021, 15
April 2022, and 13 March 2023 respectively.

Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper, Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen, Mr. Xu Hong Xi and Mr. Chan Ngai Chi, being all Independent Non-
executive Directors, entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing
from 12 September 2020, 15 April 2022, 13 March 2023 and 15 April 2022 respectively, unless terminated by either party
giving at least two months’ notice in writing.

None of the Directors has entered or proposed to enter into any service contracts with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group are set out on pages 104 to 109 of this
annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined with reference to market terms and the performance,
qualifications and experience of the individual employee. The remunerations of the Directors are determined with reference
to the economic situation, the market condition, the responsibilities and duties assumed by each Director as well as their
individual performance. Details of the fee and emolument of the Directors are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates various retirement schemes. Particulars of these retirement schemes are set out in note 2(t) to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the interest and short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong)) of Directors
and chief executives of the Company which would have to be notified to the Company pursuant to of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and required to be entered
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules of the Exchange, to be notified to the Company and the
Exchange, were as follows:

Long position in Shares

Name of Directors Types of interests
EEER HERME

Ding Yong Ling T k¥ Personal {8 A
Chen Fei BT Personal {& A

Lin Man # & Personal {l A

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests and short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed under the section “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests in shares” above, at no time during
the year ended 31 December 2022 was the Company, any of its subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company or their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations as
defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or their respective associates has any competing interests which need to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

To ensure that the business classification between the Company and the Controlling Shareholders are properly
documented and established, each of the Controlling Shareholders entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of
Non-competition”) in favour of the Company on 18 April 2013, details of which are set out in the Prospectus, mainly to the
effect that at any time until their collective beneficial interest in the equity interest in the Company is less than 30%, each of
them shall not, and shall procure their respective subsidiaries (except through its interests in the Group) not to, without
prior written consent of the Company, directly or indirectly:

(i) engage in the research, development, manufacture and sales of any products containing ganoderma lucidum or
ganoderma lucidum spores as raw materials in the Non-PRC Markets;
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(ii) engage in the research, development, manufacture and sale of any products with “Tong Ren Tang” brands in
Non-PRC Markets, except for the manufacture of the Chinese medicine products for the two independent third
parties in Japan; for the avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the Deed of Non-competition,
except for the current excluded business in Japan, engage in arrangement with any other parties in the Non-PRC
Markets similar to the excluded business in Japan;

(i)  carry out any sales or registration (new or renewal) for Angong Niuhuang Wan in the Non-PRC Markets;

(iv)  engage in the distribution of any Chinese medicine products in Non-PRC Markets, except for certain existing
arrangements as disclosed in the Prospectus; and

(v) carry out any new overseas registration of “Tong Ren Tang” branded products ((i) to (v) are collectively known as
“Restricted Business”).

In addition, under the Deed of Non-competition, each of the Controlling Shareholders has also undertaken that if each of
them and/or any of its associates is offered or becomes aware of any project or new business opportunity (the “New
Business Opportunity”) that relates to the Restricted Business, whether directly or indirectly, it shall (i) promptly and in any
event not later than seven (7) days notify the Company in writing of such opportunity and provide such information as is
reasonably required by the Company in order to enable the Company to come to an informed assessment of such
opportunity; and (i) use its best endeavours to procure that such opportunity is offered to the Company on terms no less
favourable than the terms on which such opportunity is offered to it and/or its associates.

The Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors) will review the New Business Opportunity and decide
whether to invest in the New Business Opportunity within thirty (30) business days of receipt of notice from Controlling
Shareholders.

Tong Ren Tang Holdings has also granted the Company rights of first refusal to acquire its interest in Beijing Tong Ren
Tang Hong Kong Medicine Management Limited, Beijing Tong Ren Tang (UK) Limited and Beijing Tong Ren Tang Tai Fong
Co., Ltd. on terms which are not less favorable than the terms it wishes to sell to other parties.

In this connection, the Group adopted the following corporate governance measures to manage any potential conflicts of
interest arising from any future potential competing business and to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders:

(i) the Independent Non-executive Directors shall review, at least on an annual basis, the compliance with and
enforcement of the terms of the Deed of Non-competition by the Controlling Shareholders; and

(if) the Company will disclose the review by the Independent Non-executive Directors with basis on the compliance with
and enforcement of the terms of the Deed of Non-competition in its annual report.

In monitoring the competing business of the Parent Group, an executive committee (the “Competition Executive
Committee”) comprising two disinterested Directors, namely Mr. Chen Fei and Ms. Lin Man, has been established with the
following major responsibilities:

(@) conduct quarterly inspection of the distribution channels of the Parent Group, including retail stores and wholesale
customers, to check whether any products containing ganoderma lucidum or ganoderma lucidum spores as raw
materials (other than GLSPC) is sold in Non-PRC Markets; and

(b)  conduct quarterly communications with representatives of the Parent Group to confirm whether their research and
development portfolio has any products which contain ganoderma lucidum or ganoderma lucidum spores as raw
materials.

A supervisory committee (the “Competition Supervisory Committee”), comprising three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper (Chairman), Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen (resigned on 13 March 2023), Mr. Xu
Hong Xi (appointed on 13 March 2023) and Mr. Chan Ngai Chi, has been established, with the following major
responsibilities:

(@) meet quarterly and review the quarterly inspection record and daily communication records by the Competition
Executive Committee (if applicable); and

(b) report findings during its review of the records provided by the Competition Executive Committee to the Board which
will be published in the Company’s annual report.

To the best knowledge of the Competition Executive Committee, they are not aware of the distribution channels of the

Parent Group selling any products containing ganoderma lucidum or ganoderma lucidum spores as raw materials (other
than GLSPC) in Non-PRC Markets for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2022, the interest of the persons, other than Directors or chief executive of the Company, in the Shares
and underlying Shares of the Company which were notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO and entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to
the Company were as follows:

Long Position in Shares

Name of shareholder

BRREE

Tong Ren Tang Technologies E1=E &
Tong Ren Tang Ltd. O E{=Z &5 "

Tong Ren Tang Holdings @?E{ZZ &£ B A 7@
Notes:

(1) Tong Ren Tang Ltd. directly holds approximately 46.85% of the issued share capital of Tong Ren Tang Technologies. Accordingly,
Tong Ren Tang Ltd. is deemed to be interested in 318,540,000 Shares of the Company held by Tong Ren Tang Technologies.

) Tong Ren Tang Holdings directly holds approximately 52.45% of the issued share capital of Tong Ren Tang Ltd. which in turn directly
holds approximately 46.85% of the issued share capital of Tong Ren Tang Technologies. Tong Ren Tang Holdings also directly holds
approximately 1.40% domestic shares and H shares in total of Tong Ren Tang Technologies. Accordingly, Tong Ren Tang Holdings
is deemed to be interested in 318,540,000 Shares of the Company and 281,460,000 Shares of the Company held by Tong Ren Tang
Technologies and Tong Ren Tang Ltd., respectively.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which would fall under
the provisions of Part XV of the SFO to be disclosed to the Company, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements, certain of these transactions also constitute connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into a number of connected transactions/continuing connected transactions with the connected
persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company. The Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the non-exempted continuing
connected transactions of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are as follows:

(1) PRC Distribution Framework Agreement with Tong Ren Tang Holdings

On 2 December 2019, the Company and Tong Ren Tang Holdings entered into a PRC distribution framework
agreement (the “Existing TRT Group PRC Distribution Framework Agreement”) that Tong Ren Tang Group
(collectively refer to Tong Ren Tang Holdings, its subsidiaries, its jointly controlled entities and its associates, other
than Tong Ren Tang Technologies and its subsidiaries) acts as a non-exclusive distributor of the Group and would
purchase the Owned Products (as defined in the announcement of the Company dated 2 December 2019) from the
Group and then distribute the same to retailers or end users in the PRC for a period from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2022.
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Tong Ren Tang Holdings is the ultimate Controlling Shareholder and is therefore a connected person of the
Company under Listing Rules. The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the Existing TRT Group
PRC Distribution Framework Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 are
HK$273,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), HK$296,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the
PRC) and HK$322,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), respectively, which have been revised to
HK$363,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), HK$430,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the
PRC) and HK$470,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), respectively. Details of the revision of the
annual caps under the Existing TRT Group PRC Distribution Framework Agreement are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 6 November 2020.

As the Existing TRT Group PRC Distribution Framework Agreement expired on 31 December 2022, the Company
entered into a renewed PRC distribution framework agreement on 20 February 2023 with Tong Ren Tang Holdings
(the “Renewed TRT Group PRC Distribution Framework Agreement”) to renew the PRC distribution arrangement for
a further term of approximately three years ending 31 December 2025. Pursuant to the Renewed TRT Group PRC
Distribution Framework Agreement, the Company had agreed (i) to sell the Products (as defined in the
announcement of the Company dated 20 February 2023) to the Tong Ren Tang Group and the Tong Ren Tang
Group may, by acting as the non-exclusive distributor of the Group, distribute the same to, among others,
distributors, retailers or end-users in the PRC or use them for the purpose of production; and (i) to expand the scope
of products to be sold under the Existing TRT Group PRC Distribution Framework Agreement by adding Chinese
Medicine Products (as defined in the announcement of the Company dated 20 February 2023).

The annual caps for the transactions under the Renewed TRT Group PRC Distribution Framework Agreement for the
years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025 are HK$330,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in PRC),
HK$380,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in PRC) and HK$436,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in PRC),
respectively.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) of the annual caps exceed 5% and
the annual caps is more than HK$10,000,000, the Renewed TRT Group PRC Distribution Framework agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder are subject to reporting, announcement, circular and annual review
requirements as well as the independent shareholders’ approval under the Listing Rules. The Renewed TRT Group
PRC Distribution Framework Agreement was approved by the independent Shareholders in the EGM held on 14
March 2023.

PRC Distribution Framework Agreement with Tong Ren Tang Technologies

On 13 May 2020, the Company and Tong Ren Tang Technologies entered into a PRC distribution framework
agreement (the “Existing TRT Tech PRC Distribution Framework Agreement”) that Tong Ren Tang Technologies
Group (collectively refer to Tong Ren Tang Technologies and its subsidiaries (either directly owned or indirectly
owned), other than the Group) acts as a non-exclusive distributor of the Group and would purchase the Relevant
Products (as defined in the announcement of the Company dated 13 May 2020) from the Group and then sell the
same to distributors, retailers or end users in the PRC or for the purpose of production for a period from 13 May
2020 to 31 December 2022.

Tong Ren Tang Technologies is our Controlling Shareholder and hence a connected person of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules. The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the Existing TRT Tech PRC
Distribution Framework Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 are HK$50,000,000
(exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), HK$57,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC) and
HK$65,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), respectively.

As the Existing TRT Tech PRC Distribution Framework Agreement expired on 31 December 2022, the Company
entered into a renewed PRC distribution framework agreement (the “Renewed TRT Tech Group PRC Distribution
Framework Agreement”) with Tong Ren Tang Technologies on 20 February 2023 to renew the PRC distribution
arrangement for a further term of approximately three years ending 31 December 2025. Pursuant to the Renewed
TRT Tech Group PRC Distribution Framework Agreement, Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group (collectively refer to
Tong Ren Tang Technologies and its subsidiaries (either directly owned or indirectly owned), other than the Group),
as a non-exclusive distributor of the Group, would purchase the Products (as defined in the announcement of the
Company dated 20 February 2023) from the Group and then distribute the same to, among others, distributors,
retailers or end-users in the PRC or use them for the purpose of production.

The annual caps for the transactions under the Renewed TRT Tech PRC Distribution Framework Agreement for the
years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025 are HK$74,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in PRC),
HK$85,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in PRC) and HK$98,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in PRC),
respectively.
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As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) of the annual caps exceed 5% and
the annual caps is more than HK$10,000,000, the Renewed TRT Tech PRC Distribution Framework agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder are subject to reporting, announcement, circular and annual review
requirements as well as the independent shareholders’ approval under the Listing Rules.

The Renewed TRT Tech PRC Distribution Framework Agreement was approved by the independent Shareholders in
the EGM held on 14 March 2023.

Sales Framework Agreement with Tong Ren Tang Ltd.

On 22 September 2022, the Company and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. entered into a sales framework agreement (the “Sales
Framework Agreement”) that Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group (collectively refer to Tong Ren Tang Ltd., its subsidiaries
(either directly owned or indirectly owned), its jointly controlled entities and its associates (other than Tong Ren Tang
Technologies and its subsidiaries)) would procure from the Group the Chinese Medicine Products (as defined in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 September 2022) from the Group for a period from 22 September 2022 to
31 December 2022.

Tong Ren Tang Ltd. is our Controlling Shareholder and hence a connected person of the Company for the purpose
of the Listing Rules. The annual cap for the transactions contemplated under the Sales Framework Agreement for
the year ended 31 December 2022 is HK$74,000,000.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) of the annual cap exceed 0.1% but
less than 5% on an annual basis, the transactions contemplated under the Sales Framework Agreement are subject
to reporting, announcement and annual review requirements but exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under the Listing Rules. Details of the Sales Framework Agreement are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 September 2022.

New Exclusive Distributorship Framework Agreements with Tong Ren Tang
Technologies and Tong Ren Tang Ltd.

On 6 November 2020, the Company entered into new exclusive distributorship framework agreements (the “New
Exclusive Distributorship Framework Agreements”) with each of Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong Ren Tang
Ltd. whereby TRT International Natural-Pharm, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was appointed by each
of Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group (collectively refer to Tong Ren Tang Technologies, its subsidiaries and its
associates (other than the Group)) and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group (collectively refer to Tong Ren Tang Ltd., its
subsidiaries and its associates (other than Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group and the Group)) as the sole
distributor of Tong Ren Tang branded products in Non-PRC markets for the period from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2023. TRT International Natural-Pharm would purchase Tong Ren Tang branded products from Tong Ren
Tang Technologies Group and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group and distribute them to the Non-PRC Markets.

Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. are both the Controlling Shareholders and hence are
connected persons of the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules. The annual caps for the transactions under
the New Exclusive Distribution Framework Agreements for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022 and year
ending 31 December 2023 are HK$53,700,000 (exclusive of value- added tax in the PRC), HK$61,800,000 (exclusive
of value-added tax in the PRC) and HK$71,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC) with Tang Ren Tang
Technologies, as well as HK$86,200,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), HK$99,100,000 (exclusive of
value-added tax in the PRC) and HK$114,000,000 (exclusive of value- added tax in the PRC) with Tang Ren Tang
Ltd., respectively.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) of the annual caps exceed 5% and
the annual caps are more than HK$10,000,000, the New Exclusive Distribution Framework Agreements and the
transactions contemplated thereunder are subject to reporting, announcement and annual review requirements as
well as the independent Shareholders’ approval under the Listing Rules. Details of the New Exclusive Distribution
Framework Agreements are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 6 November 2020.

The New Exclusive Distribution Framework Agreements were approved by the independent Shareholders in the EGM
held on 17 December 2020.
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Procurement of Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder from Tong Ren Tang Ltd.

The Company and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. entered into a renewed Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder master purchase
agreement on 6 December 2018 (the “Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder Master Purchase Agreement”) whereby the
Company would purchase Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder, being the raw materials for production of Angong
Niuhuang Wan, from Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group (collectively refer to Tong Ren Tang Ltd., its subsidiaries (either
directly owned or indirectly owned), its jointly controlled entities and its associates (other than Tong Ren Tang
Technologies Group and the Group)) for the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021.

Tong Ren Tang Ltd. is our Controlling Shareholder and hence a connected person of the Company for the purpose
of the Listing Rules. The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder
Master Purchase Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2019, 2020 and 2021 are HK$31,000,000,
HK$42,000,000 and HK$55,000,000, respectively.

As the Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder Master Purchase Agreement expired on 31 December 2021, the Company
entered into a new Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder master purchase agreement on 28 December 2021 with Tong
Ren Tang Ltd. (the “New Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder Master Purchase Agreement”) to renew the procurement
arrangement for a further term of three years from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024. The annual caps for the
transactions under the New Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder Master Purchase Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2022 and years ending 2023 and 2024 are HK$54,000,000, HK$60,000,000 and HK$64,000,000,
respectively.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) of the annual caps exceed 0.1% but
less than 5% on an annual basis, the transactions contemplated under the New Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder
Master Purchase Agreement are subject to reporting, announcement and annual review requirements but exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules. Details of the New Angong
Niuhuang Wan Powder Master Purchase Agreement are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 28
December 2021.

Master Lease Framework Agreement with Tong Ren Tang Holdings

On 30 December 2019, the Company and Tong Ren Tang Holdings entered into a master lease framework
agreement (the “Master Lease Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which, Tong Ren Tang Holdings has agreed to
lease and procure other members of the Parent Group to lease certain premises to the Group for its productions and
operations so that any member of the Group may continue, amend or renew the existing leases with any member of
the Parent Group from time to time and as necessary for the future business needs of the Group for a period from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2022.

Tong Ren Tang Holdings is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company and is therefore a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the Master Lease
Framework Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 are HK$21,000,000, HK$16,000,000

and HK$11,200,000, respectively.

As the Master Lease Framework Agreement expired on 31 December 2022, the Company and Tong Ren Tang
Holdings entered into a renewed master lease framework agreement (the “Renewed Master Lease Framework
Agreement”) on 30 December 2022 to renew the lease arrangement for a further term of three year from 1 January
2023 to 31 December 2025. The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the Renewed Master Lease
Framework Agreement for the years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025 are HK$21,000,000, HK$4,200,000
and HK$4,350,000, respectively.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio and equity capital ratio) of the annual
caps exceed 0.1% but less than 5% on an annual basis, the transactions contemplated under the Renewed Master
Lease Framework Agreement are subject to reporting, announcement and annual review requirements but exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under the Listing Rules. Details of the Renewed Master
Lease Framework Agreement are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 30 December 2022.
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Adpvertising Agency Framework Agreement with Tong Ren Tang Century
Adpvertising

On 28 April 2020, the Company and Beijing Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising Co., Ltd. (“Tong Ren Tang Century
Advertising”) entered into the advertising agency framework agreement (the “Existing Advertising Agency Framework
Agreement”) that Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tong Ren Tang Technologies
act as a non-exclusive advertising agent of the Group, to provide the Advertising Agency Services (as defined in the
announcement of the Company dated 28 April 2020) to the Group in the PRC for a period from 1 May 2020 to 31
December 2022.

Tong Ren Tang Technologies is the Controlling Shareholder and hence a connected person of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules. The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the Existing Advertising
Agency Framework Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 are HK$6,200,000 (exclusive
of value-added tax in the PRC), HK$7,600,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC) and HK$8,900,000
(exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), respectively.

As the Existing Advertising Agency Framework Agreement expired on 31 December 2022, the Company has entered
into a new advertising agency framework agreement (the “Renewed Advertising Agency Framework Agreement”)
with Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising on 22 March 2023 to renew the advertising arrangement, pursuant to
which, the Company agreed to entrust Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising, as a non-exclusive advertising agent of
the Group, to provide the Advertising Agency Services (as defined in the announcement of the Company dated 22
March 2023) to the Group in the PRC from 22 March 2023 to 31 December 2025. The annual caps for the
transactions under the Renewed Advertising Agency Framework Agreement for each of the years ending 31
December 2023, 2024 and 2025 are HK$8,300,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC, respectively).

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) of the annual caps exceed 0.1% but
less than 5% on an annual basis, the transactions contemplated under the Renewed Advertising Agency Framework
Agreement are subject to reporting, announcement and annual review requirements but exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under the Listing Rules. Details of the Renewed Advertising Agency
Framework Agreement are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 22 March 2023.

Details of the above continuing connected transactions are further summarised as follows:

®)

™

The price and the terms of the above transactions have been determined in accordance with the pricing policies and
guideline set out in the relevant announcements.

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited

Nature of transaction

Name of connected person
BEALTER REME

Tong Ren Tang Group Sales of the Products

E-—E&EE

Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group
ECERNEREE

Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group
BE{CERGEE

Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group
BE{EREEE

Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group
B{-ZRDER

Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group
BE{EROEE

Parent Group

BEE

Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising
E-ZEttLES

HEER

Sales of Relevant Products

HEMBEER

Sales of Chinese Medicine Products
HEREER

Purchase of Tong Ren Tang branded products

BERCEmMER

Purchase of Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder

BEZEFEN

Lease of premises

MEEE

Provision of the Advertising Agency Services

REESKERE
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TR TR
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45,377 54,000
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1,318 8,900
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Confirmation of Independent Non-executive Directors:

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
these continuing connected transactions have been entered into by the Group:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
2 on normal commercial terms or better; and

(8)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Company’s auditor has issued their unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the Group on pages 120 to 129 of
this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Exchange.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Saved as disclosed above, there is no contract of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and the
Controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries. There is no contract of significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by the Controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Details of Directors’ interests in contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business are set out in the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this annual report. Other than as disclosed above, there was no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries, or its holding companies or
any of its fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an entity connected with the Director was materially
interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisting during or at the end of the year ended 31 December 2022.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2022.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities. A permitted indemnity provision (as defined
in section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in
force throughout this year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group considers the importance of environmental affairs and believes business development and environmental affairs
are highly related. This year, the Group implemented certain environmental protection measures to save energy and reduce
the consumption of resources. These policies were supported by our staff and were implemented effectively. The Board
has also reviewed the 2022 ESG Report. For more comprehensive information, please refer to the ESG Report on pages 42
to 97 of this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As a listed company engages business in Hong Kong, the Group is subject to various laws and regulations including
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622), Business Registration Ordinance (Chapter 310), Inland Revenue Ordinance (Chapter
112) and Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57). Our Group has put in place internal controls to ensure compliance of the
same. In addition, as the Group also engages business in certain jurisdictions, compliance procedures are in place to
ensure adherence to applicable laws, rules and regulations, and in particular, those have significant impact on the Group.
Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operation units in the Company and subsidiaries from time to time.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group does not have significant event occurred after this Year that needs to be disclosed.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining high standards of corporate governance which it believes is
crucial to the development of the Group and safeguard the interests of the Shareholders. Information on the Company’s
corporate governance principles and practices is set out In the Corporate Governance Report on pages 134 to 163 of this
annual report.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. A
resolution for their re-appointment as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM. The Company
has not changed its auditor in any of the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
Ding Yong Ling
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13 March 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES B HHEH

The Board as a whole and the management of the Company are EESrRESRALNTAEEENIEERIEN
committed to the maintenance of good corporate governance CEERAERERF - AEEEE BRERNLZE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & practices and procedures. The Group firmly believes that strict EREANRMEAEENEEREAE  ®MRE
FRAMEWORK SHAREHOLDERS corporate governance can enhance the Group’s credibility and HARERREEHREFBNE ©
ERERRE B 3 ) transparency, thus strengthening the confidence of the Shareholders

and investors in the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had complied with HE2022F12A31ALEE AEE—HET

BOARD GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK all applicable provisions of the CG Code. SESAHTRNAEEREX
EEYERER

COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIRED B¢ F i /7 A 2 & 578
STANDARD OF DEALINGS IN 578 5 B A o <
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY

DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities RABEHRMN ETREME10IRNESEST

ﬁ $@$§—F % E @ %ﬂ}@ Transactions Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 of BERSNEZETR LB EEHE 2RES
BOARD COMMITTEES MANAGEMENT the Listing Rules of the Exchange. Having made specific enquiries to BARAERACET T EETIRINENEER
all the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they had complied AABRMNEAREBETESRINITATE -

with the required standard of dealings and the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by the
Company during the Year.

responsible for the communication with responsible for overseeing the
external auditors and review of the day-to-day management and
Group’s financial information, financial operation with Board’s delegated
AUDIT reporting system, internal control authority, and implementation of
COMMITTEE . y =
EREAR proicedures and n;k‘management ystem the Group s_strateg:]}/ andﬁpollcy
SERIEZHMBRNERLER REESSHTNENES
MBER - BBRERS - AMESE EERREEREE Bt
BrREBEEHE AREB R R BEK

Directors

#H

LD

= Executive Directors Ding Yong Ling (Chairman) T k¥ (E£f#)
. = [} HITES Chen Fei R 7R
responsible for reviewing the structure, & Lin Man we
size and composition of the Board, i
assessing the independence of the : Non-executive Director Feng Li® B F @
¥ ¥ Independent Non-executive Directors 1T
NOMINATION b . : . / FRTEE
and making recommendations to the / ] - ] A 1
COMMITTEE I e e i e Independent Non-executive Directors  Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper 2 S A
H A s Al =
wEZA® re-appointment of Directors BUHTES Zhao Zhong Zhen® HARE
SEEMESSHE - ABRAR - Xu Hong Xi® BEREO

G TEENB IR REE ' Chan Ngai Chi FR 3% Bt

r

responsible for making recommendations Audit Committee Nomination Committee Remuneration Committee
to the Board on the policy and structure %& ? E‘ @’ : TiEE' % § E‘ @ %}?Eﬂl § E @
;{EMUNERATIOI\; of the remuneration of all the Directors iy
COMMITTEE and senior management for approval , Chan Ngai Chi® PR B O Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper® &£ O Zhao Zhong Zhen® HRRO
FMEER byg%ifggﬁgﬁy P A R X ) Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper  Z&EAL Zhao Zhong Zhen® fizle bt Xu Hong Xi® BEEOO
ééﬁ%@ﬂﬁ%&;&%glgge%ﬂjg Zhao Zhong Zhen® AR ® Xu Hong Xi® BREEQ Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper & &M%
S HER IR i ) Xu Hong Xi® HEEO Chan Ngai Chi FRERE Chan Ngai Chi e

(S

Competition Supervisory Committee Competition Executive Committee

responsible for review of findings by the

r | % '}
%811\)/][51;5\—11-115131?5 competition executive committee on %ﬁ g‘ Eﬁ ;ig § E @ ﬁﬁ 5‘ gl 13‘ § E @
COMMITTEE competing business of the Parent Group
= Ty /o= = e 5 . n
| RPEERHA | Efigggﬂﬁzﬁsﬁﬁﬁlﬁ : Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper(" BEEH O Chen Fei B
e WikE Zhao Zhong Zhen® iR © Lin M e
Xu Hong Xi® #"EEO oeean =
¥ COMPETITION * r Chan Ngai Chi 5k 2% Bty
EXECUTIVE responsible for monitoring of the !
competing business of the Parent Group / ] " ) ) ) ; 0 BBLEERIE
;ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁg;gEé 6 B R Being the chairman of the respective committee. AZEE &
- L - @ On 12 August 2022, Ms. Feng Li was appointed as an Executive Director and @  R2022F8 A 128 BHLLTEZEHHTES IR
re-designated as a Non-executive Director on 13 March 2023. 20233 A 13 ARAEAFHTES -
®  On 13 March 2023, Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen resigned and Mr. Xu Hong Xi was ©® 20234 3A13H  HARALERE MBRELERE
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director and the chairman of the REABUKUTES - FHEESEE URERZE
Remuneration Committee, and a member of each of the Audit Committee, the B REZEQURMTEEEZEGIRE -

Nomination Committee and the Competition Supervisory Committee.
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Board composition

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of 7 Directors, comprising 3 Executive Directors, 1 Non-executive Director
and 3 Independent Non-executive Directors. Details of the composition of the Board and the Directors’ biographical
information are set out on pages 104 to 109 of this annual report, respectively. At least one-third of the Board is
Independent Non-executive Directors of which more than one have appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise. The structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board are reviewed from
time to time to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company. The independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors is assessed according to the
relevant rules and requirements under the Listing Rules.

The composition of the Board, by category and position of Directors including the names of the chairman, the Executive
Directors, the Non-executive Director and the Independent Non-executive Directors, is disclosed in all corporate
communications by the Company. The Company maintains on the Company’s website and on the website of the
Exchange, (i) an updated list of its Directors identifying their respective roles and functions together with their biographical
information and whether they are Independent Non-executive Directors; and (ii) the terms of reference of the Board
committees to enable the Shareholders to understand the roles played by those Independent Non-executive Directors who
serve on the relevant Board committees.

Board and Committee Meetings

Regular Board meetings are usually scheduled towards the end of the immediately preceding year to give all Directors
adequate time to plan their schedules to attend the meetings. At least 14 days formal notice would be given before each
regular meeting. Board meeting documents including supporting analysis and related background information are normally
sent to the Directors at least 3 days before regular Board meetings.

The Board meets regularly and held 7 meetings during the Year. In consultation with members of the Board, the Company
Secretary assists the chairman of the Board in preparing the meeting agenda, where applicable, matters proposed by other
Directors are included in the agenda. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has arranged for 1 individual
meeting between chairman of the Board and Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors).
The senior management members are also invited to join Board meetings if necessary, to enhance the Board and
management communication.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Directors actively participated in meetings and a summary of the Directors’
attendance records in 2022 are as follows:

Members of the Board

ETEERE

Executive Directors HI{TEE

Ding Yong Ling ® T k&

Chen Fei B¢

Lin Man 2

Non-executive Director F#1{TES
Feng Li @ B %@

Independent Non-executive Directors B EHTESE
Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper ) & &k
Zhao Zhong Zhen M@ i FR #fE @)

Xu Hong Xi ® #hEE®

Chan Ngai Chi FR3& 5t

™ On 9 March 2022, Ms. Ding Yong Ling ceased as a member of each of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee,

and Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper and Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen were appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee respectively.

@ On 12 August 2022, Ms. Feng Li was appointed as an Executive Director and re-designated as a Non-executive Director on 13 March
2023.
® On 13 March 2023, Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen resigned and Mr. Xu Hong Xi was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director and

the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Competition Supervisory Committee.
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The Company Secretary prepares written resolutions or minutes and keeps records of substantive matters discussed and
decisions resolved at all Board and Board committee meetings. These meetings minutes/resolutions:

o contain sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board/Board committees and decisions reached;
. are sent to the Directors for their comments;
. are sent to all Directors/Board committee members within a reasonable time (generally within 14 days) after such

meeting; and
o are available for inspection by Directors/Board committee members.

Important matters are dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than written resolutions only. If a Director has a conflict
of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be
dealt with in accordance with applicable rules and regulations and, if appropriate, an independent Board committee will be
set up to deal with the matter. Directors must declare his/her interest in the matters to be passed in the resolution, if
applicable.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its Directors for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities undertaken for the Company. During the year ended 31 December 2022, no claim was made against
the Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Ms. Ding Yong Ling, the chairman of the Board, leads the Board in terms of formulating policies. The chairman of the
Board determines the board strategic direction of the Group in consultation with the Board and is responsible for the
high-level oversight of the management. With the support of the Executive Directors and the Company Secretary, the
chairman of the Board ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on all key and appropriate issues in a timely manner.
The chairman of the Board promotes a culture of openness and encourages Directors with different views to voice their
opinion and be fully engaged in the Board’s affairs so as to contribute to the Board'’s functions, and she may meet and/or
communicate with the Independent Non-executive Directors without the presence of the Executive Directors. During the
Year, an individual meeting between Ms. Ding Yong Ling, the chairman of the Board, and Independent Non-executive
Directors was held without the presence of the Executive Directors.

While our chief executive officer, Mr. Chen Fei, is responsible for business strategic planning and day-to-day management
and operation of the Group. The Board believes this segregation of duties helps to supervise and balance the power and
authority of the Board and enhances the independence and accountability of the Board.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

The procedures for appointing and re-electing Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The appointment of a
new Director must be approved by the Board. The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorship taking into account factors such as appropriate
professional knowledge, industry experience, personal ethics, integrity, personal skills, gender, age, cultural and
educational background.

Pursuant to Article 97 of the Articles of Association, at each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation and shall be eligible for re-election. The Directors to retire by rotation will be those Directors who have been
Directors longest in office since their last re-election or appointment.

In accordance with Article 97 of the Articles of Association, two Directors, namely, Ms. Ding Yong Ling and Ms. Lin Man
shall retire from office by rotation respectively at the forthcoming AGM and, all being eligible, have offered themselves for
re-election as Directors at the forthcoming AGM. By virtue of Article 81(B) of the Articles of Association, Ms. Feng Li, who
was appointed as an Executive Director on 12 August 2022 and then re-designated as a Non-executive Director on 13
March 20283, and Mr. Xu Hong Xi, who was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on 13 March 2023, shall
hold office until the conclusion of AGM and be eligible for re-election at the AGM. Accordingly, four directors, namely Ms.
Ding Yong Ling, Ms. Lin Man, Ms. Feng Li and Mr. Xu Hong Xi will retire at the forthcoming AGM, and all being eligible,
would offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

The Company has entered into service contracts with each Executive Director and the Non-executive Director as well as
appointment letters with Independent Non-executive Directors. The tenure of all Directors is 3 years.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders for sustainable development of the Group. The Board is responsible for
formulating the overall strategies as well as monitoring and evaluating the operation and financial performance of the
Group. The Board reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering overall Group strategy, major acquisitions
and disposals, annual and interim results, recommendations on Directors’ appointment or reappointment, approval of
major capital transactions and other significant operational and financial matters. All the Directors carry out their duties in
good faith and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations and pursue excellence in the interests of the
Shareholders at all times.
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Our Executive Directors, together with our Non-executive Directors (including our Independent Non-executive Directors)
offer diverse industry expertise, serve the important function of advising the management on strategies and ensuring that
the Board fulfils high standards of financial and other mandatory reporting requirements as well as providing adequate
checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole.

The Non-executive Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors) not only exercise their independent
judgment and advise on the future business direction and strategic plans of the Company, but also review the financial
information and operational performance of the Company on a regular basis.

Every Executive Director has hands-on knowledge and expertise in the areas and operation in which he/she is charged
with. Appropriate attention to the affairs of the Company is measured in terms of time as well as the quality of such
attention and the ability of the Directors to contribute with reference to his/her area of knowledge and expertise, and his/
her global perspective. There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of their appointment and from time to time thereafter the number
and nature of offices held in public companies or organizations and other significant commitments, identifying the public
companies or organizations involved.

Continuous Professional Development of the Directors

All Directors receive comprehensive information on appointment, so as to ensure understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and Directors’ responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

The Company also updates the Directors on the latest developments and changes of the Listing Rules and the applicable
legal and regulatory requirements in the discharge of their duties.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, all the Directors actively participated in continuous professional development,
by attending external training or seminars, attending in-house training and/or reading materials on the various topics
covering regulations, corporate governance, finance and business, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills,
which ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Directors have provided records of
training to the Company.
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™ On 12 August 2022, Ms. Feng Li was appointed as an Executive Director and re-designated as a Non-executive Director on 13 March
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@ On 13 March 2023, Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen resigned and Mr. Xu Hong Xi was appointed as an Independence Non-executive Director
and the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Competition Supervisory Committee.
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Independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company complied with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least 3 Independent Non-executive Directors representing more than one-third of the Board and they
possess professional qualification and experience in the three areas of financial accounting, social science and Chinese
medicine industry, respectively. All Independent Non-executive Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors makes an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company is of that view that
all the Independent Non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in the relevant requirements of the
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

Supply of and Access to Information

Board/Board committee meeting documents with adequate and reliable information are circulated not less than three days
before the regular Board/Board committee meetings to enable the Directors/Board committee members in making
informed decisions on matters to be raised at the Board/Board committee meetings.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as the advice and services of the Company
Secretary and senior management of the Company, with a view to ensuring compliance with the Board procedures and all
applicable laws and regulations.

The Company Secretary acts as the bridge between the Directors and business units of the Group to ensure that queries
raised and clarification sought by the Directors are dealt with and that further supporting information is provided, as
appropriate.

Directors have been advised that the Company Secretary can arrange independent professional advice at the expense of
the Company should such advice be considered necessary by any Director or any Board committee.

Delegation to Management

Executive Directors are in charge of different businesses and functional divisions in accordance with their respective areas
of expertise.

For matters or transactions of a material nature, the same will be referred to the Board for approval. For matters or
transactions of a magnitude requiring disclosure under the Listing Rules or other applicable rules or regulations,
appropriate disclosure will be made and where necessary, circular will be prepared and shareholders’ approval will be
obtained in accordance with the requirements of the applicable rules and regulations. Specially, the Board has had in place
Guidelines for Investments stating the authority approval limits and procedures.

The Board led by the chairman, is responsible for the Group’s future development directions; overall strategies and
policies; evaluation of the performance of the Group and the management and approval of matters that are of a material or

substantial nature. Under the leadership of the chief executive officer, management is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DUTIES

The Board has delegated the responsibility of performing the corporate governance duties to the Audit Committee, and is
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties according to the Code Provision A.2.1, which includes:

(1) developing and reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance of the Group;

2 reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(8)  reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors
and employees; and

(5)  reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate governance report of the
Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established an Audit Committee, a Remuneration Committee and a Nomination Committee on 28 March 2013
with written terms of reference which are available for viewing on the websites of the Company and the Exchange. Board
committees report to the Board of their decisions and recommendations at the Board meetings.

Audit Committee

The Board established the Audit Committee with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of the
Listing Rules and the CG Code. As at 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee has 3 members (all of them are the
Independent Non-Executive Directors) comprising Mr. Chan Ngai Chi (chairman), Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper and Mr. Zhao
Zhong Zhen. On 13 March 2023, Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen ceased as a member of the Audit Committee and Mr. Xu Hong Xi
was appointed as a member of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to communicate with external auditor; to review the remuneration,
terms of engagement, independence and objectivity of the external auditor; to review the accounting policy, financial
position, the financial reporting system, internal control procedures and risk management system of the Company and
making recommendations thereof.

Minutes drafted by the Company Secretary are circulated to members of the Audit Committee within a reasonable time
after each meeting. Audit Committee meetings were held in March, August and December of 2022.

The following is a summary of the work of the Audit Committee during 2022:
(1) Reviewed the financial reports for 2021 annual results and 2022 interim results;

() Reviewed the findings and recommendations of the internal audit department on the work of various departments
and related companies;

) Reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems;
4) Reviewed the external auditor’s audit findings;
(5)  Reviewed the auditor’s remuneration;

(6) Reviewed the control mechanisms for the risks of different business units and advising on action plans for
improvement of the situations;

(7) Performed the corporate governance functions and reviewed the corporate governance policies and practices; and
8) Reviewed the connected transactions with the Parent Group.

On 28 February 2023, the Audit Committee met to review the Group’s 2022 consolidated financial statements, including
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, in conjunction with the Company’s external auditor. After
review and discussions with the management, internal auditor and external auditor, the Audit Committee endorsed the
accounting treatment adopted by the Company, and the Audit Committee had to the best of its ability assured itself that
the disclosure of the financial information in the Annual Report 2022 complied with the applicable accounting standards
and the Listing Rules.

The Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2022 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee therefore resolved to recommend for the Board’s approval the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022. The Audit Committee also recommended to the Board the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s external auditor for 2022 and that the related resolution shall be put forth for
Shareholders’ consideration and approval at the 2023 AGM.

No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the existing auditing firm of the Company during the two years
after he/she ceased to be a partner of the auditing firm.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 to
Rule 3.26 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. As at 31 December 2022, the Remuneration Committee has 3 members
(all of them are Independent Non-executive Directors) comprising Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen (chairman), Mr. Tsang Yok Sing,
Jasper and Mr. Chan Ngai Chi. On 9 March 2022, Ms. Ding Yong Ling ceased as a member of the Remuneration
Committee and Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper was appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee. Subsequently,
on 13 March 2023, Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen ceased as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Mr. Xu Hong Xi was
appointed as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to make recommendations to the Board and review the
terms of the remuneration package of each Director and member of senior management of the Company and making
recommendations to the Board regarding any adjustment thereof in accordance with the Group’s corporate goals and
objectives; and to review and evaluate the performance of individual Directors. No Director shall participate in any
discussion about his or her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee did consult the chairman of the Board and/or the Executive Directors about proposals
relating to the remuneration packages and other human resources issues of the Directors and senior management of the
Company, including but not limited to, succession plan and key personnel movements as well as policies for recruiting and
retaining qualified personnel. The human resources department provides administrative support and implements the
approved remuneration packages and other human resources related decisions approved by the Remuneration Committee.
The remuneration of the Directors was determined with reference to their respective experiences, responsibilities with the
Group and general market conditions.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration Committee had held 2 meetings to review the remuneration
package of the Directors and senior management of the Company, and review and recommend to adjust the Directors’ fee
of Independent Non-executive Directors. Details of the remuneration of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2022
are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms of reference in compliance with the Rule 3.27A of
the Listing Rules and the CG Code. As at 31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee has 3 members (all of them are
Independent Non-executive Directors) comprising Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper (chairman), Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen and Mr.
Chan Ngai Chi. On 9 March 2022, Ms. Ding Yong Ling ceased as a member of the Nomination Committee and Mr. Zhao
Zhong Zhen was appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee. Subsequently, on 13 March 2023, Mr. Zhao Zhong
Zhen ceased as a member of the Nomination Committee and Mr. Xu Hong Xi was appointed as a member of the
Nomination Committee. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee had held 2 meetings to
review the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board,
recommend the re-appointment of the Directors standing for re-election at the AGM, and review and make
recommendation to the Board for the appointment of an Executive Director and members of the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least annually and to make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; to identify individuals suitably
qualified to become the Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection and/or
re-appointment of individuals nominated for directorships of the Company and to assess the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors. In reviewing and recommending the appointment of new Directors, the Nomination Committee
would seek to identify the competencies required to enable the Board to fulfill its responsibilities. The resume or document
of the nominee or candidate would be given to the Nomination Committee for consideration.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the approach to diversity of members of the Board and the
Nomination Committee reviews such policy periodically. The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of diversity
of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business. All Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board members.
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CRITERIA FOR NOMINATION AND APPOINTMENT OF EHRA LB
DIRECTORS

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the following criteria should be considered by the Nomination EPEREERBRBAETESE  ERE8Sk SEESREETH%EL
Committee and/or the Board:

. Character and integrity. . Mg B S o

. Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under the . B BEEANTEBRERABNELER KI5 ABRER  UREEER
Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy. EZUEBEMBRENZ TLRAE -

. Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity on the Board. . AERESEREZ N EMEMNNEATFEEEZ -

. Requirement for the Board in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidate would be considered . BELTRAUWKE  UARSZLTRARIIBREARSWREABEILMNIES -

independent with reference to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

. Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience, . REANELEER KT - LB BYM MRS TFATAESSEERN
independence, gender and cultural diversity. EABEER -
. Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board . RAEERRCRARNEANE BT ARESSNEREREETETEEENNK
committee(s) of the Company. BHBE -
. Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the Company’s business and succession plan and where applicable, . HMEARAARERRESHTTEAMNEMETEREZ  REAZEER /REEETT
4 may be adopted and/or amended by the Board and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for nomination BHRESREARETHERMAR BETEERZ -

of Directors and succession planning.

NOMINATION PROCEDURE OF DIRECTORS
HR G RY | | N\

Nomination Committee and/or the Board Nomination Committee R EZE &

BEZEEER HEES " 4

i e Should recommend to the Board to appoint A4
Appointment of New Director ZEHE = ' 4 the appropriate candidate for directorship, as i d
* May select candidates for directorship from : ?' applicable. | T
various channels, including but not limited to -.':I‘ BREFABACEAE S —=HnESelEYE wh
internal promotion, re-designation, referral by = (MEA) o 0.
other member of the management and external '\\'\ -
recruitment agents. "‘f-.‘_ .
THEERATHRBES AL SEETERAR % = ar ,
BEA BT HEEEHMR SN BERR — : ; i, v 4
AR —
SN e Upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new Director and _.."L--'T—= — :"’-1'.-._ The Board EE €
. = the biographical information (or relevant details) of the candidate, ,r"_x" h e Should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out above to ’.‘-" y T,“, above to determine whether such candidate is qualified for
determine whether such candidate is qualified for directorship. [k i directorship.
EREEZEHESNEBIREFEANEAER (SAEREFE)E K& l i 5 L EBIRHEZIRBEAN  UREZREARTEEREREES -

B EMERFFAZIREN  DREZGBAZESEREEES - '

¢ |f the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should rank them by
order of preference based on the needs of the Company and
reference check of each candidate (where applicable).
WBERSR—EARZEESHNEREA  BREAQXANEEZERESN
REANFBES (WER) HIMMANELERE -

¢ Should make recommendation to Shareholders in respect of the
proposed election of Director at the general meeting, as
applicable.

BRBERAS LHREAESHRIABRRBHES (WEAR) -

Shareholders & 3R
e (Cast vote on a resolution to elect or re-elect a candidate as
Director at the general meeting.

ERRAETREARERREES ZRRETRR

Re-election of Director Ei2 &%=

e Should review the overall contribution and
service to the Company of the retiring Director ;
and the level of participation and performance ,',_':-; y
on the Board. 4
EREABRETESHAAANERERMREL
UREESENSHEBRERRR -
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BY GENDER
iV

BOARD AND
WORKFORCE DIVERSITY

Selection and appointment of new Directors and senior
management will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, qualifications, skills,
knowledge, business and related experience, commitment,
ability to contribute to the Board process and such qualities
and attributes that may be required by the Board. The
ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the

Board and the Company. Directors
B2
The Board currently comprises 4 male Directors and ® Male 21 @ Fomale Zi%
3 female Directors, and having 2 male senior management
and 2 female senior management. The Board considered that Senior management
the gender diversity at Board level has been achieved. EREEAS

©® Male B @ Female %
As at 31 December 2022, the percentages of male and
female in the workforce (including the Directors and senior
management) are 29% and 71% respectively. Details of the These charts are produced based on the
gender ratio and relevant data are set out in the ESG information as at 31 December 2022.
Report of this report on pages 74 to 75. The Group will W EEFIZEE2022F 12 A31 HHERFH -
continue to maintain the gender diversity in the workforce.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors are provided with a review of the Group’s major business activities and key financial information on a regular
basis and the management provide all members of the Board with monthly updates of the Company’s performance.

The Board has included the separate statement containing a discussion and analysis of the Group’s sustainability strategy
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Stable and sustainable returns to Shareholders to be our goal of the Company. The Board considered that it would be
prudent and appropriate to target a dividend payout ratio not less than 30%. In deciding whether to propose a dividend,
determining the dividend amount as well as to provide relatively steady dividend payout ratio, the Board takes into account
the Group’s earnings performance, financial results, cash flow position, investment requirements, business conditions and
strategies, future operations and earnings, any limit to the payment of dividend and any other factors that the Board may
consider as relevant.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board, supported by the finance department, is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the
Company and the Group. The Board has prepared the financial statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting policies
have also been used and applied consistently. The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the independent auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibilities is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 164 to 170 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

Details of Directors’ interests in the Shares are set out in the Directors’ Report on pages 116 to 117 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tsang Fung Yi is the chief financial officer of the Company and the Company Secretary, as well as a full-time employee
of the Group, discharges the functions of Company Secretary with her professional skill and extensive experience. To
update her skills and knowledge, Ms. Tsang complied with the relevant professional training requirements under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2022. The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
subject to Board approval in accordance with the Articles of Association. The Company Secretary reports to the Board and
also to the Chief Executive Officer on day-to-day duties and responsibilities. Company Secretary is responsible for
supporting and advising the Board on governance matters. All Directors have access to the advice and service of the
Company Secretary to ensure that board procedures, all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers in respect of the services
rendered for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out as follows:

Serviced rendered to the Company &7~ 5 fri2 (IR 3%

Audit services #ZE R
Non-audit services FE#% BAR 7%
Total 5t

Fee paid/payable to other auditors were approximately HK$715,000.

Non-audit services mainly include tax consultancy services.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Internal Control and Risk Management System

The Group has set up a risk management regulation and internal control procedure to establish a clear structure and
procedures for risk management and internal control with a systematic and rigorous approach. The Group’s risk
management and internal control systems are aligned with the internal control framework of international body consisting
of the five elements, namely, the control environment, risk assessment, control activities, information and communication,
and monitoring activities. The Group’s risk management and internal control governance structure is based on the “3 lines
of defense” model comprised of day-to-day operational management and control, risk and compliance management, and
independent supervision assurance.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal control systems and reviewing its
effectiveness. The management is responsible for implementing and maintaining a robust risk management system and
internal control procedure to protect the Group’s assets and interests of stakeholders. The Board annually reviews the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, and staff training programs together with its relevant budget of
the Group’s accounting, internal auditing and financial reporting as well as those relating to the Group’s ESG performance
and reporting, and also the satisfaction with the adequacy of the parties concerned.
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Identification, Evaluation and Management of the Significant Risks Procedure

The Board is responsible for determining the Group’s risk profile within the acceptable tolerance levels for significant risks,
overseeing the Group’s risk management framework, reviewing the Group’s significant existing and potential risks and their
response and ensuring risk management effectiveness. The Group has set up a risk management committee. The risk
management committee discusses and collects risk monitoring report through meeting to review the management of these
risks and effectiveness of response, and to constantly monitor the changes in risks.

The Group assesses the existing and emerging risks as well as identifies, filters and prioritizes the significant risks faced by
the Group by the likelihood and degree of impact of the risks to identify risks. The Group has adopted a top-down
approach to review and assess if risks are comprehensively identified and prioritised, and properly addressed by the
management to accomplish the Group’s objectives.

This Year, the significant risks were identified by the Group, which included strategic risk, market risk, operational risk, and
legal risk. Certain response measures for significant risks were established, and the relevant functional departments and
operation units performed daily monitoring on the identified risks pursuant to the established risk management workflow
and response measures, and then submitted a “Risk Control Report”, which summarised the overall status of the risks and
risk management activities, to the risk management committee. The risk management committee prepared “Risk
Management Report” in accordance with the monitoring status of the significant risks and reported to the Audit Committee
by relevant department. The relevant department will also report the significant risks, material changes and the associated
response plans and highlights to the Audit Committee regularly to enhance the accountability and quality of the risk
management programme.

The Group’s enterprise risk management programme is a structured mechanism and a continuous process of identifying,
evaluating, responding, controlling, monitoring and reporting of the risks that the Group faces. The significant process of
the Group’s enterprise risk management is illustrated below:

Risk Risk Risk
Identification Assessment Response

J i JE B A

R R

Evaluate, sort and prioritise
the risks faced by the Group
according to the possibility risks assessed

and degree of impact P RS 2 B KRB ) E R
the Group’s strategic direction RIEEME N R 22 i

and business development ErtEEEYNERR - WS

eonditiep LR BN AR IR

BBWNE HARIEEREE
FER  EEAEEERTS @M
BEREMAR BT EEEER
HE SRR

Formulate the response
measure to the significant

Identify risks which affect the
Group’s goals achievement
through seminars, interviews
or questionnaires as well as
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Risk
Monitoring
Ja e i 47

By monitoring the implementation
of risk management, examine
its effectiveness and improve in
a timely manner based on the
change of risk as well as the
deficiencies in risk
management
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DISTRIBUTION OF
THE SIGNIFICANT
IDENTIFIED RISKS
5k ) 28K J B £

Risk
Reporting
J i E
GO A,

Prepare the risk management
reports in line with the risk
monitoring results
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@ Strategic risk @ Operational risk
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@ Market risk @ Legalrisk
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Major Risks of the Group

AEEZERBE

Investment Risk

RERR

Macroeconomic Risk
LB E R

Description of the Risks

L B

Investment Risks can be divided into four aspects: project decision-making, project
implementation, effect evaluation, and suspension and quit. If the Group lacks of risk
awareness and risk control mechanism when making decisions on investment
projects, feasibility demonstration and lacks of scientific demonstration or formality
when due diligence, and fail to perform the correct decision-making on approval and
filing procedures, decision-making risks on investment projects may arise. If the
Group lacks in-process supervision and control procedures in the investment
process, lacks remedial measures when the decision-making environment and
specific circumstances change, and fails to perform the decision-making change
procedures on approval, it may generate investment project implementation risks. If
the Group’s failure to analyze, summarize and evaluate the purpose, execution
process, benefits, realization of expected goals, rationality of the project and the
realization of benefit indicators of the completed investment projects, it may result in
investment effect evaluation risks. If the Group has not made a prudent investment
decision on quit, and the investment quit method is not selected properly, there may
be a risk of investment suspension and quit.
RERBEAIADHBEARK - BB B - XRAE - PILREHORGE - B4XEE
ETREEBARERZ ARSHMERS QS - T EREERATR=ZRE2
g RN REBTERNEARBRRER - BETREEREBEBRER
o EASEEREBERPREZBPINESNZFER  EARBRRNEARERERE
FLRZWREE - REBTEMAREREF BB AELREEBBRERE -
EAEEAREHECRREEANEN  FITERE & HHEENER  HAMN
SEMRUSEEERSETON BERTE  BEUREERENRTEERRE -
EAEEAAEEMETRERIAE  RERHANBEETE  BEURELERE
FUER R o

Macroeconomic Risks can be divided into three major aspects: changes in the global
economic environment, economic inflation, and the impact of public emergencies on
the macroeconomic. If there are major changes on national economy of the area
covered by the Group’s business, risks of changes in the global economic
environment may arise. Inflation risks may result in inflation, currency depreciation,
and a decline in purchasing power; unexpected social incidents and health incidents
may cause the retail environment to become quieter and cause the retail business
environment to deteriorate.

FBRBREBTMAD HEREERREL KEBRR  REAASHHEBELESE
H=ZKFH FARENXBEEEEENEREBEREERNE L TRELERHREE
RIBSEE  RERREARBTHRELIRERE SE¥ERE MBEHTE - =it
SEMANFLESEN  CIBZERENEL  BUTELERERL -
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Control Measure(s)

TERREHEN

The major measures to Decision-making Risks on Investment Project: Before making investment decisions, the
Group compiles decision-making documents such as feasibility reports and processes approval procedures in
accordance with relevant investment regulations; conducts in-depth research on project product registration,
overall arrangement of medical personnel, overseas market industrial policies, political economy, and
epidemics. Preparation in advance to reduce the risk of investment project decision-making effectively.
REFERRKRE RN EZREIER | RETRERKN > ARERBREMERE - HETITHHRESREX
HARBFIIBELL ; SEIEEEREM  RETHERAA KRBT SEEBE  BUAKE - RESHER
AFHE - RAER - BRREREEBRERE

The major measures to the Implementation Risks of Investment Projects: The Group’s investment projects are
carried out in an orderly manner in accordance with relevant investment management systems; a reporting
mechanism for changes in project has been established; the system’s systemic requirements for demonstration
of projects are followed to ensure that the project is based on scientific demonstration.
REBAERRBHEIZREER AREREBAERRETEABHER FBET B SHER SN
ERE  BREGIEHRIBEENRAMER  BREVYENSZREZL -

The major measures to the Effect Evaluation on Risk of Investment: The Group evaluates implemented projects
based on relevant measures for the management of post-evaluation of investment projects to ensure that the
risk of subsequent project investment effect evaluation is truly controllable.

REMRTERBHEZREER  ARERBREE B ATEEEREINEH EBiE B ETTE  BRE
BIEEREM RN ESEE A o

The major measures to the Risk of Investment Suspension and Quit: The Group strictly implements the
decision-making and implementation procedures for project quit in the investment management, “San-Zhong,
Yi-Da”system, and strictly implements them in practice.
REPILRERBNEZEEER  AEBBREHITREERE - ASHERHERRENARER - &
HRFHNER  EEEPEEHT

The major measures to the Risks of Changes in the Global Economic Environment: Under
strengthening epidemic prevention and control, the Group will resume work and production as
soon as possible, scientifically assess market risks, make prudent investments, and strengthen
internal management and control to minimize the impact of macro risks on itself.
PREBRRECEABNTIEZRERER  AEEEMBEBHENART H HE2FEHEER  EER
E UMERANKEER  IFBCBABEBEINEERIGE -

The major measures against Economic Inflation Risks: The Group speeds up the return of funds
while increasing the procurement and reserves of expensive raw materials required for
production, reasonably controlling the cost of capital, improving the efficiency of capital use,
and alleviating the risks of inflation and rising raw material costs.

KEBRRBNIZEREER  AEENRESORFSENEEMZTEMAEMBNRBNERE &2
BEHEESHE  BAESHEARER  ERBERRREMBEA EANRRE -

The major measures to the Macroeconomic Impact of Public Emergencies: The Group pays
attention to national and regional import and export regulations, actively responds to
endangered species raw materials policies, prevents and controls excessive heavy metals and
pesticide residues in raw materials and finished products, and ensures that packaging
instructions meet policy requirements to reduce product import and export risks effectively.
REAHASHELELBELERBNIEREER 25ERBHERERE 825 R T HEXER
B RESHMEEIREEREZZ HX FAEESHIHESRTENER  LENEBER  HAR
THRIBYESAERBIX  BIREBELERRIBEENEEDEE -
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Major Risks of the Group  Description of the Risks

AEBETEEBE L B

Policy Risk (Impact on Policy Risks can be divided into four major aspects: Regulations on Chinese medicine
the industry as a whole) and Chinese Medicine Industry, Regulations on Food and Health Products, Access
BERRK (HEEERN and Registration, and Product Import and Export. The Group’s TCM products, TCM,
®E) healthcare consultation, and food or health products are subject to regulatory
supervision. If the Group fails to meet the requirements of laws and regulations, it
may cause regulatory risks in the TCM industry or food and health products. If the
Group misunderstands or is unclear about the market conditions, standards and
approval procedures, or fails to meet the registration/filing requirements, it may cause
access and registration risks. The Group’s import and export activities of the products
are regulated by the laws and regulations of different jurisdictions; failure to meet the
requirements may result in product import and export risks.
BRRBEBAASBTPEPETEER ERREMRER  EAREMRERELAM
AREH - AKENHEESR P8 RELZARSRIRBRIEZREE  55EK
BT AEERER  BAELPHEIPBITELIARARIBRRARBRERER - &
AEEHEMEAE TSGR BEREMEFTER  FEWMBARERSTE
i/ BRER > BAREEEAREMER - AEEFfEERNWELEBZRE
ERBEERRE  MRERESER  BEURELEEREL DRR -

Evaluation on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems twice a year, covering the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks, the ability to
respond to changes in its business and the external environment of the Group, the effectiveness on the measures of
significant risks, the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems,
the duties of internal audit department and its effectiveness, etc..

Based on the results of the above review, for the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board considers that the risk
management and internal monitor systems are well effective. Such systems of the Group are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Internal Control

The Company has set up an independent internal audit department which regularly reports directly to the Audit Committee.

The internal audit department is responsible for reviewing all aspects of the Group’s activities, risk management, corporate
governance processes and constantly supervising the work flow and risk assessment of each department of the Group,
and to independently assess the effectiveness of the internal control systems and risk management programme in order to
seek continuous improvement.

Being an integral part of the risk management to provide assurance on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
programme and system of internal control, the internal audit department carries out assessment on the risk management
programme. When formulating the annual project plan, the internal audit department conducts assessment on the Group’s
business activities with significant risks. The Audit Committee reviews and approves the annual project plan and approve all
subsequent major changes (if any) during the regular meeting. In the individual audit project, the internal audit department
will further assess the key areas of strategic, market, financial, operational and legal risks to evaluate the control
effectiveness and the response measures adopted by management.

The internal audit department will communicate with management in details on all findings and recommendations on
internal control deficiencies identified from each audit work. Management will establish remedial plans to improve those
internal control deficiencies within a reasonable time period. The internal audit department will report significant
deficiencies of individual engagement to the Audit Committee. During the Year, the Audit Committee held 3 meetings with
the internal audit department. The Audit Committee reviewed and discussed the works done and reports submitted by the
internal audit department and reported the results of review and discussion to the Board.
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Control Measure(s)

TERREHEN

The major measures to the Legal Risks of the Chinese medicine industry and the Food and Health Products:
The Group prevents risks by collecting and mastering the laws, regulations and policies of the country/region
where the project is located, improving the management system of overseas companies, strengthening the
construction of overseas product quality control systems, regular auditing and monitoring, enhancing
compliance awareness, introducing talents, and treating contract terms carefully.
HEMBTELZARABRERRBREREBRNEIZEREEE A5EBEBREEREL TEER it
BEREARBE  ZEBNIAAEEFE NRERBIEMREEHRE  EHFEFEE - £RS
BREE - AASIE - BEESSRABRRESFABHRER -

The major measures to Access and Registration Risks: The Group dynamically grasps the access regulatory
policy of the country where the project is located, adjusts the product varieties sold in a timely manner; carries
out risk assessment, product registration, packaging design, brand use, etc. in advance; establishes an early
warning mechanism for product access policies.

EARGZMEABNEIZREER  AEEHEEEREMECEEAEERR  ERARHEERRE
MREERRG  RAMRRERDZM BERFT REEASEIF BEYERAEABRNEEHS -

The major measures to Product Import and Export Risks: The Group pays attention to national and regional
import and export regulations, actively responds to endangered species raw materials policies, prevents and
controls excessive heavy metals and pesticide residues in raw materials and finished products, and ensures
that packaging instructions meet policy requirements so as to reduce product import and export risks
effectively.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong and the Listing Rules that inside information should be announced to the public as soon as reasonably practicable.
The procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information are as follows:

o The Board shall take reasonable precautions for preserving the confidentiality of inside information and the relevant
announcement (if applicable) before publication;

. Before the relevant information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group should ensure that all inside information
must be treated strictly confidential; and

o Disclosure must be made in a manner that provides the public with an equal, timely and effective access to the
inside information disclosed, such as through the electronic publication system operated by the Exchange.

EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board aims to present a clear, balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s performance and position in
all shareholder communications. The Board is aware of and updated with the requirements under the applicable rules and
regulations about timely disclosure of inside information or matters regarding the Company and will authorise the
publication of such announcements as and when the occasion arises.

The Board adopted a Shareholder’s Communication Policy on 8 May 2013 which provides that the Board should
endeavour to maintain an ongoing dialogue with the Shareholders and in particular, use AGM or other general meetings to
communicate with the shareholders and encourage their participation. Such policy is being reviewed from time to time to
ensure its effectiveness. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company establishes different communication
channels with shareholders and investors, including:

(i) printed copies of corporate communications (including but not limited to financial reports, notices of meetings,
circulars and proxy forms) required under the Listing Rules;

(ii) the annual general meeting and other shareholders meetings provide a forum for Shareholders to raise comments
and exchange views with the Board;

(i)  updated and key information of the Group is available on the website (cm.tongrentang.com) of the Company;

(iv)  the Company’s website (cm.tongrentang.com) offers a communication channel between the Company and its
Shareholders and stakeholders;

(v) meetings with analysts are arranged from time to time to update on the performance of the Group;

(vij  the Executive Directors and senior management of the Company hold meetings with institutional investors and
analysts through telephone calls, email and video conferences, and attend investor forums in the Mainland China,
Hong Kong and overseas countries from time to time;

(vi)  the Company’s registrar deals with Shareholders for share registration and related matters; and

(viii)  the investor relations department of the Company handles enquires from Shareholders and investors.

In 2022, the Board members, the Company’s senior management, external auditor and legal advisor attended the AGM,

and were available to answer questions. The Company’s notice to shareholders for the 2022 AGM of the Company was
sent at least 21 clear days before the meeting.

VOTING BY POLL

At the AGM held in 2022, the chairman of the meeting (i) explained the detailed procedures for conducting a poll, and
answered questions from Shareholders; (ii) exercised his power under the Company’s Articles of Association to put each
resolution set out in the notice to be voted by way of a poll.

Representatives of the share registrar of the Company were appointed as scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes
cast at the AGM held in 2022. Poll results were then posted on the websites of the Company and the Exchange.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening a general meeting

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for communication between the shareholders and the Board.
An AGM of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may be determined by the Board. Any general
meeting other than an AGM shall be referred to as an EGM.

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association, an EGM can be
convened to consider proposals in accordance with the following provisions:

The Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an EGM, and EGM shall also be convened on such requisition, or in default
may be convened by such requisitionist(s), holding at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the members having a right to
vote at general meetings. If at any time there are not sufficient Directors capable of acting to form a quorum, any Director
or any 2 Shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at a general meeting may convene an EGM in the same manner
as nearly as possible as that in which a meeting may be convened by the Directors.

The requirements and procedures as set out in section 566 to section 569 of the Companies Ordinance are summarised as
follows:

° The requisition must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting, and may include the
text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting, and must be signed by
the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the Company which is presently situated at Room
1405-1409, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists.

o If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting for a day not more than 28 days after the date on which the notice convening the meeting is given, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from
the said date.

. Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists requesting the meeting by reason of the failure of the
Directors duly to convene a meeting as abovementioned shall be repaid to the requisitionists by the Company.

In addition, Shareholders are requested to follow section 615 of the Companies Ordinance for including a resolution at an
AGM. The requirements and procedures are set out below:

(i) Any number of Shareholders representing not less than 25% of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having at
the date of the requisition a right to vote at the AGM to which the requisition relates, or not less than 50 Shareholders
who have a right to vote on the resolution at the AGM to which the requests relate, may submit a requisition in
writing to put forward a resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at an AGM.

(ii) The Company shall not be bound by the Companies Ordinance to give notice of the proposed resolution to
Shareholders entitled to receive notice of an AGM unless a request (a) is sent to the Company in hard copy form or
in electronic form; (b) the resolution of which notice to be given is identified; (c) is authenticated by the person or
persons making it; and (d) is received by the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks before the AGM to which the
requests relate; or (i) if later, the time at which notice is given of that meeting.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The Company welcomes Shareholders’ views and concerns relating to the Group’s management and corporate
governance. The Company’s website (cm.tongrentang.com) provides email address (for enquiry purpose only), postal
address, fax number and telephone number by which Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board.
Shareholders may also put forward their enquiries to the Board at the general meetings of the Company.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no change on the Articles of Association of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

_a

pwec

To the Members of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 172 to 281, comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2022;

. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

The key audit matter identified in our audit is revenue recognition — sales of products.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Key Audit Matter

Revenue recognition — sales of products

Refer to notes 2.(v)(i) and 5 to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. Revenue
from sales of goods amounted to HK$1,682
million for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Revenue from sales of healthcare products and
Chinese medicine to wholesalers and retailers is
recognised when the customers takes
possession of and accepts the Group’s
products, which generally occurs when the
products are delivered to the location
designated by the wholesalers or to the
customers at retail shop.

We focused on this area due to the huge volume
of revenue transactions generated from sales of
products to a large number of customers,
including retailers and wholesalers and the overall
magnitude of revenue to the consolidated
financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We understood, evaluated and tested, on a sample basis,
management’s relevant controls in respect of the Group’s retail
sales and wholesales transactions from contract approval, goods
delivery, recording of sales to cash receipts. In addition, we tested
the general control environment of the information technology
systems and the selected automatic controls that were related to
retail sales.

Furthermore, we conducted testing of revenue, on a sample basis,
by examining the relevant supporting documents, including but not
limited to sales orders, invoices, goods delivery notes and cash
receipts.

Obtained independent confirmations from a selection of wholesalers
to confirm the Group’s sales transaction amounts to these entities
during the year.

Performed testing, on a sample basis, on sales transactions that
took place shortly before and after the financial year end to assess
whether revenue was recognised in the proper period.

Based on our audit procedures, we found the Group’s revenue
recognition in relation to sales of goods was supported by the
evidence that we gathered.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the

information included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or

our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the

direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ho Chun Yu.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 13 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Revenue WA
Cost of sales $H&ERA
Gross profit &/
Distribution and selling expenses 785 & &R
General and administrative expenses — & & 1T B X
Net impairment losses on financial assets % @& = Z B {ET 2
Other gains, net FEALFIS
Operating profit £ 58
Finance income EA#§ Uk
Finance costs B 7§37 H
Finance income/(costs), net FE #5 Uz, (SZH)
Share of (losses)/profits of investments accounted for using the equity method
iR EARZRE (B18),/FE
Profit before income tax B 713 % 31 8
Income tax expense FTiS%iBEx
Profit for the year FEFIi¥
Profit attributable to: AT A+ E{ERIE :
Owners of the Company &2 T#EA A

5o

Non-controlling interests FE#2 ik %5

Earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company for the year (expressed in HK$ per share)

FREQAREEAEESREF (UERETIIR)
Basic and diluted earnings per share & % &7 [ #5& 2 F

The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Note FfizE
5
7

o N NN

10

11

13

12

14

BLE 5 & 00 3R FE S A I P 5 — Y B o

%k 5 MR

BZE2022F12A31BLEE

HK$’000 T8 7T HK$’000 Fi&7T
1,731,095 1,556,158
(580,955) (436,535)
1,150,140 1,119,623
(187,224) (186,368)
(154,457) (155,312)

(6,479) (7,522)
9,595 8,039
811,575 778,460
S 2058 4377
(4,661) (4,707)
15,927 (330)
(1,540) 261
825,962 778,391
(134,669) (126,848)
691,293 651,543
645,875 607,838
45,418 43,705
691,293 651,543
0.77 0.73
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

ok 2 W WL i

BZE2022F12A31BLEE

2022 2021

Profit for the year FE X8

Other comprehensive (losses)/income: E 4R & (F5i8), W :

Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss RJBEE #7748 2 18w H9 78 B
Currency translation differences & 5 & =48

Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss TEE 7 H 1855498 B
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
UARBEFEEHSFHFAEMASWENEREERAREELZD

Other comprehensive losses for the year £ E H 4R & &8

Total comprehensive income for the year FE4 & WS 458

Attributable to: SA T A &G :
Owners of the Company X2 T #HEA A
Non-controlling interests FE#% R %S

Total comprehensive income for the year FE4R & W5 458

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Note FffzE HK$’000 T3 T HK$'000 F& T
691,293 651,543

(22,070) (635)

19 4,155 (645)
______________ 7918 (1,280

673,378 650,263

629,976 607,857

12 43,402 42,406
673,378 650,263

LA b 4R & 2 T IR R 3R R R BE B B R — GFBIE o
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Assets EE

Non-current assets JERE & E
Property, plant and equipment ¥ - &= K& :&E
Right-of-use assets {f AEEE
Intangible assets ELEE
Investments accounted for using the equity method #ZExE AR ZIRE
Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
UARBETEEHESHTAEMGEERENSRERE
Prepayments for purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
BEYE  BERKBUARELEENENTRK
Deferred income tax assets, net SFEIEFTSHEE

Current assets B EE
Inventories 7 &
Trade receivables and other current assets & 5 FEURFIB R iR BN E &E
Short-term bank deposits EHiR TR
Cash and cash equivalents I & RIBEZEY

Total assets #EE

Equity and liabilities # & & &

Equity attributable to owners of the Company Z& 2 T #H A E{G xS
Share capital J&Z<
Reserves f#f&
— Other reserves HAthf{E

— Retained earnings & & Ytz

Non-controlling interests JFiE IRz
Total equity #E==#%5
Liabilities & &
Non-current liabilities 37 & & f&
Borrowings & &
Lease liabilities #HE & &
Deferred income tax liabilities, net SFEEFTEFH EE

Current liabilities 78 &
Borrowings f&&
Trade and other payables & 5 & H fth fE{ 5118
Lease liabilities & & &

Current income tax liabilities & EiFTEHi & &

Total liabilities & & &
Total equity and liabilities #5 &% & B4 %8

The consolidated financial statements on pages 172 to 281 were approved by the Board of Directors on 13 March 2023
and were signed on its behalf.

Ding Yong Ling Lin Man

Director Director

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Note Ff=E HK$’000 387t HK$’000 T3&7T
17 206,681 183,309
16 186,669 214,255
18 59,706 60,953
11 52,996 57,896
19 9,618 5,463

11,724 14,245

20 14,814 22,050

542,208 558,171

21 469,784 431,865

22 969,324 569,378

23 252,997 615,264

23 1,990,966 1,660,304
oo, 3083071 3276811

4,225,279 3,834,982

24 938,789 938,789

25

(41,066) (25,167)

2,706,763 2,504,551

3,604,486 3,418,173

12 134,307 121,331
3798793 3539504

26 333 799

60,401 74,475

20 7,178 7,147
L 7912 82,421

26 219 480

27 235,415 127,550

42,129 52,722

140,811 32,305
B MmesT4 213,057
e 486,486 0 295478

4,225,279 3,834,982

F172Z 281 ENGRE VKRR N2023FIF1I3ARESEHE  YHUTRRES -

T K&
EZE

BA k45 & B 7 R R FE B BE B B 5 — GBI AR -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY et EU AL S

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE2022F12A31AILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company &2 Rl#H AL

Non-
Share Merger Other Statutory Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserves reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity

BA ApHEE Hitrf LR B iRE fRE Wik BB FERED BEE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

TR T T FiEn T T T T TiEn
At 1 January 2021 4202151818 938,789 (13,124) (6,850) 6,229 (5,172 2,097,617 3,017,489 112,021 3,129,510
Comprehensive income 44 &
Profit for the year & ERjE - - - - - 607,838 607,838 43,705 651,543
Other comprehensive (losses)/income Efti4R4 (E18) /Wi
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
UAAEBEFEEEZDH ARMGEUENSREER A EEED - - (649) - - - (645) - (645)
Currency translation differences &% K =58
— Group & - - - - 624 - 624 (1,209) (675)
— Joint ventures and an associate A& ¥ KB A F - - - - 40 - 40 - 40
Total comprehensive (losses)/income %4 (E18) WF# 5 - - (645) - 664 607,838 607,857 42,406 650,263
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners R FiEE UEMEEN S RETHR S
Capital injections to a subsidiary EIfiB 2 A& - - - - - - - 738 738
Transactions with non-controlling interests (Note 31) E2FF i HIERETHR Z (HEE31) - - (6,269) - - - (6,269) (10,333) (16,602)
Dividends paid EffIRE - - - - - (200,904) (200,904) (23,501) (224,405)
Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners SR fiE & UEFTEEN S HETNR S WARE - - (6,269) - - (200,904) (207,173) (33,096) (240,269)
At 31 December 2021 #2021F12531H 938,789 (13,124) (13,764) 6,229 (4,508) 2,504,551 3,418,173 121,331 3,539,504
At 1 January 2022 420221 A1H 938,789 (13,124) (13,764) 6,229 (4,508) 2,504,551 3,418,173 121,331 3,539,504
Comprehensive income &4 K E
Profit for the year & E A/ = = = = = 645,875 645,875 45,418 691,293
Other comprehensive income/(losses) E 4R 4 Wz /(&)
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
NAAEEEAESEHF ARG UENEHEEDABEEZD - - 4,155 - - - 4,155 - 4,155
Currency translation differences E# H i Z58
— Group R&E = = = - (16,694) - (16,694) (2,016) (18,710)
— Joint ventures and an associate & & {5 J B 1 7 - - - - (3,360) - (3,360) - (3,360)
Total comprehensive income/(losses) 4 & Wi/ (E18) A% - - 4,155 - (20,054) 645,875 629,976 43,402 673,378
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners S ZEFiEEUEMEENSRETHNRS
Transactions with non-controlling interests EFF 4R ETHR 5 - - - - - - - 191 191
Dividends paid BT & - - - - - (443,663) (443,663) (30,617) (474,280)
Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners S A5 HFTE EN SR ETHR ZNEE - - = = = (443,663) (443,663) (30,426) (474,089)
At 31 December 2022 7420225128 31H 938,789 (13,124) (9,609) 6,229 (24,562) 2,706,763 3,604,486 134,307 3,738,793
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. EGEREZSHREEBM M — RS -

178 Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2022 T RECEEEBRAFR | “EFFR 179



180

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Cash flows from operating activities & ZBIEENRERE
Cash generated from operations & FiEL 2R &
Income tax paid 21 Fi5%%

Net cash generated from operating activities #&£% E 8 ff =4 FIIR & F 58

Cash flows from investing activities R EEBFTEENRERE
Interest received B WFIE
Dividends received B Wz 5
Decrease/(increase) in short-term bank deposits with original maturities exceeding three months
FRHRA =18 A U £ 2 BERTETORD (35 m)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment & « BE K REFEHR
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets BEY¥% - BERRERELEE
Prepayments paid for purchase of property, plant and intangible assets

BENE BERREREVEENCSHES

Acquisition of an associate U BEHEE A 7]

Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired Wi F 2 5 (R &R IR S S BV FH)

Acquisition of further interest in a subsidiary W& ¥ A T ZEIMERS
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities R & ZEFIEL,(FiA) BE&F4E

Cash flows from financing activities I EEB FIEENRERE

Principal elements of lease payments & {5 EERI RS2 D

Capital injections by non-controlling interests JE{= 4R EE

Dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders B4 A Q TR RAIIRE

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests of subsidiaries B 132 A IFE R AE= IR S
Interest paid 2137 £

Proceeds from borrowing 1& & Fr{5 7%

Repayment of borrowing && £ &

Net cash used in financing activities & &8 fr AR & 548
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents B &R R &S EYIEINFE

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year £l 2 & RIRESEEY
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and cash equivalents & KRB S SEWE X (BE), KE

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FR > RERIREZEY

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Note Ff=E HK$’000 387t HK$’000 T3&7T

28(a) 566,607 915,005
(19,163) (137,835)

547,444 777,170

14,561 5,044

225 180

362,267 (194,167)

28(b) 127 22
(36,577) (10,354)

(1,932) (13,074)

- (39,832)

(196) -

(3,063) (18,553)

335,412 (265,734)

(56,042) (50,496)

- 738

(443,663) (200,904)

(30,617) (23,501)

(4,661) (4,707)

- 387

(433) (166)
oo (585416)  (278,649)

347,440 232,787

1,660,304 1,426,040

(16,778) 1,477

1,990,966 1,660,304
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) are engaged in manufacturing, retail and wholesale of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products
and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments. The immediate holding company of the Company is
Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. (“Tong Ren Tang Technologies”) which is a joint stock limited company
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. The intermediate holding company of the Company is Beijing Tong Ren Tang Company Limited,
(“Tong Ren Tang Ltd.”) which is a joint stock limited company incorporated in the PRC and is listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. The ultimate holding company of the Company is China Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group Co., Ltd.
(“Tong Ren Tang Holdings”) which is a company incorporated in the PRC.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is Room
1405-1409, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange starting from 7 May 2013 and were
transferred to be listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange starting from 29 May 2018.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HKS$), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 13 March 2023.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) and requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income, which is carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where

assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(i) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has adopted the following revised framework and amendments to standards which are
relevant to the Group’s operations and are mandatory for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2022

o Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use — Amendments to HKAS 16

° Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract — Amendments to HKAS 37
. Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2018-2020
o Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to HKFRS 3

° Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 — Amendment to HKFRS 16 (March
2021)

° Amendments to AG 5 Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations

The adoption of the above revised framework and amendments to standards did not have any
significant financial impact on these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)
(i) New standards, amendments to standards and interpretations which are not

yet effective

The following are new standard, amendments to standards and interpretations that have been published
and are mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 or later
periods, but have not been early adopted by the Group.

Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause @

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
HKAS 1 (Amendments)
HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants @
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current @
Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback @

HKFRS 17 (New Standard) Insurance Contracts

HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
(Amendments)

HKAS 8 (Amendments)
HKAS 12 (Amendments)

Definition of Accounting Estimates "

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction @

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments) Sales or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture ©

M Effective for the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2023
@ Effective for the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2024
@ Effective date to be determined

The Group is in the process of assessing potential impact of the above new standards and amendments
that are relevant to the Group upon initial application. It is not yet in a position to state whether these
standards, interpretations, and amendments will have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

(b) Subsidiaries

(1)

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity where the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Business combinations

For acquisitions of businesses under common control, merger accounting method stipulated under
Hong Kong Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations” is used.
The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations not under common
control. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred also includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, and fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(1)

(11)

Consolidation (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation are measured at
either fair value or the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the
identifiable net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Where necessary, accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity as
owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying amount of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals
to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in the profit or loss. The
fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint ventures or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes directly attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ao B B 5 R R B R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2 FREFBORMR (4)

(c) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s investments in associates include
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwiill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in the statement of other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to “share of losses/profits of investments accounted for using the equity method”, in the income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between the Group and its associate
are recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised in the income statement.

(d) Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and
obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and determined
them to be joint ventures. Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. The Group’s investments in joint ventures include goodwill identified on acquisition.
Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint venture, any difference between the cost of the joint
venture and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill. When the Group’s share of losses in joint ventures equals or exceeds its interests
in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint ventures), the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Company’s executive
directors that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(1)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

- all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a
disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
currency translation differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly a factory, offices and retail shops. All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost net of their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as

follows:

— Buildings 25 to 50 years

— Leasehold improvement Shorter of remaining lease term or useful life
— Plant and machinery 3to 12 years

— Motor vehicles 5to 8 years

— Furniture and equipment 2.5t0 12 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2(j)).

(h) Intangible assets
(1) Goodwill

Gooduwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identified net assets acquired.

Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. Gains and losses on disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUSs”), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

(i) Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The customer relationships have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over the expected
life of the customer relationships of ten years.

(iii) Other intangible assets

Within the Group there are three types of other intangible assets: management contract, exclusive
supply contract and computer software. These intangible assets acquired have a finite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over their expected useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(1)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets
(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income (“OClI”),
and
. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

(i) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which

the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

(111) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset.

(a) Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OClI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in
profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2022

o 7 Y 0 i A P

2 FREFBORMR (4)

(1)

T < it E 1Y ol 6L

BRECEAFHNEEIERIREANELEERRFEHEE AT FET
HENR EFESALRABRANESBERKREETREEZRER  BIERT
ABENEERTRE NEENKRAESREATKRESHE  BIREZHEER
HEBE TRESEAEENAIABENREERNFANEABEEME 2R
BERE -FEHRER EERTYIARIRERAENREERAS (REE
HERT) 278 -BREEN CRENFESREENESEARSERTRERS
AT LAREE o

& A E
i #HH
AEERUTHRENYSREREETHE

. BEURAAEEHEEEZHF AAMEERENEREE R

. LSRR ATENEREE -

ZARRRARIBEESREENEBEAURZEENCRRER
BEH-

HRIXZUNESTARE  HOEBBRARAEEETDNHERR
EEEETUIHENEEMEEEEAUAABETEEEEZHA
HipiRA W -

(i) R A AL Ok TR

ERFABERLENSREERIZARR - X5 AREAKEHK
HABERHEEENASN -EUNCREERSRENEFNCIHR
CER BAKECKERTERMEENERLLTRANRRMMRH -
TRMEENKE®ER -

(i) wHE
HRTHABAUAABEHEAHEBH ABENSREE A5

BUEAARBEMNEITEERBRESZESREENR S BERET
IR -

(a) MEFTRH

FEBUAREEHMEREREETREANE - NRAKEHE
EERESERRENOABENGNBAFTARMES WS
BEREIBMAZEARER  TEHAABETNBNELAESERE
B HRRF EXAEECHEIBERANOERE  ZERE
HBRR A E R EM WS e ABE -

HRUAABEEFERERZBH AEMESRalERRE |
HERK (UREERRER) T ERMAREELBIEBIIR -

ERECEAEERAT | SR FFR

195



196

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Measurement (Continued)
(b) Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Group classified its debt
instruments into financial assets at amortised cost:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables, see Note 3(a)(ii) for
further details.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

(m) Trade receivables and other current assets

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. Other current assets include prepayment, deposits and other receivables. If
collection of trade receivables and other current assets is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade receivables and other current assets, excluding prepayments, are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment,
see Note 2(j)(iv) and 3(a)(ii) for further details.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less,
and bank overdrafts (if any).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(0)

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their

intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(1) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(i1) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to
utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

(iii) Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(t) Employee benefits

The Group operates various post-employment schemes which are defined contribution plans and are generally
funded through payments to insurance companies or trustee-administered funds. The Group has adopted a
provident fund scheme for its employees in Hong Kong as required under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, and has also participated in employee pension schemes organised and governed by the
relevant local authorities for its employees in the Mainland China and overseas countries/regions.

(i) Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions to a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

(i) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the group before the normal
retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The group recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a
restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment of terminations benefits. In
the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

(v) Revenue recognition

(1)

(i)

(i)

Sales of goods

The Group sells healthcare products and Chinese medicine to wholesalers and individual customers.
Sales of goods to wholesales and retailers is recognised when the wholesalers takes possession of and
accepts the products which generally occurs when the products are delivered to the location designated
by the wholesalers or to customers at retail shop.

Wholesales

For wholesales, the wholesaler has full discretion over the channel and price to sell the products, and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the wholesaler’s acceptance of the products. Delivery
does not occur until the products have been shipped to the specified location, the risks of obsolescence
and loss have been transferred to the wholesaler, and either the wholesaler has accepted the products
in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. Sales are recorded based on the
price specified in the sales contracts.

No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term ranging from 30 to
180 days, which is consistent with market practice.

Receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered at the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional, which only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Retail sales

For retail sales, the Group operates a chain of retail outlets for selling products. Sales of goods are
recognised when a group entity sells a product to the customer. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately. Retail sales are usually in cash or by credit card.

Service income

The Group mainly provides Chinese medical consultation and treatments in retail outlets. Service
income is recognised at the point in time when the service is provided to the customer and it is settled
in cash or by credit card.

Royalty fee income

Royalty fee income is based on pre-determined rates on the total turnover of overseas entities for them
to use the “Tong Ren Tang” brand name. Royalty fee is recognised in the income statement on an
accrual basis upon sales recognised by the overseas entities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v) Revenue recognition (Continued)
(iv) Financing components
The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the

promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a
consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

(w) Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the consolidated statement of income statement as part of finance income, net.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see Note 10 below. Any other interest income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of
the loss allowance).

(x) Dividend income

Dividends are received from a financial asset measured at FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as other net gains
in the consolidated income statement when the right to receive payment is established.

(y) Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

The Group leases various properties to operate its offices and retail stores. These leases are typically made for
fixed periods of two to five years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain various
different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased assets may
not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease payments:

(i) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(i) variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date; and

(i)  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security
and conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(y) Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

(i) the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

(ii) any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;
(iiiy  any initial direct costs, and

(iv)  restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a

straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases of properties and equipment and all leases of low-value assets
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

(aa) Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance. Risk management is carried out by management of each individual entity
within the Group.

(i) Market risk
(1) Foreign exchange risk

Each individual group entity has its own functional currency. Foreign exchange risk to each
individual group entity arises when future commercial transactions or recognised assets or
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the group entity’s functional currency.

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to the purchase in Renminbi. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. The Group manages its foreign currencies risk
by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates.

At 31 December 2022, if Renminbi had strengthened/weakened by 5% against Hong Kong dollar,
with all other variables held constant, the profit before income tax for the year ended 31
December 2022 would have been HK$19,717,000 (2021: HK$20,096,000) higher/lower, mainly as
a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of Hong Kong dollar-denominated trade
payables held by a subsidiary in the Mainland China whose functional currency is Renminbi.
Whereas, the exposure arising from the other foreign currencies is not significant to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(1) Market risk (Continued)
(2) Cash flow interest rate risk

Other than short-term bank deposits and bank balances, the Group does not have significant
interest-bearing assets or liabilities.

At 31 December 2022, if the interest rates on bank deposits had been 100 (2021: 50) basis-points
higher with all other variables held constant, profit before income tax for the year would have
been HK$24,424,000 (2021: HK$11,373,000) higher, respectively, mainly as a result of higher
interest income on bank deposits.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from bank deposits and trade receivables (including trade receivables from the
immediate holding company, fellow subsidiaries, joint ventures and an associate) and other current
assets.

(1) Risk management

Substantially all of bank balances and fixed deposits are deposited with state-owned financial
institutions and reputable banks listing in the public market. Management considers the Group
has limited credit risk with its banks which are leading and reputable and are assessed as having
low credit risk. Therefore, the expected credit loss is minimal. All the bank deposits are placed
with banks with good credit ratings to mitigate the risk. For trade receivables (including trade
receivables from related companies) and other current assets (excluding prepayments), the Group
assesses the credit quality of the counterparties by taking into account their credit ratings, if the
counterparties are independently rated, financial position, credit history and other factors.
Management also regularly reviews the recoverability of these receivables and follows up on the
disputes or amounts overdue, if any. The credit terms of trade receivables arising from the
wholesale customers are generally within 30 to 90 days (2021: 30 to 90 days), longer credit terms
may be granted to specific customers, are assessed and approved on a case by case basis and
credit terms can be granted up to 180 days. The management is of the opinion that the risk of
default by counterparties is low. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

As at 31 December 2022, excluding those customers under the common control of the ultimate
holding company, there were 3 customers (2021: 2 customer) which individually contributed over
10% of the Group’s gross trade receivables. The amount of trade receivables from these
customers amounted to 49% (2021: 59%) of the Group’s total trade receivables.

(2) Impairment of financial assets
Trade receivables

As for trade and other receivables, the Group has credit policy to monitor the level of credit risk.
In general, the credit period for each customer or debtor are regularly assessed, based on the
customer’s or debtor’s financial condition, their capacity to obtain guarantee from third parties,
their credit records and other factors such as current market condition. The Group is sensitive to
changes in the creditworthiness and financial strength of its main customers due to the
importance of these key customers to the overall revenue.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which
uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. To mitigate this risk, the Group
timely monitors its receivables balances should be paid within a period of time.

Management consider the nature of business of its customers, the default rates given by external
researches over the expected lives of the debtors, repayment and default histories of different
customers or industries to assess the credit risk characteristics and the likelihood of loss
allowance of its customers. The Group uses probability of default (PD), exposure at default (EAD)
and loss given default (LGD) to measure the credit risk and expected credit loss rates for its
customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(ii) Credit risk (Continued)

(2)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The expected credit loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information
such as macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
The Group has identified the GDP of the countries in which it sells its goods and services to be
the most relevant factor, and accordingly adjusts the expected credit loss rates based on
expected changes in the GDP.

As at 31 December 2022, there were customers with known financial difficulties or with significant
doubt on collection of receivables and the management consider the receivables to have
experienced a significant increase in credit risk and defined the receivables as default. The
balance of these receivables was HK$3,126,000 (2021: HK$3,411,000) and the loss allowance in
respect of these receivables was HK$3,126,000 (2021: HK$3,411,000). Please refer to Note 22 for
details.

Receivables for which an impairment provision was recognised were written off against the
provision when there was no expectation of recovering additional cash.

As at 31 December 2022, trade receivables of HK$286,958,000 (2021: HK$54,103,000) are due
from related parties of which HK$51,644,000 (2021: HK$1,357,000) were past due. Given there is
no history of significant defaults from related parties and insignificant impact from forward-
looking estimates, the assessed expected credit losses are not material. As at 31 December
2022, the loss allowance in respect of the trade receivables due from related parties was
HK$225,000 (2021: HK$40,000).

As at 31 December 2022, the remaining trade receivables of HK$653,430,000 (2021:
HK$483,700,000) of which HK$497,734,000 (2021: HK$378,247,000) have not past due and have
an expected loss rate individually ranged from 0.01%-13.65% (2021: 0.02%-3.17%). The loss
allowance for these balance was HK$16,933,000 (2021: HK$11,286,000). At 31 December 2022,
if the expected loss rate in respect of the trade receivables had been 300 basis-points higher with
all other variables held constant, the loss allowance would have been HK$19,603,000 (2021:
HK$14,511,000) higher.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

For other financial assets at amortised cost, the Group applies either a 12-month expected credit
losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of a receivable
has occurred since initial recognition then impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit
losses. Management, considered among other factors, analysed historical pattern and concluded
that the expected credit losses for other financial assets at amortised cost to be immaterial as the
credit risk is assessed as low.

Impairment losses on other financial assets at amortised cost are presented as net impairment
losses within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.

The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet its working capital
requirements. The Group has steady cash inflow from operations and has adequate financial
resources to fund its operations and future expansions. As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s
financial liabilities were mainly trade and other payables amounting to HK$196,883,000 (2021:
HK$88,390,000), lease liabilities amounting to HK$102,530,000 (2021: HK$127,197,000) and
borrowings amounting to HK$552,000 (2021: HK$1,279,000).

The analysis of the financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual
maturities is set out below. The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk (Continued)
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(b) Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. In order to maintain or

adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

(c) Fair value estimation
The Group’s financial asset at FVOCI is carried at fair value as at 31 December 2022 by level of the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair
value hierarchy as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

There were no transfers between any levels during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued)

The Group’s financial asset at FVOCI is included in level 1.

Details on the fair value measurement for financial asset at FVOCI are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The rest of the Group’s financial assets are classified as financial assets and are measured at amortised cost.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets, including short-term bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents and trade receivables and other current assets, approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial liabilities, including trade and other payables, borrowings and
lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

Loss allowance on trade receivables

The loss allowances for trade receivables are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s past experience, existing market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of
each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the executive directors and non-executive director of the
Company (the “Executive Directors” and “Non-executive Director”). The Executive Directors and Non-executive
Director review the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources and have
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The Executive Directors and Non-executive Director assess the performance of the operating segments based on
revenue and segment results of each segment. The Executive Directors and Non-executive Director have determined
the operating segments based on the location of the entities and the information reviewed by the Group’s chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of allocating resources and assessing performance and have determined
that the Group has three reportable operating segments.

The geographical location of revenue is analysed based on location where goods are sold and services are provided.
The details are set out as follows:

(i) Hong Kong — sale of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical
consultation and treatments through retail outlets as well as wholesale of Chinese medicine products and
healthcare products in Hong Kong. In addition, it includes the royalty fee income received from overseas
entities for using “Tong Ren Tang” brand name.

(ii) Mainland China (PRC, but excluding Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan for the purpose of this financial
statements) — wholesale of healthcare products in the Mainland China and the sole distribution of Tong Ren
Tang branded products of Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. to customers outside the
Mainland China.

(i)  Overseas — retail and wholesale of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products and provision of
Chinese medical consultation and treatments in other overseas countries/regions, including Macao.
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At RERREATEABUIINEFBR O HERCENRRECERD
WECERBER -

(i) W - REMBIIER HE (BFEEAM ZERMBPEELIRRERU
RREMHPEDERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ao B B 5 R R B R

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 EbER (4)

Segment assets include property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets, investments PHWEECEVE BRERZE FRESE BFEE REZZARZRE-

accounted for using equity method, financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income, deposits paid UARBEFSEEESHHTAHMGAERENEREE BEVE BERSZHEU

for purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, deferred income tax assets, inventories, trade REFEENERNRES ELHMEHEE - FE EBEZERRERHMRBEE -

receivables and other current assets, short-term bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Segment liabilities EAHRTERRASRRASEEY  HHEEEERE HEEE BESRHEME

include borrowings, lease liabilities, trade and other payables, current and deferred income tax liabilities. HHIE ERRELEFMEHREE -

Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate expenses. AOMEEFTERELERS -

Sales between segments are carried in accordance with terms agreed by the parties involved. DEEHERIBEBE S E 2 HRREIT o

(a) Analysis of consolidated income statement (a) AR R

Hong Kong Mainland China Overseas
Bk HRE Rt ST\
HK$’000 F & T HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 T /& T HK$’000 F &t
Year ended 31 December 2022 E£2022F 12831 H L FE
Segment revenue 7 ZBULA 1,200,116 528,453 472,255 2,200,824
Inter-segment revenue 7 ZBEULA (374,084) (94,990) (655) (469,729)
Revenue from external customers & B ME% F 2 WA 826,032 433,463 471,600 1,731,095
Timing of revenue recognition W A FER2 HY RS 24
At a point in time £ % — B2k 825,214 431,163 468,318 1,724,695
Overtime £ —EZFFRE A 818 2,300 3,282 6,400
826,032 433,463 471,600 1,731,095

Contribution to segment results 7 2F %4 >~ S &f 748,579 (7,680) 118,461 859,360
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1%  BEKZEITE (8,360) (654) (4,035) (13,049)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets f# FIEEEITE (35,334) (2,272) (21,647) (59,253)
Amortisation of intangible assets & = # &5 (3,168) = = (3,168)
Gains/(losses) on disposals of property, plant and equipment HEW % - BERRE 2 W (HE) 56 - (28) 28
(Loss allowance)/reversal of loss allowance on trade receivables B 5 FEW 118 2 CREFHE) R EEE (2,020) (4,463) 4 (6,479)
Impairment loss on inventories 75 Z B2 - - (422) (422)
Write-off of inventories 12 & #flis (21) = (190) (211)
Write-off of property, plant and equipment #)3 + /= & 52 & H0m - - (47) (47)
Segment results 5 EB&4& 699,732 (15,069) 92,096 776,759
Inter-segment elimination 25 & ¥ #4 34,816
Operating profit £ 35 811,575
Finance income 81 Uiz 19,478 365 745 20,588
Finance costs Bf#§ 3 Hi (1,538) (78) (3,045) (4,661)
Share of losses of joint ventures D1 & & ¥ 2 &8 (70)
Share of losses of an associate 21k i A & 2 E518 (1,470)
Profit before income tax K AT15%: A1 K8 825,962
Income tax expense FTi8HiBIxx (134,669)
Profit for the year 4 & FII 691,293
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Analysis of consolidated income statement (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021 EZ2021F12A31 AL FE
Segment revenue 7 =ZBUA
Inter-segment revenue 2B EIUA
Revenue from external customers 38 B SMEB% 5 Z UL A
Timing of revenue recognition W A &R iy A% 2h

At a point in time £ 3 — B 2h

Overtime £ — ER BFFE 1Y

i

Contribution to segment results 2 3f %48 > S &f
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1%  REKRETE

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FFAEEEINE

Amortisation of intangible assets /& &= #iH

Losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment HE&EW % - FE KRB 2 EE

(Loss allowance)/reversal of loss allowance on trade receivables & 5 FEW R E Z CR{EETR), SR EEE
Impairment loss on inventories 7 & 2B {EFHE

Write-off of inventories 15 fJ

Segment results 7 ZBE4E

Inter-segment elimination 2B ¥ 84

Operating profit #2% K&

Finance income B4 7§ Uk &

Finance costs 8133

Share of profits of joint ventures 215 & & 1% > A58

Share of profits of an associate 2 {5 B A 7 2 58

Profit before income tax K Ar15%: A1 18

Income tax expense 5B %

Profit for the year & FE K&
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5 rukE R (#)
(a) & OF ek 220 By (A1)

o 7 Y 0 i A P

Hong Kong Mainland China Overseas
=8 RE A it =5

HK$’000 T 7T HK$’000 T 7T HK$’000 F#& T HK$’000 T 7T
1,212,075 578,803 443,604 2,234,482
(523,680) (152,385) (2,259) (678,324)
688,395 426,418 441,345 1,556,158
688,077 421,775 439,701 1,549,553
318 4,643 1,644 6,605
688,395 426,418 441,345 1,556,158
718,039 36,228 111,279 865,546
(7,456) (491) (5,122) (13,069)
(31,126) (2,416) (21,106) (54,648)
(2,255) - - (2,255)
(12) 2 (423) (437)
(4,568) (2,968) 14 (7,522)
- - (58) (58)
(201) - (122) (323)
672,421 30,351 84,462 787,234
(8,774)

778,460

3,456 327 594 4,377
(1,671) (180) (2,856) (4,707)
124

137

778,391

(126,848)

651,543
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ao B B 5 R R B R

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WER(H)
(b) Analysis of consolidated balance sheet (b) A P& EABMER
Hong Kong Mainland China Overseas Total
Bk FRERt B #Et
HK$’000 F#& 7T HK$’000 &7t HK$’000 &t HK$’000 F#& 7T
At 31 December 2022 420225 12H31H
Segment assets and liabilities 2 EER & B
Total assets BEE 3,010,879 739,091 475,309 4,225,279
Investments accounted for using the equity method &ZE#E A BRZ & 9,528 36,238 7,230 52,996
Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
UARBEFEEESHHARMGERENERMERE 9,618 - - 9,618
Additions to non-current assets (" JERE)E & 2 3 N0 28,793 140 37,742 66,675
Total liabilities 46 f& (234,863) (141,531) (110,092) (486,486)
At 31 December 2021 42021512531 H
Segment assets and liabilities D EER & &
Total assets BEE 2,815,098 581,373 438,511 3,834,982
Investments accounted for using the equity method R EARZIRE 9,260 40,599 8,037 57,896
Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
UAREEFEEESET AR GRERENeRERE 5,463 - - 5,463
Additions to non-current assets ® JERENE B 2 38 I 52,206 1,196 28,231 81,633
Total liabilities & & (127,969) (47,554) (119,955) (295,478)

Y In this analysis, additions to non-current assets exclude investment in joint ventures and an associate, financial asset

m AP FRBEEZENFTEENECELERBELNTNRE  UAR
at fair value through other comprehensive income and deferred tax assets.

EEH A E BB AL RS W 0% B BB SR -
(c) Revenue (c) WA

The analysis of revenue by category is as follows: BEAESHRASFNT

HK$’000 T /& T HK$’000 &7t

Sales of products $HEE R 1,681,764 1,513,345
Service income ARFSUIA 48,513 42,495
Royalty fee income fif K8 FA & Ui 818 318
1,731,095 1,556,158
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(d) Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2022, majority of the revenue were generated from wholesales customers,
revenue from two (2021: two) wholesales customers each accounted for more than ten percent of the Group’s
total revenue. These revenues are attributable to the Hong Kong segment and the Mainland China segment.
The revenues from these customers are summarised below:

2022 2021

Revenue from: 38 8 LU A L HIURA -

— Entities under the control of the ultimate holding company ™ (Note 30(a))
BRAERARMEHNERY (HFE30()

— Customer A BFA

— Customer B &FB

M It represents a group of entities under common control considered as a single customer.

@ The customers generated less than ten percent of the Group’s total revenue during the years.

There are no customers of other segments individually accounted for ten percent or more of the Group’s total
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

Information about geographical areas

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. An analysis of revenue from external customers and non-current
assets of the Group by geographical area is set out below:

(1) Revenue ¥

5

o 7 Y 0 i A P

g3 Hk & B (4)

(d)

AFREEEFHER

BZE2022F12A31ALFE ABAIWARBESHE  REMA (2021 F :
MB) PHEEOBRASEAEFLRATIZTULE - ZERAKRBEEED
BRFEARS B REZEEFHNRABRNT :

HK$°000 T3 T HK$’000 & 7T
285,594 N/ATE @
411,160 305,388

N/ATERA® 167,988
696,754 473,376

o EXHEZHN-AER BAE-FF -
@ BEFREFELANBRAGTEAEERRANES 21 -

BZE2022F12A31HLEFE  Hth 2 BHE/EF (2021 F : &) @ERMELRE
EHRANES 2 TRUE -

A B b [ 1Y R

RARARBEBEE AEBZRBEININRANATFZWARERBEE
M HMT -

(i) WA

2022 2021

Hong Kong &8
Mainland China # Bl
Macao 2P

Australia B KX FIZE
Canada & X

New Zealand 3758
Singapore N3

United States 3Ei

Other countries EAE %R

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2022

HK$'000 F 37T HK$’000 F 35T
826,032 688,395
433,463 426,418
264,593 266,037

62,016 48,542
52,620 45,114
33,235 28,267
25,915 24,448
15,229 12,175
17,992 16,762
1,731,095 1,556,158

ERECEAEERAT | SR FFR

223



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(e) Information about geographical areas (Continued)

(i) Non-current assets

HK$’000 T /& T HK$’000 F & T

Hong Kong &8 275,171 292,593
Mainland China # EI A3 2,428 5,692
Macao &P 60,604 65,908
Australia JB X Fl 58 49,493 51,785
Canada & X 13,644 16,258
New Zealand #7755 39,650 13,741
Europe &UM 11,658 11,797
United States < 2,416 2,008
Other countries EftE=R 9,716 12,980
464,780 472,762

U The geographical location of revenue is analysed based on the location where goods are sold and services are

provided.

5 rabE R (8)
(e) [ 3t I i B R (A1)
(i) s

o 7 Y 0 i A P

o WARFERHEL R RIERREAERDN

(f)
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@ The geographical location of non-current assets is analysed based on where the assets are located or held. In @ IR EERBESNERBEZEENTEH NS EHETE - KoM
this analysis, the total of non-current assets excludes investment in joint ventures and an associate, financial h ERBEELETEERAECERBHENATINIERE - UAAE

asset at fair value through other comprehensive income and deferred tax assets. EFEEHSBFTAHMGERENEREENELREREE -

Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers (f) H% P& WA g E A E

The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to contract with customers: REBCRIAUTHEFSREBENEAR :

2022 2021
HK$’000 T3 T HK$°000 Fi& 7T
Contract liabilities &E & & 4,678 4,508

The Group has not recognised any contract assets related to contract with customers as at 31 December R2022F 12 A31BM2021 128310 AEAABRRAEEFEGEEBAN
2022 and 31 December 2021. AREE -

There is no significant changes in contract assets and liabilities during the year ended 31 December 2022, BZE2022F 12831 ALFE  GREENABERBEETEREE -

(g) CoHERHE G R QA BRRA
TRARATECRANEARNEEAHNUATREANAFSEEEN

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

The following table shows revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities in the year related to carried

forward contract liabilities. BWASEE -
2022 2021
HK$’000 T3& T HK$°000 F& 7T
Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities at 1 January R EE1 A1 B ERAEEEBEIWA 3,397 2,506
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 OTHER GAINS, NET

2022 2021

Government grants (note) BUFT ## BY (Fff5%)
Unsecured government loans waived £ % 15 1 B FFE 7R
Others HEAth

Note: There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching to these grants. The Group did not benefit directly from

any other forms of government assistance.

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

2022 2021

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress (Note 21) &K A R £ & R 17
Raw materials and consumables used (Note 21) R #1#} 5 & & A 2 (FfsE21)
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) {& £ & 7B X (F{3E8)
COVID-19-related rent concessions 72 7@ jif f 55 i 4 #H BATH & Rl =8
Expenses relating to short-term leases i E & A
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities (note)
ARASNREERA (TEEERNEEEE) (M)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 18) i & & #i 85 (Fff:E18)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 16) & A& E T E (K5 16)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 17) #13% - B E R R EITE (H5E17)
(Gains)/losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment (Note 28)
HEME  WE - BBz (&), B8 (HEF28)
Impairment loss on inventories (Note 21) 7 & Z B E T2 (FfzE21)
Write-off of inventories (Note 21) 17 & #fm (KftzE21)
Write-off of property, plant and equipment (Note 17) #1% - B = K R B #MUR (MisE17)
Loss allowance on trade receivables (Note 22) & 5 FEUR F 18 ~ R E TR (M 5E22)
Auditors’ remuneration 1% & Ef Bl £
— Audit services 1% Z IR 3%
— Non-audit services 3% & R
Research and development expenses fff 2 & F
Net exchange loss [E 5,18 % 548
Promotion and advertising expenses E &K E &5z
Legal and professional expenses A& R B #£5I %
Others HAih

Note: Variable lease payments represent the amounts which are calculated based on percentages of revenue generated by certain

retail outlets that exceed their fixed rentals.
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6 AR

o 7 Y 0 i A P

HK$’000 T # T HK$’000 F 7% 7T
6,830 5,103

257 1,227

2,508 1,709

9,595 8,039

M EEHPEREMNTEMRAENRAIAEMRBESH -KERBEEREAH

XN HRFE T -

7 PR R X

HK$’000 F 37T HK$’000 F &7t
(11,056) (13,456)
516,415 364,645
219,099 216,711
(137) (483)
11,255 14,291
154 205
3,168 2,255
59,253 54,648
13,049 13,069
(28) 437

422 58

211 323

a7 -
6,479 7,522
4,150 5,267
275 430
7,699 11,273
85 152
19,179 23,579
6,885 7,127
72,511 77,684
929,115 785,737

M TREENREEAEE TEERELANBARBA LA ERABHEEEAEN

I
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ao B B 5 R R B R

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES, INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 8 EEMAMM Y BIGEHFME
EMOLUMENTS
HK$’000 T T HK$’000 & T
Salaries, wages and bonuses ¥¢ + TEREAL 190,433 187,914
Pension costs — defined contribution plans Bk & & 24— EZEHtsiEt 2 17,645 15,484
Other benefits EAth3EF 11,021 13,313
219,099 216,711
No forfeited contributions were utilised during the year and no available at the year-end to reduce future SERBHASIUNER  FROUREITARBD RRERHVER -
contributions.
(a) Five highest paid individuals (a) HAEMEFHAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year include two (2021: one) AEBFANEERSHFATEEMM (2021F : — ) ES > HM SR
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 9(a). The emoluments paid or @) A MR c FREREMERT =12 (2021 F : M) AW SWT :

payable to the remaining three (2021: four) individuals during the year are as follows:

2022 2021
HK$’000 T3& T HK$’000 F& T
Basic salaries and other benefits E7 & K& HAtbig R 2,641 2,763
Bonuses fE4L 2,012 2,963
Pension costs — defined contribution plans Bk & 5 24~ — EFA 4t st 2l 102 220
4,755 5,946
The emoluments fell within the following bands: MEeENFUTEE :
Number of individuals A &
2022 2021
Emolument bands i< £E
HK$# 7t1,000,001-HK$3%E 7T 1,500,000 1 3
HK$77t1,500,001-HK$& 7t2,000,000 2
For the year ended 31 December 2022, no emoluments (2021: nil) were paid by the Group to any of the five L E2022F12A31BLEE  AXBTEORERSFALTIAEAHMS
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of (20214 ' &) EAWSIHMASIMARNEE GBI NBREE TER
office, and no arrangement under which any of the highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive any of BHEAIREIRNEREZEAHSHOZE -
the emoluments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of every director for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are set out below:

o 7 Y 0 i A P

O FEHMMmARER (F A E (A R BB (3 622 %)
5 383 1 K 4> W) (3 B o 35 M 4k R LD (58
622G 3 ) M 5E B 4% & B b v AR B AR 5 1 % 8 )

(a) EHERME
HE2022F K 2021 F12 831 BILFEN AL ASESHFMHOT ¢

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

ERES(TER

ARBEF AT LE) REREM I RERNEHE
Employer’s
contribution to a
retirement benefit

Salary and Discretionary scheme
Year ended 31 December 2022 other benefits bonuses EExzEBHiE
HZE2022F12A31H L EE FeREAMWER BBIEAL T8I
HK$’000 F#& T HK$’000 T 7T HK$’000 &7t HK$’000 & T HK$’000 F3& 7T
Executive Directors $I{TE%E
Ms. Ding Yong Ling W®T k¥ 2+ 06 - - - - -
Mr. Chen Fei @ BRAESE 4 - 1,324 750 102 2,176
Ms. Lin Man M & Z + - 853 658 102 1,613
Ms. Feng Li “®)5F]Z2 @6 - - - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors B EHTES
Mr. Tsang Yok Sing Jasper &5 %t % 264 - - - 264
Prof. Zhao Zhong Zhen® #& FiEZ %O 264 - - - 264
Mr. Chan Ngai Chi BR3R 5t 554 264 - - - 264
792 2,177 1,408 204 4,581

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
EREZS (FERAARRE F AR RZE) RHRBE M XA ERNME

Employer’s

contribution to a
retirement benefit

Salary and Discretionary scheme
Year ended 31 December 2021 other benefits bonuses EExzRKE
BZE2021F12831BLFE FHE R EAMER BIETEAL TR
HK$’000 F& 7T HK$°000 F& T HK$°000 & 7T HK$’000 F& T HK$°000 & T
Executive Directors ${TE%E
Ms. Ding Yong Ling W& ki M - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Huan Ping® RIS SE 4@ - - 1,179 - 1,179
Mr. Chen Fei @ BRF 4@ - 1,035 - 63 1,098
Ms. Lin Man M2 &+ - 1,069 637 78 1,784
Independent Non-executive Directors B FE#{TES
Mr. Tsang Yok Sing Jasper Z#ER o4 240 - - - 240
Prof. Zhao Zhong Zhen® # 2L 1%© 240 = = = 240
Mr. Chan Ngai Chi R385t 5t & 240 - - - 240
720 2,104 1,816 141 4,781
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

m Ms. Ding Yong Ling is also the Chief Executive of the Company.

@ Mr. Chen Fei was re-designated as Executive Director of the Company on 11 March 2021.
® Mr. Zhang Huan Ping has retired as Executive Director of the Company on 11 March 2021.
@ Ms. Feng Li has appointed as Executive Director of the Company on 12 August 2022 and was re-designated as

Non-executive Director on 13 March 2023.

® Ms. Ding Yong Ling and Ms. Feng Li receive emoluments from the parent company, part of which is in respect of their
services to the parent company and its subsidiaries. No apportionment has been made as the qualifying services
provided by these directors to the Company and its subsidiaries are incidental to their responsibilities to the larger
group.

© Prof. Zhao Zhong Zen has resigned as Independent Non-executive Director on 13 March 2023 and Mr. Xu Hong Xi has
appointed as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 13 March 2023.

No directors of the Company waived or returned any emoluments and no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors of the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office as a director.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefit under a defined benefit scheme during the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to any directors as compensation for the early termination of the appointment during
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making available directors’
services

No payment was made to the former employer of any directors for making available the services of them as a
director of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).
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o 7 Y 0 i A P

O FEHMMmARER (F A E (A R BB (3 622 %)
5 383 1 K 4> W) (3 B o 35 M 4 5 R BLID (58
622G ) A5 B 43¢ B B b vl AR B0 1 b ) ()

(a)

= 1M & (5)

o TXRLZEFBARQATAZEITHAE °
@ BRMEEB2021 F3 11 HRERAEALRQATAHITES -
@ RBFEEB2021E3 811 ARBEAQATNITES -

@ BRIZLTE2022F8 A 12 REZEAADABTES  REBH20235F3
B1SHARERATALQATFELITES -

© TREZIRBANZIHBATENRHN - HF-—B2RERBMARETD

AREFARRMNBE BARELESOAQRIREWELRARMNE
ERBRERMUMEEREBENEEMMSH AL BFELETIHE -

© HARKIZEE2023F3A1IBEHELRQARABILIEHTES - REEH2023
FIA13HEREZERAARAABLUHHNITES -

ARABUYBESHERRBEMNNE - AKETEAEEMEANE - F
BRSIMAEE 2 RBREMAKEBRESHEBEE -

IR AR A

AEEALBCNREFESTRARN  FRARHAATDAHEWBENLS
HERABAEMRE 2B (2021 F : &) -

= 3 AR A
AEERLEOEELAEAWS - 165 HIRABHEOBBHNE (20215 1)

WO A58 =0 N B 2 o S A9 Q1

AEERYTERNEBEE = A ABALRRARAEEMESINAZEAENTEE
BB (20214 « &) o

EH - ERREGAE EFHBEREX - BEXURK
H A 52 55 A I 5

AFEAYRES EZRHOE EIRBREBRER  EERURAM
RS HEBEM (2021 F : &) o

BRAARLMEET LR 5 ~ KA [ vp il R HE 45

EEERRFER  AEEREZTEASRAEECEBEMALA 2ES
ERYEETHPHEEEARECEERS - ZEHARE (20215 1 &) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ao B B 5 R R B R

T3 RYN
10 FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS), NET 10 M #ERKE (L)
HK$’000 T &t HK$°000 & T
Finance income Ef#§ Uk 20,588 4,377
Finance costs 817 H
— Borrowing f§ & 2 @)
— Lease liabilities HHE& & (4,659) (4,705)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, @4e661) 4707
Finance income/(costs), net & 81 #§ i & (2 H) 15,927 (330)
11 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11 MEREARZIZE
METHOD
(a) The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are as follows: (a) Rea&EEaBEEZHEENT
HK$’000 F3& T HK$’000 F& T
At 31 December 4128318
Joint ventures & {3 16,758 17,297
Associates Bi& A7) 36,238 40,599
52,996 57,896
. . . . oy 32 24 .
(b) The amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement are as (b) £ BF W f e Wl R P OB T
follows:
HK$’000 T7& T HK$°000 F& T
For the year ended 31 December HZ 128310 L FE
Joint ventures & b2 (70) 124
Associates & A A (1,470) 137
(1,540) 261
L N A 25 AN B S il 2%
(c) Interests in joint ventures (c) & 3R Z i i
The Group has interests in a number of individually immaterial joint ventures. The following table analyses, in f % T/!'f ﬁ £ f ﬂ_ﬁl ;”:'J TE Z; HE & J/J:\f E’z % ij :\"F * ﬁz)iziﬂ § % i Fﬂj Z
aggregate, the movement of the carrying amount of the Group’s interests in these joint ventures, and its share SAECRNREREEZDNRERSRELRORS  REGARER
of results, other comprehensive income and commitments of these joint ventures. A
2022 2021
HK$’000 T & T HK$°000 F& T
At 1 January R181H 17,297 17,763
Share of (losses)/profits &5 & & (&18) /78 (70) 124
Share of other comprehensive loss fE{h E 4R & E1E
— Currency translation differences & # 5 & = 25 (469) (590)
At 31 December R12H31H 16,758 17,297
The Group’s share of joint ventures’ commitments 7S5 B &L & & (b &IE - -
Notes: P EE
(@) The joint ventures are private companies and there are no quoted market prices available for their shares. (a) BELEBRBIALT HRHAETHERE -
(b)  There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interests in joint ventures. (b) YEEBAEEFAFEECERRINNBEAR-
(© Details of the joint ventures are set out in Note 31. (c) BCELEFBHNMTES-
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» A} v, A Y =3
11 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11 HHEREBEARZ S (4)
METHOD (Continued)
(d) Interests in associate (d) FBEE A E Z B iR
Set out below is the associate of the Group as at 31 December 2022 which, in the opinion of the directors, is BEEFATYHINELEQAFN2022F 12 431 ARAKEBEEENHZE QT -
material to the Group.
On 30 September 2021, the Group completed the acquisition of 40% of the equity interests in Beijing Tong 2021 F9A30R  AEBEEREOBUE=AWE L RECELTSEYEM
Ren Tang WM Dianorm Biotech Co., Limited (the “Target Company”) from an independent third party at a total BRAR(TEZERRLD 40% HWIRE  BAEHER AR 33,109,300 T (HER
consideration of RMB33,109,300 (equivalent to approximately HK$39,832,000). #39,832,00058 7T) °
The management assessed that the Group has significant influence but not control over the Target Company, EEETMAEEHEEAAAEEAYLETAEGEHE ARBEEZLT
as such, the Target Company is accounted for as an associate of the Group under equity method. REAEBNBEELNT  RESZEXE -
The amount recognised in the consolidated balance sheet is as follows: REHEEEBERTPEIZRENT @
2022 2021
HK$'000 T3 7T HK$’000 F3537T
At 1 January ®1 818 40,599 -
Acquisition of interest in an associate YxiE —REEE N 5] 2 e = 39,832
Share of (losses)/profits {5 & E R (E518),/F;E (1,470) 137
Share of other comprehensive (losses)/income {5 E 4R & (F518) =
— Currency translation differences &% i =48 (2,891) 630
At 31 December R12 531 H 36,238 40,599

The Group’s share of an associate’s commitments 7~ 5 B fE{L B 1\ Bl RNE -

Summarised financial information for an associate Tk 2 ) Y B WA O R 22
HK$’000 Tt HK$’000 F& T

Assets and liabilities as at 31 December R12A31 AN EERAE
Current assets MENEE

Cash and cash equivalents 3 & RIS ZEY 26,798 30,223

Other current assets HAtRENE & 70,035 71,851
Total current assets R BN EE 96,833 102,074
Non-current assets JE7RENE & 13,505 17,324
Current liabilities RE & &

Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) & &t & & (BRFE(S BRFX) 4,025 3,146

Other current liabilities R ENE & 13,581 11,844
Total current liabilities R E A E 17,606 14,990
Non-current liabilities JE7REN & & 2,137 2,910
Net assets FEE 90,595 101,498
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11 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY
METHOD (Continued)

(d) Interests in associate (Continued)

Set out below is the associate of the Group as at 31 December 2022 which, in the opinion of the directors, is
material to the Group. (Continued)

Summarised financial information for an associate

o 7 Y 0 i A P

11 &M AIRZ % & (4)

(d) WBEEAFZ RS ()

EERBTXEIWHEEATN2022F 12431 ARAEEEEMNHEE QT
(#8)

Wk O W) 4 ik 5 B 5 R

Revenue WA

Loss for the year Hifi8%%

Other comprehensive (losses)/income Hftbiz & (EE)
Total comprehensive (losses)/income %4 (E518) /I 4 58

Reconciliation of summarized consolidated financial information

Opening net assets/net assets as at acquisition date Si#E&EFE, AWE B EEFE
(Losses)/profits for the year/for the period since acquisition £ £ (E538) Ik §8 % HA 7S A1 5
Other comprehensive (losses)/income for the year/for the period since acquisition

FEHE (BB) WEEHRHEMEE KE
Closing net assets HiR&EEFE

The Group has interests in a number of individually immaterial associates.

2022 2021
HK$'000 T35 7T HK$’000 F3& 7T
64,612 80,336
(3,676) (490)
(7,227) 1,575
(10,903) 1,085
B3 7 Y s B R
2022 2021
HK$000 3% 7t HK$’000 F# 7T
101,498 99,579
(3,676) 344
(7,227) 1,575
90,595 101,498

FEEEEE TENEARNWEENANERS -

2022 2021

Aggregate carrying amount of individually immaterial associate & A B EREI{E
The Group’s share of associates’ commitments Z< 52 B (G B & A T)&ANE

Notes:
(@) The associates are private companies and there are no quoted market prices available for their shares.
(b) There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interests in associates.

(c) In 2022 and 2021, the Group has not recognised its share of loss of one of its associates as its share of accumulated
losses has exceeded its investment cost.

12 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (NCI)

The management considers Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Macau) Company Limited is a subsidiary which has non-
controlling interest that is material to the Group, as at 31 December 2022, its accumulated NCI was HK$67,577,000
(2021: HK$54,500,000), the profit allocated to NCI was HK$27,777,000 (2021: HK$26,880,000) and the dividends
payable/paid to NCI was HK$14,700,000 (2021: HK$13,720,000).

As at 31 December 2022, Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Macau) Company Limited has current assets, current liabilities,
non-current assets, non-current liabilities and net assets of HK$135,644,000, HK$46,958,000, HK$60,853,000,
HK$11,627,000 and HK$137,912,000 (2021: HK$112,471,000, HK$51,890,000, HK$66,137,000, HK$15,494,000 and
HK$111,224,000) respectively. It generated revenue, total profit and other comprehensive income of
HK$264,593,000 (2021: HK$266,037,000) and HK$56,688,000 (2021: HK$54,857,000) respectively during the year
ended 31 December 2022. It generated a cash inflow of HK$9,835,000 (2021: HK$33,021,000) during the year ended
31 December 2022.

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2022

HK$’000 &7t HK$’000 F3&7T

(a) BEQARNRBAQXT EARVAETSHRE -
(b)) AUEEBAKEFEHEARNEENREEE-

(c) HEXAEEEE-HABELLATINFEEBBAEEANRZBELATNZRENRS
WA 2022 FE R 2021 FW EERH B HEIE -

12 A BB R 25

ERERBLFBCE (R ARAADABEHAEEAEANFEREZNHBEL
B R2022F 12831  HEHFHSREKRRA67,577,000% 5Tt (2021 F :
54,500,0008 ) " BMELEBR RNV UE B27,777,0008 Tt (2021 F :
26,880,000 T) R B BN FLHK KM K E H14,700,000% T (2021 5F :
13,720,00058 7T) °

R2022F12A31H ARZACECEM) ERATANRBEE RBEE - ERD
EE -FARBEBRFEED B £135,644,0008 Tt + 46,958,00038 7T »
60,853,000 Jt + 11,627,0005& jt X 137,912,000 Tt (2021 F : 5 5l B
112,471,000 7t + 51,890,000% Jt * 66,137,000 Jt * 15,494,000 Tt &
111,224,00058 ) - BE2022F 12 A31 B EE  HEAWE - FIHBHEEHM
2 M| W 2 5l A 264,593,000 % 7t (2021 F : 266,037,000 7% Jt) & 56,688,000 7 T
(20214 : 54,857,000 7T) c B E2022F 12831 AL FEE - HELEBRER
9,835,000 7% jt (2021 & : 33,021,00058 7T) °
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o 7 Y 0 i A P

13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13 BBl X il

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit
for the year. PRC corporate income tax has been provided at the rate of 25% (2021: 25%) on the estimated
assessable profits for the year of the subsidiaries operating in the Mainland China. Taxation on overseas profits has

been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

B4 P 5t FESRBLF T 1R 16.5% (2021 5 © 16.5%) 0B B3 R E B AIEH - Seh
o 42 8 Y S 24 B0 4F 9 £ 3SR BRI T 1R 25% (2021 7 © 25%) MR IHR S E D
AR BN BNBIERREA G ERRA MRS EEEE FEARWRT
BEHE -

2022

2021
HK$’000 T& 7t HK$’000 F&T

Current income tax & HiFr15%%
— Current year " [E 128,447 135,399
— Over-provision in prior years ¥4 %1% (543) (993)
127,904 134,406
Deferred income tax (Note 20) JEiE FT 5 %¢ (Fff5E20) 6,765 (7,558)
Income tax expense Fi58{3 H 134,669 126,848

The income tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using

AEEBRBAFBOAERERAEARESHARERFHNMET IR EFEN
the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

HEREBEERNT
HK$’000 F#& T HK$’000 F& T
Profit before income tax B Fr 58 41 75 825,962 778,391
Less: &l :
— Share of losses/(profits) of investments accounted for using the equity method
R EREZARCBRERE (FH) 1,540 (261)
827,502 778,130
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to profits in the respective countries
ZERBERFEEBENEAR AT 2BHIE 138,218 127,564
Tax effects of: LA T HIB I8/ &
— Income not subject to tax EFi UK (4,934) (1,134)
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 7 & {1%i 58 2,218 2,458
— Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset was recognised RHEFRIEIL 58 & ENFIEE R 645 774
— Withholding income tax on royalty fee from overseas entities B8 /MNE B2 Tk B R HI PS8 91 41
— Withholding income tax on dividend income BR B YA FFEH - 297
— Over-provision in prior years X & 23 #&1{& (543) (993)
— Research and development enhanced deduction #5538 3% & Ky NS 05 58 - (484)
— Utilisation of previous unrecognised tax losses &I LART R MR HF 1B &8 (465) (587)
— Others Efth (561) (1,088)
Income tax expense Fii5%i 134,669 126,848

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE 14 &R A R

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

BREXBADEARDEEAEREINBERAFACBTEEROMEFIHHE -

2022 2021
Profit attributable to owners of the Company (HK$’000) 74~ A B #E 8 A /4G R (T8 7T) 645,875 607,838
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (thousands) B 27 & @R i F 9 & (TR) 837,100 837,100
Earnings per share (HK$) @k 2 F| (B 7T) 0.77 0.73

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per

BE2022FR2021F12AMBLEFE BRAEAEEHENREZRG  SREE
share as there were no potential dilutive shares.

BNEREREART -
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L
15 DIVIDENDS 15 ;A
The dividends paid in 2022 and 2021 were HK$443,663,000 (HK$0.53 per share) and HK$200,904,000 (HK$0.24 per 2022 F R2021 EME IR E 5 5l £443,663,0008 T (B 0.53E ) &
share) respectively. Dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 of HK$0.33 per share, amounting to a 200,904,000 7T (B R0.247E ) - BIE2022F 12 A1 HEEENRE SR 0.33
total dividend of HK$276,243,000, is to be proposed at the annual general meeting on 8 May 2023. These financial B (RE#EE5R276,243,0008 1) R A QAT 1E2023F5 A8 HEITHWRRBF
statements do not reflect this dividend payable. RELRE ZENBBRRIBRMRZESTRE -
2022 2021
HK$’000 Tt HK$’000 F#& 7T
Special interim dividend paid of HK$0.25 (2021 : HK$Nil) per ordinary share
ENEREERZBAPHRE0.258 T (2021 F : TE 1) 209,275 -
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.33 (2021 : HK$0.28) per ordinary share
EEREREBERARIRE 0.3378 T (2021 4 : 0.2878 1) 276,243 234,388
16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16 fHHREE =
Leasehold land Buildings Total
HELH B¥F =X
HK$’000 F &t HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 &7t
At 1 January 2021 742021 %1 81 H 95,471 98,971 194,442
Additions 11 = 58,093 58,093
Modification % - 17,788 17,788
Depreciation charge (Note 7) T & X H ({5£7) (2,668) (51,980) (54,648)
Currency translation differences &% 5 & =48 - (1,420) (1,420)
At 31 December 2021 742021 %12 A 31 H 92,803 121,452 214,255
At 1 January 2022742022%1 81 H 92,803 121,452 214,255
Additions 11 - 27,731 27,731
Modification % & - 6,899 6,899
Depreciation charge (Note 7) T & H (f{5£7) (2,670) (56,583) (59,253)
Currency translation differences & % 5 #1 Z 48 - (2,963) (2,963)
At 31 December 2022 742022 %12 A 31 H 90,133 96,536 186,669
(a) The total cash outflow for leases, including the payments made in relation to lease liabilities and expenses (a) 2022 ERMBERENES TR HEESEA72,110,0003E 7T (2021 & : 69,697,000
relating to short-term and variable lease payments in 2022 was HK$72,110,000 (2021: HK$69,697,000). B EEYUEHEEENBEEXNUREHHENRENEHENTNEE -
Depreciation expenses were charged to the consolidated income statement as follows: NEBINERPEATERZNOT
2022 2021
HK$’000 F 5% 5T HK$000 F 38T
Cost of sales $H&E R A 2,834 3,000
Distribution and selling expenses 785 & S5 &5 41,895 37,427
General and administrative expenses —#% & 17 BB 52 14,524 14,221
59,253 54,648
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16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

(b) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for

The Group leases various land, offices, warehouses and retail stores. Rental contracts are typically made for

fixed periods range from 2 to 5 years (2021: same) for office, warehouses and retail stores, but may have

extension options as described below. Lease term for leasehold land ranges from 42 years to 99 years (2021:

same).

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that

are held by the lessor. Leased assets must not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Some leases related to retail stores contain variable payment terms that are linked to sales generated from a

store. For individual stores, variable lease payments are calculated based on percentages of revenue
generated by certain retail outlets that exceed their fixed rentals. Variable lease payments that depend on

sales are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the condition that triggers those payments occurs.

Extension and termination options are included in a small number of property leases across the Group. These

are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Group’s operations.
The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor. The impact of the above options are not material to the Group’s financial statements.

17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

o 7 Y 0 i A P

16 R E (#)

(b)

S [ Y LR B L ot )E T

AEBHEHAZELH PAE BEENZSEEH -WLAZE BEENZTEEH
NWEECRBEEEHRA2FESF (2021 F  HE) 1% BAEEET
N ERRERE HETHNEEHRA42FE99F (2021 F : HE) °

HERREEASREAENER LETER LTRSS TEORIMEMS -
HEHBRFTEESHEABANHEEENERANE ZINEFNRY - HE
BEETSREERER -

HAEBEREOSEERNHEEH NN TRIRERR - REEH
TRAENREERETEERBEAE RN EEBS TS
Mo REHMERRENTRRENKEEBRZSARENEER LR
SR

FEEELERHENEESAERERMALEERER  UELAKEKL
EANEEER S ERARENRESELENEEN -AREABANKB D
BERERENRLHEREREEAARETE MIFBEENEBEATE-
FlEEEHAEERUEREOFELRELN -

17 P03 ~ Wil K

Furniture
Leasehold Plant and and Motor
Freehold land Buildings improvement machinery equipment vehicles
KAFEE L BF HEWHEEE GV 5 BERERE AE
HK$'000 T 38 7t HK$'000 F385%  HK$000 T  HK$000 FBT  HKS000 FiB  HKPO000 T  HK$000 T8
Year ended 31 December 2021 HZ2021 F12 831 HILFE
Opening net book amount & ¥ ik [ F{E 48,817 99,931 12,616 13,778 10,446 1,791 187,379
Additions &0 410 1,641 2,681 2,765 3,856 - 11,353
Disposals (Note 28(b)) EEE& ({7t 28(b)) - - (379) @) (78) = (459)
Depreciation charge (Note 7) 3T E X H (ff3%7) - (3,163) (3,392) (1,936) (4,167) @11) (13,069)
Currency translation differences &% 5 12 = 58 (405) (1,248) (169) - (64) ©) (1,895)
Closing net book amount i R iR EF{E 48,822 97,161 11,357 14,605 9,993 1,371 183,309
At 31 December 2021 4202112 H5 31 H
Cost F(7x 48,822 134,457 68,211 62,123 43,118 4,615 361,346
Accumulated depreciation and impairment Z5t#78 KR {E - (37,296) (56,854) (47,518) (33,125) (3,244) (178,037)
Net book amount 1R EF{E 48,822 97,161 11,357 14,605 9,993 1,371 183,309
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 17 W3 ~ B Kkl (48)
Furniture
Leasehold Plant and and Motor
Freehold land Buildings improvement machinery equipment vehicles
KAFREL By HEWREE YN BERRZRE RE
HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 T & T HK$°000 T &t HK$°000 F & T HK$’000 F & T HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 T % T
Year ended 31 December 2022 EZ£2022F 1231 HILFE
Opening net book amount A #] iR & /F{E 48,822 97,161 11,357 14,605 9,993 1,371 183,309
Additions & 1 13,093 14,029 7,166 679 3,766 811 39,544
Disposals (Note 28(b)) BEE 3£ 28(b)) - - (66) = (33) = (99)
Write-off (Note 7) #iUs (ffz£7) - - (47) - - - (47)
Depreciation charge (Note 7) 3T & X H (ff5E7) - (3,238) (3,210) (2,119) (4,020) (462) (13,049)
Currency translation differences &% R =58 (555) (1,568) (526) - (311) (17) (2,977)
Closing net book amount i 7R iR [ F & 61,360 106,384 14,674 13,165 9,395 1,703 206,681
At 31 December 2022 742022 %12 A 31 H
Cost A7 61,360 146,713 72,254 62,721 40,826 4,882 388,756
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 31378 KB E - (40,329) (57,580) (49,556) (31,431) (3,179) (182,075)
Net book amount 1k [E 5B 61,360 106,384 14,674 13,165 9,395 1,703 206,681
As at 31 December 2022, bank borrowing is secured by a freehold land and building amounted to HK$9,457,000 H2022F 12831 H  SRITERLLRMEE9,457,00078 T (20214 : 10,406,000 /&
(2021: HK$10,406,000) (Note 26). TU) K AEE L REFERIKM (HEE26) ©
Depreciation expenses were charged to the consolidated income statement as follows: RERBERPIANERIOT ¢
HK$’000 T 7 7t HK$’000 F 7% 7T
Cost of sales 5 & B4 5,303 4,935
Distribution and selling expenses 7 5 & $4 &8 % 4,200 4,428
General and administrative expenses — & & 17 B f 5% 3,546 3,706
13,049 13,069

No impairment loss on property, plant and equipment was charged to general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement for the years ended at 31 December 2021 and 2022.

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18 M & E

The net book value of the Group’s intangible assets is analysed as follows:

2021 R 2022 FEA BBEFRREHBRERN —MRITBMAIFEA

AEENEFLEENREFEIFNNOT ¢

Other intangible

Goodwill Computer software assets

5k B i E HitB\EEE
HK$’000 T3 7t HK$°000 T8 7t HK$’000 T 7t HK$’000 T 7t
At 1 January 2021 74202141 A1 8 49,419 - 5,417 54,836
Additions 1 /i - 8,372 - 8,372
Amortisation (Note 7) #4 (K5 7) - (955) (1,300) (2,255)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 #2021 412 31 B & 202241 81H 49,419 7,417 4,117 60,953
Additions 1 ffl - 1,921 - 1,921
Amortisation (Note 7) #85 (FfzE7) - (1,868) (1,300) (3,168)
At 31 December 2022 42022412 A 31 B 49,419 7,470 2,817 59,706

Note: MIEE -

Other intangible assets represent customer relationships, a management contract and an exclusive supply contract. HihBEEESNAEFHEZ EBEGRAKBERHEESR -
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18

19

20

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment test for goodwill

The Group recognised a goodwill of HK$49,419,000 in 2015 as a result of the acquisition of the equity interest in
Honour Essence Trading Limited, which is principally engaged in the distribution of Chinese medicine products in
Hong Kong. The goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing to this Honour Essence Trading Limited cash
generating units (“CGU”) within the Hong Kong segment.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the goodwill arising on acquisition is allocated to the Group’s CGU within the
Hong Kong segment.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined by management based on value-in-use calculation. The key
assumptions adopted in the value-in-use calculation are based on management’s best estimates and past
experience.

The value-in-use calculation is based on a five-year financial budget approved by management, with five-year sales
growth rate ranging between 1% to 8% (2021: 3% to 6%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using the estimated growth rate of 3% (2021: 3%). A pre-tax discount rate of 16% (2021: 16%) is used which
reflects the specific risks relating to the relevant operating segment.

There was no impairment required from the review on goodwill. A reasonably change in assumptions would not
result in impairment as a such disclosure of sensitivity analysis is not considered necessary.

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FVOCI represents a Hong Kong listed equity security which is denominated in Hong Kong dollars. This is a strategic
investment which is not held for trading and the Group considers this classification to be more relevant. Its fair value
is analysed as follow:

18

o 7 Y 0 i A P

& E ()
T 2 B £ 300

AEER015FUBAREFARAT (HEIBEBBREEUEI WP RER)
BHERHEE 54941900087 - BRRHREFBIBARESARAANRS
EHELFRTHENH -

ATHENZNEN BHECIREAEEZ2EBLEANCHBNRESELEM -

REELENNTHRESERERERBECAEEMEEEZMEE - ARFEER
BENHERREEREEENREGTHIRENERMEE -

FREETERENEEEEBNEE NEE I FHHEERRER1%ESY
(2021 : 3% E6%) - EFHIUB U BIEETIFEA3% (2021 : 3%) AT R=E
WE o FAZHRATBEERA16%(2021 1 16%) * RMAEB DSBS TEE

BMELSRENRRTTERE HRBRWEGEZCTSEIRE FAAFTFER
BHBME DA -

U2 AR L5 MO AL 4
7
UAABEFEEASHFTALBGENENEREEAUBLLEENETB LT A
AR BREBUERERFIRGUEERS FARERRE-—S2HEERE - HEAQ
AEEIFOT

2022 2021

At 1 January 1 81H
Income/(loss) recognised in other comprehensive income W,/ (§18) st A E H 4R & W
At 31 December 412 831 H

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as follows:

HK$’000 T % T HK$’000 & 7T
5,463 6,108
4,155 (645)
9,618 5,463

20 JEIE A B

EEFSHEEREENINAT ¢

2022 2021

Deferred income tax assets IEIE TS E =

— Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set-off provisions 1% BRI 58 & Frif $E AR FT S B &
Deferred income tax assets, net SHEFEFTSHEE
Deferred income tax liabilities 3EEFT 8% & (&

— Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set-off provisions & #RIK $5 18 E Frif sEHVIEEFr SR & &
Deferred income tax liabilities, net SFEFLFT5H & &
Deferred income tax, net IEFEFT S F 58
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HK$000 T3 7T HK$’000 F %t
34,897 45,931
(20,083) (23,881)

14,814 22,050
(27,261) (31,028)

20,083 23,881
(7,178) (7,147)

7,636 14,903
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The net movement in the deferred income tax account is as follows:

2022 2021

At 1 January A1 81H

(Charged)/credited to the consolidated income statement (Note 13) G B) st A& #tUE R Gz 13)
Currency translation differences & # 5 1 3= 48

At 31 December 7412 B 31 H

The gross movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities, without taking into consideration the offsetting of

balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

o 7 Y 0 i A P

20 EEEFr 38 (48)

EEFESHREFZ2BUT ¢

HK$’000 T % T HK$’000 F 7% 7T
14,903 7,368

(6,765) 7,558

(502) (23)

7,636 14,903

ETEZEE-HBAERENERBHENERT EEMEHEEREEREHNT :

Unrealised
profit resulting

Accelerated

Deferred income tax assets IEEFiEHEE
At 1 January 2021 78202141 81 H 30

Credited to the consolidated income statement 5 A & Hf U FH & -

from intragroup

Currency translation differences & # i 2 =48 -

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 42021 512 831 B 202261 811
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated income statement 5 A~ (#1B) &Rz &
Currency translation differences & #5 i Z 48

At 31 December 2022 A 2022512 A 31 H

Deferred income tax liabilities JEZ FT 1885 & &

At 1 January 2021 1320211 81 H

Charged to the consolidated income statement 1 B & & &

Currency translation differences & # 5 # = 28

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 202242021 12 831 HA K 2022181 H
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated income statement G1E) &t A & Uz =
Currency translation differences & #5 i Z 48

At 31 December 2022 X 2022512 31 H

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
approximately HK$10,369,000 (2021: HK$10,859,000) in respect of tax losses amounting to approximately
HK$57,360,000 (2021: HK$60,091,000) at 31 December 2022 that can be carried forward against future taxable
income. These tax losses have no expiry dates except for the tax losses of HK$16,833,000 (2021: HK$17,168,000)
which will expire between 2023 and 2041 (2021: expire between 2022 and 2040).

The Group did not recognise the deferred income tax liabilities of HK$5,971,000 (2021: HK$6,558,000) in respect of
the withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries amounting to
HK$119,364,000 (2021: HK$131,161,000) at 31 December 2022, as the Group can control the dividend policies of
these subsidiaries and these unremitted earnings will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.
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accounting transactions Lease
depreciation SERAIBRZEEN Provisions liabilities
R E ST SR 3R R E B HESE

HK$’000 Tt HK$’000 T 7T HK$’000 F#& 7T HK$’000 & 7T HK$’000 T3 7T

10,536 1,874 20,009 32,449

6,625 2,972 4,365 13,962

- 3) 477) (480)

17,161 4,843 23,897 45,931

(11,485) 4,697 (2,918) (9,701)

- 471) (860) (1,333)

5,676 9,069 20,119 34,897

Accelerated

tax Right-of-use
depreciation assets
INERBLIE T EREEE
HK$’000 &7t HK$’000 &7t HK$’000 & 7T
(5,944) (19,137) (25,081)
(2,268) (4,136) (6,404)
_ 457 457
(8,212) (22,816) (31,028)
(71) 3,006 2,935
14 818 832
(8,269) (18,992) (27,261)

WAIBBRRERBFHESREAERBEESE AR EEBAERIELEMEHRE
B o AR R AT 4B LUK SE R R IER T W & W B 18 57,360,000 7 T (2021 £ ©
60,091,000 7t) R IELE FT 5% & E 10,369,000 Jt (20214 : 10,859,000
Jt) ° BRF{LIBE 18 16,833,000 78 T (2021 & : 17,168,000 ju) R 2023 £ 2041 &F
RIZIEY (20214 : 2022 Z 2040 FEEH)  ZEFEEBEE/ERAE

FA2022F 12831 H AEBELEFRE THE AR RGEE ZZEF 119,364,000 T
(20214 : 131,161,000 7t) st RES 2R OB B ZEE TS B A E5,971,000%8
7t (20214 : 6,558,000 7t) @ WWIDHREEREAZEFSLEMNBELARNWKREBR -
WHELREENFBIEEATERNARSE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ao B B 5 R R B R

21 INVENTORIES 21 78

2022 2021

HK$’000 T3& T HK$’000 F7& 7T

Raw materials J&#1 %} 320,855 293,992

Work in progress £ & 227 2,114

Finished goods and trading merchandise £ fn & & 5 & 148,702 135,759

469,784 431,865
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in “cost of sales” amounted to HK$505,359,000 (2021: HZE2022F 12831 LELEE HBRAAEIILFATEHEXRARINEERELS
HK$351,189,000) and the impairment loss on inventories and write-off of inventories amounted to HK$422,000 505,359,000 Jt (2021 £ : 351,189,000/ ) » FERENEREFEEME S B A

(2021: HK$58,000) and HK$211,000 (2021: HK$323,000) for the year ended 31 December 2022, respectively. 422,000 % jT (2021 % : 58,0008 jT) & 211,000 78 jT (2021 £ : 323,000 T) °

22 TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 22 B 5 ME Wk JH B At 3 Bh & e

HK$’000 T /& T HK$’000 F& 7T
Trade receivables & 5 FE SR IE
— immediate holding company B Z#Z % A &) 67,813 288
— intermediate holding company A {2 % A 7] 142 -
— fellow subsidiaries @ % Hf & 2 7] 200,886 23,974
— joint ventures & & b3 1,926 2,693
— associate B & A 7 16,191 27,148
— third partiesZ8 =7 656,556 487,111
Trade receivables, gross & 5 FEUNFRIE - 4258 943,514 541,214
Less:loss allowance (note d)J& : JB{EIE % FfizEd) (20,284) (14,737)
Trade receivables, net /F & 5 FEIRFRE 923,230 526,477
Prepayments 781 5118 8,994 9,085
Other receivables H A & U5k 18 17,797 15,090
Deposits & & 18,333 17,756
Amount due from a joint venture (note b) FEUN & & 25018 (fzEb) 970 970
969,324 569,378
(@) The fair values of trade receivables and other currents assets approximate their carrying amounts. (a) ESREWREREMRBEEN AN EEHEEREMEMES
(b) The amount is repayable on demand, unsecured in nature and bears no interest. (b) HAEEAREREEEZ BEARRZE -
(© Retail sales at the Group’s stores are usually made in cash or by debit or credit cards. For wholesales to customers (including () AEEZEEBBREURE BRFIERFET MABBTFEF (BEFEBEBS)
related parties), the Group grants credit periods ranging from 30 to 90 days (2021: 30 to 180 days). Me AEERHNEEHHB30FE 90K (20214 : 302 180K) °
At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the aging analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date (including amounts due from R2022F 20215128310 REXZAHNEZRWTE (BREERBEESN
related parties of trading in nature) is as follows: BESME)NERBRIMWT :
HK$000 F#& 7T HK$000 Fi#& T
Up to 90 days 90 X 743,688 457,121
91-180 days 91 X £ 180 X 29,928 45,779
181-365 days 181 X £ 365 X 30,172 29,803
Over 365 days 365 K& M & 139,726 8,511
943,514 541,214
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d) The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. This resulted in loss allowance amounted to HK$20,284,000 (2021:HK$14,737,000) for
trade receivables as at 31 December 2022. Please refer to Note 3(a)(ii) for details about the calculation of the allowance and
the Group’s exposure to credit risk.

The loss allowances for trade receivables as at 31 December reconcile to the opening loss allowances as follows:

o 7 Y 0 i A P

22 B 5y ME WO 2 R 3Lt 3 B E (4

MiEE @ (&)

(d FEEEAEBMBREEAFEIFNE LS AT EEBERAL WEFEES
FWHEERBEFERVERBAERE - R2022F 1284310 EENEFEWR
FRIEIE K15 520,284,000 5T (2021 F : 14,737,00078 70) © M &F 3(a)(ii) #t A B
BETENFABR -

R12A31 0 BESEWFBEZRERESRNE S BUKEZRERENARNT :

Loss allowance as at 1 January 1 8 1 BiE{EE %

Loss allowance of trade receivables for the year (Note 7) & 5 FEUR 2 B{ERT 1R (3£ 7)
Exchange difference [ 5 Z %8

Loss allowance as at 31 December A 12 A 31 Hig{EE &

©

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables and other current assets are denominated in the following currencies:

2022 2021
HK$’000 T3 7T HK$’000 T3 7T
14,737 6,993

6,479 7,522

(932) 222

20,284 14,737

() AHKENEZEUREAREMABDEENREEUNTIERITE :

Hong Kong dollar &7t
Renminbi A R#&

United States dollar 355t
Canadian dollar st

Euro 7T

Australian dollar &7t
South Korea won 7t
Other currencies H1th &1

) At 31 December 2022, the Group does not hold any collateral as security (2021: nil).

23 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

2022 2021
HK$’000 F & T HK$°000 F & 7T
491,590 268,271
454,231 282,943
11,876 8,568
1,686 1,251
1,426 1,154
703 1,810

561 590
7,251 4,791
969,324 569,378

) MR2022F 12831 AEBIT\EFEEAEFRIERIER (2021 F : &) -

23 Bl K oAT &R

Cash and cash equivalents & R IREZEY
— Cash at bank and on hand TR EFRE
— Short-term bank deposits with original maturities within three months IR & =18 B s AN 2 B HISR1T1E R

Short-term bank deposits with original maturities exceeding three months R HAFR & =18 B U & 2 B HRR 1717 5K
Total # 5t

At 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits included balances of
HK$142,787,000 (2021: HK$154,041,000), which were deposits with banks in the Mainland China. The remittance of
such balances out of the Mainland China is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.
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2022 2021

HK$°000 Tt HK$’000 T8 7T
930,443 652,482
1,060,523 1,007,822
1,990,966 1,660,304
252,997 615,264
2,243,963 2,275,568

MR2022F12A31H AEENESRESEEYURENERTERERE
142,787,000 T (2021 4 : 154,041,0008 7t) » ZEREBEPE AR 2R
THER BZEEHELTEAESHPERNERHNIESEHRAIREREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ao B B 5 R R B R

23 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued) 23 BE&RBITHR (H)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits are denominated in AEENESRESEEYUREHRITEFRVIREBEATIERE

the following currencies:

2022 2021

HK$’000 T /& T HK$’000 &7t
Hong Kong dollar 7& 7t 1,903,077 1,913,828
Renminbi A R# 118,687 154,618
Macao pataca ;2F9 7t 76,191 70,813
Canadian dollar fl7t 34,714 32,936
Australian dollar J&7T 30,933 31,409
Singapore dollar 1 i03 7T 29,447 28,057
United States dollar 37t 23,968 20,372
Other currencies Hfth & ¥ 26,946 23,535
2,243,963 2,275,568
24 SHARE CAPITAL 24 A

Number Share
of shares capital
RHEE &S
HK$’000 Fi8 7T

Ordinary shares issued and fully paid 2 2T R & 2 LB R
At 31 December 2021 and 2022 142021 F % 2022412 A 31 H 837,100,000 938,789

25 RESERVES 25 (it

Merger reserve Statutory reserve
(note a) Other (note b) Exchange Retained

EOHEE reserves SEE R reserve earnings

(fizEa) Hitbf# B (FftEEb) BE 57 1 RE W2

HK$°000 F % 7T HK$°000 F % T HK$°000 7% T HK$’000 & T HK$’000 F%& 7T HK$’000 F%& 7T

At 1 January 2021 74202151 81H (13,124) (6,850) 6,229 (5,172) 2,097,617 2,078,700
Comprehensive income %R & W 3%

Profit for the year 4 & I/ ;E - - - - 607,838 607,838
Other comprehensive (losses)/income Hfth4r & (&8 W

Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income

DArBEFEEESHTAHMFERENEREEAAEEED - (645) - - - (645)

Currency translation differences & % 5 Z 48

— Group &A&H - - - 624 - 624

— Joint ventures and associates & & 1% & & A 7 - - - 40 - 40
Total comprehensive (losses)/income &4 (B8 WFHE 5 - (645) - 664 607,838 607,857
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners B2 FTEEUEFIEEANEDETHNR B WELE
Transactions with non-controlling interests B2 JFIZ BTN S - (6,269) - - - (6,269)
Dividends paid E1J8% & - - - - (200,904) (200,904)
Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
BRERMEEUEMEENSDETHRZNEE - (6,269) - - (200,904) (207,173)
At 31 December 2021 42021 512 531 H (13,124) (13,764) 6,229 (4,508) 2,504,551 2,479,384
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 RESERVES (Continued)

At 1 January 2022 7420221 A1 H
Comprehensive income 44
Profit for the year £ & ;&
Other comprehensive income/(losses) Hftt4ir& W (&8
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
UAREBENEEEEBHH AL MARERENSREEANEEED
Currency translation differences & % 5 i = 58
— Group AE&EH
— Joint ventures and associates & & XK KE A T
Total comprehensive income/(losses) ZR& W, (B8 # 5
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners EBRESFIEEUEFEENEDETHRZ NALEE
Dividends paid & 1J 8 &
Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners B2 i EUEHFIEEN S DETHR S WAL
At 31 December 2022 2022512 531 H

Notes:

(@ Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the net book value of the entities that had been acquired and
the investment consideration paid by the Company to effect a reorganisation that took place in 2010.

(b) The PRC laws and regulations require companies registered in the Mainland China to provide for certain statutory reserves,
which are to be appropriated from the net profit (after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years) as reported in their
respective statutory financial statements, before profit distributions to equity holders. All statutory reserves are created for
specific purposes. The company in the Mainland China is required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to statutory
reserves, upon distribution of its post-tax profits of the current year. A company may discontinue the contribution when the
aggregate sum of the statutory reserve is more than 50% of its registered capital. The statutory reserves shall only be used to
make up losses of the companies, to expand the companies’ production operations, or to increase the capital of the
companies. In addition, a company may make further contribution to the statutory reserve using its post-tax profits in
accordance with resolutions of the board of directors.

26 BORROWINGS

Non-current FE &)

— Secured bank borrowing B £ R 1TE R

— Unsecured government loan & # BT & 7%
Total non-current borrowings JE5 Bt & 4258
Current i &)

— Secured bank borrowing B 1 R1TE

— Unsecured government loan 1% # BfF & 7%
Total current borrowings B & & 4858

Total borrowings f& & #2 58
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Merger reserve
(note a)

B ptHEE
(Fizta)

o 7 Y 0 i A P

25 filfls (78)

Statutory reserve

Other
reserves

H b

(note b) Exchange Retained
EERE reserve earnings

(f=EDb) BE s 8 RE Wz

HK$000 T#T  HK$000 T#T  HK$000 T  HK$000 F#7T  HK$000 FiEx  HK$000 Fi# 7T
(13,124) (13,764) 6,229 (4,508) 2,504,551 2,479,384
- - - - 645,875 645,875

- 4,155 - - - 4,155

- - - (16,694) - (16,694)

- = - (3,360) = (3,360)

- 4,155 - (20,054) 645,875 629,976

_ - - - (443,663) (443,663)

_ - - - (443,663) (443,663)
(13,124) (9,609) 6,229 (24,562) 2,706,763 2,665,697

MEE

FEENAHERECHBERNREFERART BN 2010FETEAMZN
MEBRERENESE-

TEEERERRE ETEAGIMO QAR RESEADIRFBA - AREH
EEVMBBRAZBNFANE (EHEUEFENRFTBEER) P 2EAEUER
BETEERE FELEREUYRABEREMRYL - FEANMEATARDIKEFEN
BRREFEE  AREERBEIREZEFANENI0% EQAEEERBHANE
BHAMEANS0%E AT AFLIE - EZERHBEITRERBIIANES
BALDEAMNEELERBMAANER - Ib) RREZERER QRAULAH
BERARRNBEEEREFELE-—SHK -

26 B8

Note Fff&E HK$’000 T 3% 7T HK$’000 F3% 7T

@-(c) - 56

(d) 333 743
e 38 _ 799

(@-(c) 53 =

(d) 166 480
e 219 480

552 1,279
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(©)

The bank borrowing is secured by the freehold land and building of the Group amounted to HK$9,457,000 (2021:
HK$10,406,000) (Note 17).

The bank borrowing bears interest at 1.5% plus the bank bill rate in Australia per annum and is wholly repayable in 2023 (2021:

same). The Group has HK$7,350,000 (2021: HK$7,885,000) undrawn borrowing facility with floating rate expiring beyond one
year.

The bank borrowing is denominated in Australian dollar and its carrying amount approximates its fair values.

The government loans represent a fund from Macau Economic Bureau under a special assistance scheme for small-medium
corporations affected by typhoon and funds from governments under the schemes related to COVID-19.

For Macau government loan, the interest free loan is unsecured and repayable in 7 years (2021: same). The loan is
denominated in Macao pataca and its carrying amount approximates its fair values.

For other government loans, all loans are interest free (2021: all loans are interest free). All of the loans are repaid during the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: unsecured and repayable in 1 to 2 years). The loans are denominated in 2021 are
Canadian dollar and Poland zloty respectively.

o 7 Y 0 i A P

26 fEE (%)

BT -

(a)

RITERBEAREEB9,457,0008 T K X £ # £+ i R 42 F MIKH (2021 & ¢
10,406,000 7T) (MizE17)

WITEREBRANTENRTEZENRMI5%ZFETE  FAETERER 20234
2 EEE (20215 : HHRE) - A% @ 4F7,350,0005% 7T (20214 : 7,885,000 % jT)
REBANZHAEEEEEINHREBB—F -

RITEELRTEE  BARBAERAABEEMES °

BREERARMEERZIRALET NEESRENFEATHREAREMGER
1 B 2 B MY BURF AR K o

BREMBAER WESERBERAYTR7EAEE - ERUBRMFE B
HIREEEQABEEMESE (2021 8E) -

BREMBFERD  MEERENE (20215  IEEREFNE) - IAERER
2022F 12831 HLFEREE (2021F  MEBRABEEFALFTMIEZ2FRE
B) c 2021 FERMTUR BELBIRTE -

27 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27§ 5 B A A sk IR

2022 2021

HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 & T
Trade payables & 5 FE{IFIE

— intermediate holding company 7 B35 i 2 &) 4,736 9,343

— immediate holding company B2k 2 & 9,048 12,801

— fellow subsidiaries & Z [} & A = 310 -

— associate Bf& 1\ 7 4,478 -

— third parties 58 =7 135,133 12,452
Trade payables (note a) & 5 FE{IFE (fzEa) 153,705 34,596
Accruals and other payables FEsTE F K H i fE {5118 77,032 88,446
Contract liabilities &R & & 4,678 4,508
235,415 127,550

Notes: Wi

s

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the aging analysis of the trade payables (including amounts due to related parties of trading
in nature) based on invoice date is as follows:

(a) F2022F K2021F12A31H RERZEAHNEZENRE (BREENSEERN
BEHE) NIRRT ¢

HK$’000 F7& T HK$’000 F &7t

Up to 90 days 90 X 140,238 30,273
91-180 days 91 X £ 180 X 6,701 33
181-365 days 181 X £ 365 X 1,190 -
Over 365 days 365 Kk A £ 5,576 4,290
153,705 34,596
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar # T
Renminbi A B#&

Canadian dollar fin Jt
Australian dollar 2t

South African rand 7 JF B 45
Singapore dollar 37 i3 7t
United States dollar %7t

Other currencies E i & #&

28 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Cash generated from operations

Profit before income tax B 715 51 78

Adjustments for: FiATEE A :

— COVID-19-related rent concessions (Note 7) $1Z @ik mZ it A M RAFH S8 = CHEE7)

— Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 16) {£ FAEEETE (izE16)

— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 17) #1% - BE R REITE GizE17)

— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 18) i, & E#dH (ff5E 18)

— Impairment loss on inventories (Note 21) 17 & 2 R{ET1E Gz 21)

— Write-off of inventories (Note 21) 7 & s (ffz£21)

— Write-off of property, plant and equipment (Note 7) #)2% - = R R &R GizE7)

— Loss allowance on trade receivables (Note 22) & 5 FEUR R 1E 2 F{E T2 (ffaE22)

— (Gains),”losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment (Note 7)
HEME MEREEZ W, HiE @)

— Loss on modification of lease FHE# E 2 F#E

— Dividend income B Rz

— Finance (income),”costs, net (Note 10) F#E175 k), X H EfzE10)

— Share of losses,” (profits) of investments accounted for using the equity method
LR EARZRERE FIH

— Unsecured government loan waived 4 % 38 8 BT & 5%

Changes in working capital: B & &2 5

— Inventories 7 &

— Trade receivables and other current assets & 5 FEWFIE R HM R E &S E
— Trade and other payables & 5 & E{th fE {4 718

Cash generated from operations & FiELX 2 HRE
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27 ¥ 5 B LAt FE A sk OE (%)

e (4)

o 7 Y 0 i A P

(b) AEEMESZRAEMEMHENREEATIEETE:

2022 2021
HK$’000 F 7 T HK$’000 F & 7T
61,600 59,367
141,744 36,619
6,598 6,132
7,023 5,204
4,537 4,836
2,133 2,560
798 1,521
10,982 11,311
235,415 127,550

28 A PR B i B R Mk
(a) AEEPIEAEZ B

2022 2021
HK$’000 F &7t HK$'000 &7t
825,962 778,391
(137) (483)
59,253 54,648
13,049 13,069
3,168 2,255
422 58

211 323

47 -
6,479 7,522
(28) 437

= 83

(225) (180)
(15,927) 330
1,540 (261)
(294) (1,227)
893,520 854,965
(46,998) 64,958
(434,158) 23,185
154,243 (28,103)
566,607 915,005
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of

property, plant and equipment comprise:

28 & BF Bl 4 v R B R (4)

o 7 Y 0 i A P

AR RS WEWE - B Kk i P sk R

HK$’000 T3& T HK$’000 T8 T
Net book amount (Note 17) BREHE (fizE17) 99 459
Gains/(losses) on disposals of property, plant and equipment (Note 7)
HEME  BERREz W &S (HE7) 28 (437)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment tHHEY % - BiE KRBTSR 127 22

(c) Reconciliation of cash flows from financing activities

Liabilities from financing activities as at 1 January 20214202151 81 BE@&EEHNER
Principal elements of lease payments # & & B4 £ 22

Interest paid E 1378

Proceeds from borrowing & & 153k

Repayment of borrowing && & &

Unsecured government loan waived $4 % 3% BT & 51

Acquisition of lease U8 E

Others(i) EAth (i)

Foreign exchange adjustments [& 5 F%

Liabilities from financing activities as at 31 December 2021 22021 £12 B 31 BRI EEHNEE
Liabilities from financing activities as at 1 January 2022 7420221 81 H@EFBHMNEE
Principal elements of lease payments ¥ & & B4 < 5

Interest paid 214 FI &

Repayment of borrowing {&& & &

Unsecured government loan waived 4 % & 5 #f BUF & X

Acquisition of lease BV E

Others(i) HAth (i)

Foreign exchange adjustments [& 5 F8 %

Liabilities from financing activities as at 31 December 2022 42022512 B 31 HREEHHNEE

(i) Other changes include accrued interest expense, COVID-19-related rent concessions and lease modification.
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Borrowings Lease liabilities
BE HEAE
HK$’000 & 7T HK$’000 F%& 7T HK$’000 F#& 7T
2,312 103,698 106,010
- (50,496) (50,496)
@ (4,705) (4,707)
387 = 387
(166) - (166)
(1,227) - (1,227)
- 58,093 58,093
2 22,093 22,095
27) (1,486) (1,513)
1,279 127,197 128,476
1,279 127,197 128,476
- (56,042) (56,042)
() (4,659) (4,661)
(433) - (433)
(294) - (294)
- 27,731 27,731
(14) 11,423 11,409
16 (3,120) (3,104)
552 102,530 103,082

(i) H@ e aEEtME  HEESRFESHAEBESHENEESE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ao B B 5 R R B R

29 COMMITMENTS 29 KIE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEARKYE
2022 2021
HK$°000 %t HK$’000 F& T
Contracted but not provided for B 5] #{B R 45
— property, plant and equipment¥] % « BiRE &R & 3,802 3,342
(b) Lease commitments (b) FE RN
The Group has recognised right-of-use assets for leases, except for short-term and low-value leases as set AEBEHRAEMEREAEEE  UTHAZEHREEEHRERM
out below:
2022 2021
HK$’000 F#& T HK$’000 T8t
No later than 1 year 15 1,698 1,509
As at 31 December 2022, undiscounted future lease payments amounted to HK$806,000 (2021: Nil) were M2022F 12831 A AEBEEARFEAMBN AT RARBEENSRES
committed by the Group but the relevant lease periods had not commenced. These lease commitments were 806,0008 7T (20214 : ) - S SR T 2023 F (20215 : 2022F)
recognised as right-of-use assets upon the lease commencement date in 2023 (2021: 2022). As at 31 EHMKBEEEBEIAEFEHEEE - N2022F12A310 » NEFEMBBE X
December 2022, the Group has no relevant lease commitments not commenced. BAE TR ERIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

At 31 December 2022, two subsidiaries of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong
Ren Tang Ltd. directly owned 38.05% and 33.62% of shareholding in the Company respectively. Tong Ren Tang
Ltd. is also the controlling shareholder of Tong Ren Tang Technologies. Tong Ren Tang Ltd. effectively owns 71.67%
equity interest in the Company. The remaining 28.33% of the shares are widely held.

The Board of Directors of the Company regards Tong Ren Tang Technologies as the immediate holding company,
Tong Ren Tang Ltd. as the intermediate holding company and Tong Ren Tang Holdings as the ultimate holding

company, all of which are companies incorporated in the PRC.

In addition to those disclosed in other sections of these consolidated financial statements, the following transactions
were carried out with related parties:

(a) Sales and purchases of products

Sales of products to $EEER T
Joint ventures & & %
Fellow subsidiaries [E & /&2 &
An associate B N\ F)
Immediate holding company B #Z#& A 7

Intermediate holding company H 2% A &)

Purchases of products from BT ARBEEM
Immediate holding company E 2% A 7]
Intermediate holding company = &2 3% 2 &)
Fellow subsidiaries [@ % K & 2 7]

Joint ventures & %

An associate Bz A\ 7]

(b) Royalty fee income

Royalty fee income from joint ventures 2 B & & 3% 2 B E A B W

(c) Rental expenses

Rental expense to: Bl T AR Sz A&
Ultimate holding company F#&#2A &
Fellow subsidiaries [EZ B2 7]

At 31 December 2022, the Group recognised lease liabilities payable to fellow subsidiaries of HK$2,557,000
(2021: HK$4,761,000) over the relevant property leases.
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30 EAKBE RS

A2022F12A31H  RACESEEARANMEMNBLARRCENEREACERDAE
RAT DB EESEEARRNTSE8.05% K33.62% EE - BEI-ERMBERATINBEIZ
ERENERRR - BECERDERAAERIFERLATTI67%RE KT
28.33% WIRMEEZHE

AARESEREACENEAEEERAR FCEZEROBRADATEBERLA
RECEEERRARGAERLT  ZE2IRTEEMHKL -

BREZEREUBBRAMEHAREEIN  THRSTIEBELET

(a) B Bl B

2022 2021
Note Fff=E HK$’000 F3& T HK$’000 %8 T
@i 1,237 3,852

(i) 221,517 92,118

[0) 1,438 42,288

(i) 63,942 703

[0) 135 —
288,269 138,961

2022 2021

Note Fff=E HK$’000 F3& T HK$’000 38 T
(0] 34,860 26,289

(i) 27,055 31,718

(i) 38,313 1,615

(i) 53 -

[0) 4,239 -
104,520 59,622

(b) ik R Wi

2022 2021
Note fff&E HK$’000 Ti& 7T HK$’000 T8 7T
(ii) 818 318
(c) A%
2022 2021
Note Fff=E HK$’000 F3& 7T HK$’000 38T
[0) 972 985
0] 4,929 4,876
5,901 5,861

MR2022F 128318 AEEREBEYERERAENRRZMBLARNEE
£ 152,557,000 7T (2021 £ : 4,761,00058 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ao B B 5 R R B R

30 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 30 HOKPARE TR 5 ()
(d) Advertising agency services expense (d) R BRI % 2 A

2022 2021

Advertising agency services expense to a fellow subsidiary BRI R KB A A2 EERERISE R

(e) Key management compensation

Key management includes directors (executive and non-executive) and senior management. The emoluments

paid or payable to key management for employee services is as follows:

2022 2021

Note Fff=E HK$’000 F3& 7T
0] 1,318

HK$’000 F& 7T
2,552

(e) FEAEIAERBM

TEEBASEBEHUTRIVTESZNSREEAE - BEERBATEE

BAEXNHENNMENT :

HK$’000 T3& 7T

HK$’000 F3&7T

31 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND AN

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits #& M E b2 HE S EF 7,148 8,213
Pension costs — defined contribution plans Bk E KA — EEAMHFETE 343 301
7,491 8,514
Notes: P =
(i) These transactions were conducted in the normal course of business at prices and terms mutually agreed between the (i) ZERIR—REKBERPZRELSHENER RIFFTET
parties involved.
(ii) In accordance with the royalty agreements, the royalty fee is charged annually by the Company at either 1% on (if) MEERABDAARARBERRERAERREZEAECEEERAN 1%
revenue and 1.5% on profit before income tax of the joint ventures, whichever is higher. Pursuant to these agreements, BARBEN15%NESERR - REZSHE ZSEECEEEUIR
these joint ventures are permitted to operate under “Tong Ren Tang” brand name. CEIRBEEBEE -

ST PR ¥ YT 1IN

ASSOCIATE

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries and joint ventures at 31 December 2022 and 2021:

TXEFNNR2022F K 2021 F12A31BENWEEMBELT  FECERBEE QAT -

Name £

(@ Subsidiaries &2 &
(i Directly held by the Company A2 A E##E
Beijing Tong Ren Tang International Natural-Pharm Co., Ltd.

TRRCEERERARAT OO

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Australia Pty. Ltd.
FRECE @RAFD BRAR

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Science Arts (Singapore) Co Pte. Ltd.
TRECERN IR RERABRAT

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Toronto) Inc.
TRACE GRE)ERAR

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2022

Place of incorporation and kind of legal entity

B EINA b b

PRC, limited liability company
HE - BRAE

Australia, limited liability company

BAND - BRAR

Singapore, limited liability company

Mg BRAR

Canada, limited liability company

MEX ERLE

Particulars of issued
Principal activities and place of operation share capital

IRXBRELDE BRARAKFE

Sale and distribution of Chinese medicine products HK$10,000,000
and healthcare products 10,000,000387%

HERAHPEERERER

Beijing, PRC

HE R

Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine products and AUD1,000,000
healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical 1,000,000 %7

consultation and treatments

HERBETEERERRRARRBPBDRERS

Sydney, Australia

BARE BR

Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine products and SGD857,000
healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical 857,000 A% T
consultation and treatments

HEREETEERERERUARREPED RS

Singapore

Fipe’ 3

Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products CAD497,300
and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments 497,300 £ A 7t

ZETEERERRRIRRUTEDRER

Toronto, Canada

nex - %&%

Effective equity interest held
Jiigsa 13 4

2022 2021

100% 100%
75% 75%
51% 51%
51% 51%
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31 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND AN
ASSOCIATE (Continued)

31 ERMEAT > &8 8% LS AT (8)

Particulars of issued Effective equity interest held
share capital FERER

Place of incorporation and kind of legal entity Principal activities and place of operation

AT G R EARRER IREBRELE BROTRFFE 202 2021

(@ Subsidiaries (Continued) k&2 = (&)
(i Directly held by the Company (Continued) &2 A& &5 @

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Gulf FZ-LLC United Arab Emirates, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products AED1,920,000 51% 51%
FTRRCESEERAT MAABEERE GERAF and provision of Chinese medical consultation 1,920,000 B e 1B
and treatments

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Macau) Company Limited Macao, PRC, limited liability company Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine products MOP1,000,000 51% 51%
TRECE R ERAF HE R BRAR and healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical 1,000,000 1t
consultation and treatments

BERFETEERERRARRHEMEDREH

Macao, PRC

e BF
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Poland sp.zo.0. Poland, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products Zloty130,000 100% 100%
FTRECE (KR ERAF RE - BRAR and provision of Chinese healthcare treatments 130,000 Z& %

TENEERERRRRRAPEDREY

Warsaw, Poland

wEED
Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Seoul) Company Limited South Korea, limited liability company Wholesale of Chinese medicine products and WON1,052,000,000 51% 51%
TERCE ERHAEHR BE BERATE healthcare products 1,052,000,0008 7

BEPEERERRER

Seoul, Korea

BE BR
Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Auckland) Company Limited © New Zealand, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products NZD2,000,000 100% 51%
TRECE BRB)BRAR O HiEE BRARA and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments 2,000,000 &t

TEMEERERERRRAPEDREY

Auckland, New Zealand

HEH BRl
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Tong Xin Tong Le Company Limited Hong Kong, PRC, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products HK$10,000 100% 100%
FRECEROELERAR TE 0 BRAR and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments 10,0007

ZENEERERRRRREPEDREY

Hong Kong, PRC

HE B
Honour Essence Trading Limited Hong Kong, PRC, limited liability company Wholesale of Chinese medicine products and HK$2,000 51% 51%
REESERAH TE &% BRAR healthcare products 2000587

HEPEERERRER

Hong Kong, PRC

e BB
Sichuan Sihui Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd."® PRC, limited liability company Wholesale of Chinese medicine products and RMB1,000,000 60% -
M EmEEEERAROO FE BRAT healthcare products 1,000,000 A R H

BEPEERERRER

Sichuan, PRC

- ml
Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Hainan) Holding Co,. Ltd PRC, limited liability company Wholesale of Chinese medicine products and RMB5,000,000 100% -
TERCE (8 EREBRARY HE - BRAR healthcare products 5,000,000 A R#

HETEERERER

Hainan, PRC

HE - 8E
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Vancouver Healthcare Center Co., Ltd Canada, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products CAD1,000,000 51% 51%

IRRCERFERETOARAT

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2022

NEX - ERAF

SENEERARERRRETED RS
Dubai, United Arab Emirates
M AHSHRE  BE

and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments
ZEEERAREARRETED RS
Vancouver, Canada
mex BEE

1,000,000 M A T

ERACEAEARAR | —B==FFH

273



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ao B B 5 R R B R

HﬂI’S

31 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND AN 31 FEMBAAE » &
ASSOCIATE (Continued)

3436 B BBk O W) (H])

Particulars of issued Effective equity interest held

Place of incorporation and kind of legal entity Principal activities and place of operation share capital fiRmRE

AT G R EARRER IREBRELE BROTRFFE 202 2021

(@ Subsidiaries (Continued) k&2 = (&)
(i) Indirectly held by the Company A2 FE##EE
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Melbourne Pty Limited Australia, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products AUD100,000 38% 38%
FRRECE @ANERAR BARE BRAR and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments 100,000 &7
TETEERERERRRAPEDREY
Melbourne, Australia

BANG  E@A

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Pudu Health Centre B.V. The Netherlands, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products Euro650,000 45% 45%
FTREACEEERRTPOERAR HE - BRAR and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments 650,000 87T

SETEERARRRREHEPEDBRRY
Den Haag, the Netherlands

HE BT
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Czech Republic SE The Czech Republic, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products (CZK3,296,400 45% 45%
TRRCE BRI ERAA R BRAR and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments 3,296,400 5 7% 52

ZETEERERERRRMAPEDREY
Prague, Czech Republic

R Wi
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Canada Co. Ltd. Canada, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products CAD1,000,000 51% 51%
TRELCE MEXNBRAF mex BRAA and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments 1,000,000 1€ A7t

FENEERERERRRETPED RS
Vancouver, Canada
nex BgE
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Sweden AB Sweden, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products SEK50,000 45% 45%
IRECE GEFRAA H# o BRAR and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatment 50,0003 252 54
ZETEERERRRRRMAPED RN
Stockholm ,Sweden

BR HEIHE

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Swiss SA Switzerland, limited liability company Provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments CHF500,000 45% 45%
ERRECERTRAERAT Ht o BRAR REDEDREY 500,0003% 1 %8B

Geneva, Switzerland

%t HAR
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Ming Qi Group, LLC United States, limited liability company Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine products US$200,000 60% 60%
FRECEREERAR 26 BRAR and healthcare products 200,000% 7

HERSETEERERER
New York, United States

28 4%
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Concord New York LLC United States, limited liability company Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine products US$800,000 51% 51%
FTRRCEGNANERAT 28 BRAH and healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical 800,000 7T

consultation and treatments
HERZETEERERBRIRRHPEDBRYE
New York, United States
26 449

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Los Angeles Healthcare Center LLC United States, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products US$600,000 51% 51%
FRECERVREBEDOERAR 26 BRAR and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments 600,000 7

TENEERERRRREHPEDRES
Los Angeles, United States
ELEN T

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (San Gabriel CA) LLC United States, limited liability company Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine products US$600,000 51% 51%
TRECE BEEMNERAT 28 BRAH and healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical 600,000% 7T

consultation and treatments
HERBETEERARRRURREPEDRES
Los Angeles, United States
X8 BB
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31 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND AN
ASSOCIATE (Continued)

©)

Place of incorporation and kind of legal entity

AT G R EARRER

Joint ventures 4 & 4%
Directly held by the Company A2 A E## 5

Peking Tongrentang (M) SDN. BHD @ Malaysia, limited liability company
LRECE B BRAR? FRAEL BRAR

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Thailand) Co., Ltd.? Thailand, limited liability company
ERRCE GE)ERAA? ZE BRAR

Union Health International Limited Hong Kong, PRC, limited liability company

BREARERAF FE & BRAR
Associate B& 1\ 7]

Directly held by the Company &2 E 5

Beijing Tong Ren Tang WM Dianorm Biotech Co., Limited®® PRC, limited liability company
FRBCEEREENHAERAF OO HE - BRAR

The English names of the Group companies incorporated in the Mainland China represent the best effort by the management
of the Group in translating from their Chinese names as they do not have official English names.

Although the Company owns more or less than 50% of the equity interests in these entities, the directors of the Company
consider that these entities are joint ventures of the Company because their strategic operating, investing and financing
activities are jointly controlled by the Company and the joint venture partners in accordance with the joint venture agreements
rather than under the unilateral control or significant influence of the Company.

The non-controlling interests of all non-wholly owned subsidiaries are individually not material to the Group.

Registered as a Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise under the PRC Law.

The Group acquired 49% equity interests in Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Auckland) Company Limited from non-controlling
interests at the consideration of HK$16,602,000 during the year ended 31 December 2021. The carrying amount of 49%
equity interests of Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Auckland) Company at acquisition date was HK$10,333,000.

On 30 September 2021, the Group completed the acquisition of 40% of the equity interests in Beijing Tong Ren Tang WM

Dianorm Biotech Co., Limited from an independent third party at a total consideration of RMB33,109,300 (equivalent to
approximately HK$39,832,000).

On 28 February 2022, the Group completed the acquisition of 60% of the equity interests in Sichuan Sihui Pharmaceutical Co.

Ltd. from an independent third party at a total consideration of RMB254,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$287,000).
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31 EEWE AW > A8 ek RBE AT ()

Particulars of issued Effective equity interest held

Principal activities and place of operation share capital FrE R R
FTEXBREEHE BERATRAFE 2022 2021

Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products MYR1,900,000 60% 60%
and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments 1,900,000 5%
ZETEERERERIRRAPEDRIER

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

ERAE  EBR
Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine products THB38,000,000 49% 49%
and healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical 38,000,000 %%

consultation and treatments
HERTETEERARBRIRRHT B RRS
Bangkok, Thailand

ZE 8%
Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products HK$10,000 50% 50%
and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments 10,0008

ZEVEERARRRARRETEDRRY

Hong Kong, PRC

HE . FiE

Technological development and sales of biological products, US$3,000,000 40% 40%
Chinese and western medicines, cosmetics and 3,000,000% 7T
healthcare products

ENER  PEE CHRTRRENNETHERHE

M

RABAEEMEINEEAREEARI AR AANEERAEEAEERER
BRXEBEEMK -

BEADTALEZEERINALO N0 RE  HEHRBEGEHE 2SE8
NERBEE RERBETHTIRARQAAREGEBHARES  MIAERATES
AZEHRBEEATE HALAEERAZSERNADAGERE -
FENEZEMBARZHEREZENMSHETREEATE -
RIEFEZEFIMABIETBEEDLE -

BZE2021F12A31BIEFEE > ANEE 16,602,000 Jt /9 ¥ E @ 2 R % WK
BTLEREACE(RTWM) ERATI9%NRE - L ZECE (RTWM) ERAITR
g B 49% MW AR M BREE % 10,333,000 8 T ©

2021 9A30F  AEFRREOBYE=FRBLRB-CEEHELEYRMER

NTF40% W IREE - AYES AR 33,109,300 7T (FHER 439,832,000 T) °

202228280 AEBRKEBYE=ZFWEN)IENEEEEGRQT60%H
B BEEA AR 254,000 7T (FHE M4 287,000/87T)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY

Assets BE
Non-current assets R EEE
Property, plant and equipment ¥3 + &= & & &
Right-of-use assets £ FAEEE
Intangible assets EEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB 8 2 %&
Investments in joint ventures RE & ¥ 2 RE
Investments in associates REfE A T2 7E
Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
UARBESEEHESHHAEMGERENERMERE
Prepayments for purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

BEYE  BERRBARETLEENEGTK

Current assets B EE
Inventories &
Trade receivables and other current assets & 5 EWFIE R H R E & E
Short-term bank deposits 2R 1TE R
Cash and cash equivalents &R IREEEY

Total assets BEHEE
Equity and liabilities ## Rk & &
Equity attributable to owners of the Company &2 F# & A (L&
Share capital 87
Reserves f#f&
— Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
DARBESTTEEESETALMFRERENERMERE
— Retained earnings 1# & Wi
Total equity #4258
Liabilities &1&
Non-current liabilities 3£/ BN & 1&
Lease liabilities & & &
Deferred income tax liabilities, net SFEEFTSH EE

Current liabilities i E1 & &

Trade and other payables & 5 K Hfth fE{S 5118
Lease liabilities HE& &

Current income tax liabilities EHIFT 5% & &

Total liabilities & &%
Total equity and liabilities ## & & &4

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors on 13 March 2023 and was signed on
its behalf.

Ding Yong Ling Lin Man

Director Director
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2022 2021

Note Fff&E

HK$’000 58T HK$000 F387T

90,565 92,715

123,224 134,602

7,470 7,417

334,782 295,847

26,448 26,448

43,762 43,762

9,618 5,463

11,724 13,991

647,593 620,245

341,136 311,095

925,166 726,225

212,100 590,400

1,671,630 1,318,557
o....3,150,082 2,946,277

3,797,625 3,566,522

938,789 938,789

(4,170) (8,325)

2,630,058 2,477,755
eo.._...3,564,677 __________ 3,408,219

13,792 14,872

7,035 6,968
IR 20,827 _ ___________. 21,840 _

61,869 87,007

20,153 28,447

130,099 21,009
. 212121 _ . 136,463
e 232,948 _ ___________ 158,303 _

3,797,625 3,566,522

NAMEEBBERN2023FIA1BHAEESSME  YAUTRRES -

TX®E
EE

me
EZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

At 1 January 2021 742021F151H

Profit for the year & F|;H

Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
UARBETEEESHTAEMGERENEMEEANEEEZD

Dividends paid (Note 15) E{fIRE (FizE15)

At 31 December 2021 7420215128318

At 1 January 2022 14202261 81H

Profit for the year & Fi8

Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
UAREBESEEHSHTARMGESRENSREEANEEED

Dividends paid (Note 15) BAFIRE (Fff5E15)

At 31 December 2022 420225128318
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Financial asset at
fair value
through other
comprehensive

income reserve

Retained RRAREEFER
earnings HE st AHAM
REWE HERBENERMEE
HK$’000 3%t HK$’000 T T
2,090,749 (7,680)
587,910 -

- (645)
(200,904) -
2,477,755 (8,325)
2,477,755 (8,325)
595,966 -

- 4,155
(443,663) -
2,630,058 4,170)
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INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

INVESTOR CALENDAR

12 August 2022 2022 interim results announcement
13 March 2023 2022 annual results announcement
8 May 2023 Annual General Meeting

3 May to 8 May 2023
(Both days inclusive)
12 May to 16 May 2023
(Both days inclusive)
16 May 2023

On or before 31 May 2023

Closure of Register of Members (for determination of shareholders who are entitled
to attend and vote at annual general meeting)

Closure of Register of Members (for determination of shareholders who qualify for
the final dividend)

Record Date (for determination of shareholders who qualify for the final dividend)

Payment of final dividend

SHARE INFORMATION

#E&EHHIE

2022487 12H
2023F3A13H
202345H8H

2023%5H3HE5H8H
(BEERMA)

2023F5H12HE5A16H
(BiFER™AE)

2023%5H16H
2023F5831 B2 Al

JBe A ¥ B

B H YR

2022F HEREEE NS

2022 FEEBAE

BEBFAE

EERERMBEETLTE (REEREERRBEAS
WAEEREZRR)

ERERMBFETTHE (RESERWERIMKREN
BRER)

REES (RESERKEARBRENERR)
IR RS

Company Name Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited AR ERE ITREICEZEEFRAR
Listing The Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited E® ERBHEXZERDTER
Stock Code 3613 REGRR 3613
GEM Listing Date 7 May 2013 GEM LT HHA 2013%F5H7H
Transferred from GEM to 29 May 2018 HGEME £ 4% A & 2018%F5H29H
Main Board Date
Lot Size 1,000 Shares BEEEW 1,000 A% 17
Issued Share Capital 837,100,000 Shares A2022F12831H 2 837,100,0000% i2 13
as at 31 December 2022 ERITRAE
INVESTOR RELATIONS DEPARTMENT & H B AR
Room 1405-1409, Office Tower, Convention Plaza EBEBTBEE1R
1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong ERESHAKRE1405-1409F
Tel: (852) 2881 7989 B 0 (852) 2881 7989
Fax: (852) 2881 0839 f8H : (852) 2881 0839
Email: ir@tongrentangcm.com B IJ : ir@tongrentangcm.com
Website: cm.tongrentang.com #43k : cm.tongrentang.com

SHAREHOLDERS SERVICE AND ENQUIRIES

For enquiries about your shareholding including change of name or address, transfer of shares, loss of share certificates or
dividend cheques, registrations and requests for annual/interim report copies, please contact the Company’s share
registrar and transfer office:
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E/hHHRE)NER  FHELALAROELRBLE

EBTREFETEHRAT
EBEBFERRER183N
EMAN17EA712-1716 554

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong E5E ¢ (852) 2862 8555

Tel: (852) 2862 8555 fEE : (852) 2865 0990/2529 6087
Fax: (852) 2865 0990/2529 6087 EH : hkinfo@computershare.com.hk
Email: hkinfo@computershare.com.hk # 1k www.computershare.com

Website: www.computershare.com
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Ding Yong Ling (Chairman)
Chen Fei

Lin Man

Non-executive Director
Feng Li

Independent Non-executive Directors
Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper

Xu Hong Xi

Chan Ngai Chi

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chan Ngai Chi (Chairman)
Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper
Xu Hong Xi

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper (Chairman)
Xu Hong Xi
Chan Ngai Chi

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Xu Hong Xi (Chairman)
Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper
Chan Ngai Chi

COMPANY SECRETARY

Tsang Fung Yi

AUTHORISED
REPRESENTATIVES

Ding Yong Ling
Lin Man

STOCK CODE

3613

HONG KONG SHARE
REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

cm.tongrentang.com

REGISTERED ADDRESS

Room 1405-1409, Office Tower
Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

Jingtian & Gongcheng LLP
Suite 3203-3207

32/F

Edinburgh Tower

The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants and
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

22nd Floor, Prince’s Building

Central, Hong Kong
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GLOSSARY

AGM
Articles of Association
Audit Committee

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group

Board or Board of Directors
CG Code
Code Provision(s)

Company

Company Secretary
Competition Executive Committee
Competition Supervisory Committee

Controlling Shareholder(s)
Director(s)

EGM(s)
ESG
Executive Director(s)

GLSPC

Group, we or us

Hong Kong or HKSAR

HK$

Independent Non-executive Director(s)
Listing Rules

Model Code

Macao

Mainland China

Annual general meeting of the Company

The new articles of association of the Company

An audit committee of the Company

Tong Ren Tang Holdings, its subsidiaries, its jointly controlled entities and its
associates (including the Group)

The board of directors of the Company

Corporate Governance Code, Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules

Code Provisions in the CG Code

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited, a limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong, the Shares of which were listed on the GEM of the

Stock Exchange on 7 May 2013 and were transferred to Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 29 May 2018

The company secretary of the Company
A competition executive committee of the Company
A competition supervisory committee of the Company

Tong Ren Tang Ltd., Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong Ren Tang
Holdings

Director(s) of the Company, including all Executive Directors, Non-executive
Director and Independent Non-executive Directors

Extraordinary general meeting(s) of the Company
Environmental, Social and Governance
The executive director(s) of the Company

Sporoderm-broken Ganoderma Lucidum Spores Powder Capsules
manufactured by the Company

The Company and its subsidiaries

The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong

The independent non-executive director(s) of the Company

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Exchange

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
The Macao Special Administrative Region of the PRC

PRC but excluding Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan region for the purpose of
this annual report
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GLOSSARY

Nomination Committee
Non-executive Director
Non-PRC Market(s)
Owned Product(s)

Parent Group

PRC

Prospectus

Remuneration Committee
SFO

Share(s)

Shareholder(s)

Stock Exchange or Exchange

Production and R&D Base

TCM

Tong Ren Tang

Tong Ren Tang Holdings

TRT International Natural-Pharm

Tong Ren Tang Ltd. or TRT Ltd.

Tong Ren Tang Technologies or
TRT Technologies

U.S. or United States

Year

A nomination committee of the Company

The non-executive director of the Company

Markets outside of the Mainland China

The product(s) manufactured by the Group

Tong Ren Tang Holdings, its subsidiaries, its jointly controlled entities and its
associates (other than the Group)

The People’s Republic of China

Prospectus of the Company dated 25 April 2013

A remuneration committee of the Company

Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571

Share(s) of the Company

Shareholder(s) of the Company

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

The research and development and production base of the Company located
at Tai Po Industrial Estate in Hong Kong

Traditional Chinese medicine

Beijing Tong Ren Tang

China Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group Co., Ltd., a state-owned enterprise
established in the PRC on 17 August 1992 and is the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company

Beijing Tong Ren Tang International Natural-Pharm Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Company Limited, a joint stock limited company
established in the PRC on 18 June 1997, the shares of which have been listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange since 1997, and is the intermediate holding
company of the Company

Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd., a joint stock limited company
established in the PRC on 22 March 2000, the H shares of which have been
listed on GEM since 2000 and have been transferred to the Main Board since
July 2010, and is the immediate holding company of the Company

The United States of America

Fiscal year from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022
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Where the English and the Chinese texts conflict, the English text prevails.
MERANB MBI E - BEAZESRAAELE -

This Annual Report is printed on environmentally friendly paper
AERURRERDE
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